
 TOWN OF FLORENCE 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

 
Mayor Tara Walter 
Vice-Mayor Vallarie Woolridge 
Councilmember Bill Hawkins 
Councilmember Becki Guilin 
Councilmember John Anderson 
Councilmember Karen Wall 
Councilmember Kristen Larsen 
 
 
Monday, October 2, 2017 
 

Florence Town Hall
775 N. Main Street

Florence, AZ 85132
(520) 868-7500

www.florenceaz.gov
Meet 1st and 3rd Mondays

6:00 PM

____________________________________________________________________________ 
Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the Town of Florence Council and to 
the general public that a Regular Meeting of the Florence Town Council will be held on Monday 
October 2, 2017, at 6:00 p.m., in the Florence Town Council Chambers, located at 775 N. Main 
Street, Florence, Arizona.  The agenda for this meeting is as follows:    
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. ROLL CALL:     Walter __, Woolridge__, Hawkins__, Guilin__, Anderson__,  

Wall____, Larsen___. 
 
3. MOMENT OF SILENCE 

 
4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
5. CALL TO THE PUBLIC  

Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the Town Council.  
Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  Individual Councilmembers may 
respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask staff to review a matter raised or 
may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  However, members of the Council shall 
not discuss or take action on any matter during an open call to the public unless the matters 
are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 
 

6.  PRESENTATIONS 
 

a. Proclamation declaring October 8 - 14, 2017, as Fire Prevention Week.  (Mayor Walter) 
 

b. Presentation on the Historic District Wireless Fire Alarm Program. (Dave Strayer) 
 
7. CONSENT: All items on the consent agenda will be handled by a single vote as part of 

the consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public objects at the 
time the agenda item is called.  

 
a. Approve the FY 2017/2018 Florence Façade Improvement Program. (Jennifer Evans)  

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



b. Approval of an Administrative Services Contract with the Florence Industrial Development 
Authority for management of the Florence Façade Improvement Program. (Jennifer 
Evans) 
 

c. Approval and ratification of the Terms of Engagement for Legal Services and 
Engagement Agreement Letter with Jennings, Strouss & Salmon, P.L.C., for legal 
representation of the Town of Florence, as Plaintiff, in connection with pending litigation 
against Florence Copper, Inc. (aka, Curis Resources (Arizona), Inc.) in pending case:  
Town of Florence v. Florence Copper, Inc., Case No. CV2015-000325, previously 
CV2013-02511. (Clifford Mattice) 
 

d. Approval and ratification of the revised Terms of Engagement for Legal Services and 
Engagement for Legal Services and Engagement Agreement with Gust Rosenfeld, P.L.C. 
for regulatory matter, including administrative appeals and potential litigation against 
county, state, and federal environmental agencies with respect to the permitting process 
for the “Florence Copper Project, including but not limited to permits for the proposed 
“production Test Facility” and any future commercial operations.  (Clifford Mattice) 

 
e. Approval of accepting the register of demands ending August 31, 2017, in the amount of 

$2,408,662.03. (Joe Jarvis) 
 
8. NEW BUSINESS 

a. Resolution No. 1644-17: Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of A RESOLUTION OF THE 
TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE TO EXECUTE A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH STARTUP 
PAVILION, INC. (DBA INNOVATION PAVILION INC.) AND PINAL COUNTY TO 
CONSTRUCT A MIXED-USE PROJECT ON APPROXIMATELY 12 ACRES IN THE 
TERRITORY SQUARE DISTRICT. (Brent Billingsley) 
 

b. Resolution No. 1645-17:   A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL 
COUNTY ARIZONA, APPROVING THE FINAL PLAT FOR ANTHEM AT MERRILL 
RANCH UNIT 5; AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION BY THE TOWN MANAGER OF 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS. (Michelle Orton) 
 

c. Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of a Non-Exclusive Revocable License Agreement with 
the Copper Basin Railway, Inc. for access to the Poston Butte Preserve. (Bryan Hughes)    
 

d. Discussion/Approval/Disapproval to enter into a contract with Holbrook Asphalt 
Company, to provide HA5 high density mineral bond pavement preservation treatment in 
various locations as part of the Town of Florence CIP T-69 Pavement Preservation 
Program, in an amount of $295,034.27. (Chris Salas) 
 

9. MANAGER’S REPORT 

10. DEPARTMENT REPORTS   

a. Community Services 
b. Courts 
c. Development Services 
d. Finance 

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



e. Fire 
f. Police 

 
11. CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
 
12. CALL TO THE COUNCIL – CURRENT EVENTS ONLY 

 
13. ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Discussion and possible action to authorize the holding of an Executive Session during the 
Council Meeting for the purposes of discussions or consultations with designated 
representatives of the public body and/or legal counsel pursuant to A.R.S. Sections 38-431.03 
(A)(3), (A)(4) and (A)(7) to consider its position and instruct its representatives and/or attorneys 
regarding: 

a. Town’s position and instruct its attorneys regarding the Petition for Review of 
Underground Injection Control Permit Issued by USEPA Region 9 for the Florence 
Copper Project, UIC Appeal 17-03, and related proceedings. 

b. Town’s position and instruct its attorneys regarding Arizona Department of Environmental 
Quality proceedings, related Water Quality Appeals Board Case No. 16-002, including 
appellate proceedings to reviewing courts. 

c. Town’s position and instruct its attorneys regarding pending litigation in Maricopa County 
Superior Court:  Town of Florence v. Florence Copper, Inc. CV2015 -000325. 

d. Pulte Home Company, L.L.C. Development Agreement Update.  
 

14. ADJOURN FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 

15. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Council may go into Executive Session at any time during the meeting for the purpose of 
obtaining legal advice from the Town’s Attorney(s) on any of the agenda items pursuant to 
A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3). 
 
POSTED ON SEPTEMBER 28, 2017, BY MARIA HERNANDEZ, DEPUTY TOWN CLERK, AT 
775 NORTH MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA, AND AT WWW.FLORENCEAZ.GOV. 
 
***PURSUANT TO TITLE II OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA), THE 
TOWN OF FLORENCE DOES NOT DISCRIMINATE ON THE BASIS OF DISABILITY 
REGARDING ADMISSION TO PUBLIC MEETINGS.  PERSONS WITH A DISABILITY MAY 
REQUEST REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS BY CONTACTING THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE ADA COORDINATOR, AT (520) 868-7574 OR (520) 868-7502 TDD. REQUESTS 
SHOULD BE MADE AS EARLY AS POSSIBLE TO ALLOW TIME TO ARRANGE THE 
ACCOMMODATION.***  

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



 
 
 
 

 

 

2017 FIRE PREVENT WEEK 

OCTOBER 8-14, 2017 

 

 WHEREAS, the Town of Florence, Arizona, is committed to ensuring the safety and 
security of all those living in and visiting Florence, and 

 
 WHEREAS, U.S. fire departments responded to 365,500 home fires in 2015, according 
to the National Fire Protection Association (NFPA); and 
 
 WHEREAS, U.S. home fires resulted in 2,560 civilian deaths in 2015, representing the 
majority (78 percent) of all U.S. fire deaths; and 
 
 WHEREAS, newer homes are built with lightweight materials that burn faster than older 
home constructions; and 
 
 WHEREAS, many of today’s products and furnishings produce toxic gases and smoke 
when burned, making it impossible to see and breathe within moments; and 
 
 WHEREAS, these conditions contribute to a much smaller window of time for people to 
escape a home fire safely, with people having as little as one to two minutes to escape from 
the time the smoke alarm sounds; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a home fire escape plan provides the skill set and know-how to quickly and 
safely escape a home fire situation; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a home fire escape plan includes two exits from every room in the home; a 
path to the outside from each exit; smoke alarms in all required locations; and a meeting place 
outside where everyone in the home will meet upon exiting; and 
 
 WHEREAS, home fire escape plans should be developed by all members of the 
household; and 
 
 WHEREAS, practicing a home fire escape plan twice a year ensures that everyone in 
the household knows what to do in a real fire situation; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Florence’s first responders are dedicated to reducing the occurrence of 
home fires and home fire injuries through prevention and protection education; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Florence residents are responsive to public education measures and are 
able to take personal steps to increase their safety from fire, especially in their homes; and 
 
 
  



WHEREAS, the 2017 Fire Prevention Week theme, “Every Second Counts: Plan 2 
Ways Out!” effectively serves to educate the public about the vital importance of developing a 
home fire escape plan with all members of the household and practicing it twice a year. 
 
 THEREFORE, I, Tara Walter, Mayor of Florence, do hereby proclaim October 8-14, 
2017, as Fire Prevention Week throughout this community. I urge all the people of Florence to 
develop a home fire escape plan with all members of the household and practice it twice a 
year, and to participate in the many public safety activities and efforts of Florence’s first 
responders during Fire Prevention Week 2017. 

 
 
____________________________ 
Tara Walter, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 



ric District Fire Alarm System
Fire Area

Histo



“. . . these old buildings do not belong to us 
only; . . .
they have belonged to our forefathers, and 
they will
belong to our descendants . . .”
– William Morris

Main Street in the early 1900s





102.5 Historic buildings:
Fire protection in designated historic buildings and structures 
shall be provided in accordance with an approved fire 
protection plan. 

2006



• Fire sprinkler systems 
• Monitored fire detection systems 
• Appropriate code enforcement (specifically 

for historical buildings) 
• Regular fire inspections 
• Property owner fire-safety education.

Fire Protection Plan Elements



Automatic fire detection systems, when combined with 
other elements of an emergency response and 
evacuation plan, can significantly reduce property 
damage, personal injuries, and loss of life from fire in the 
workplace. Their main function is to quickly identify a 
developing fire and alert building occupants and 
emergency response personnel before extensive damage 
occurs.  

OSHA



• In business for 30 years
• 200 Distributors
• Installed in thousands of 

locations
• UL listed
• NFPA Compliant
• Specifically for Historic 

Buildings (less intrusive)
• Cost Effective



The Town’s Role:
• Install the regional wireless panel
• Produce a subscriber’s agreement
• Pay for maintenance of our system 

and monthly power and service fees

The Subscribers Role:  
• To procure the wireless equipment required 

for their individual application
• Have the infrastructure professionally 

installed to NFPA standards
• Complete the subscriber’s agreement
• Complete annual maintenance of 

infrastructure
• Allow access to their property for inspection 

and maintenance of the system



Historic Buildings in the Downtown 
area with monitored Fire Detection 
and/or Fire Sprinkler Systems



Questions?



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
7a.  

MEETING DATE: October 2, 2017   
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Jennifer Evans, Management Analyst   
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of the FY 2017/18 Florence Façade 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
Subject:  Approval of the Florence Façade Improvement Program      Meeting Date:  October 2, 2017 
Page 1 of 2 

Improvement Program   Other 
 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve the FY 2017/18 Florence Façade Improvement Program. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The Town Council held a work session with the Florence Industrial Authority at the 
September 18, 2017 Town Council meeting to discuss the draft façade improvement 
program. Council members recommended two changes to the program, to specify that 
grant awards are made per building and an applicant can have only one grant award at 
a time. 
 
The purpose of the Florence Façade Improvement Program is to improve the street-
facing exteriors of commercial buildings located in the Florence Redevelopment Area. 
The Florence Façade Improvement Program provides reimbursement of pre-approved 
façade improvement costs of up to 50%. The maximum grant award is $5,000 per 
building. Grants are awarded for exterior improvements on facades that face a public 
street or parking area.  
 
The Florence Industrial Development Authority (IDA) is willing to manage the program 
on behalf of the Town; however, they are not able to financially contribute at this time.  
The IDA will establish a Review Committee to evaluate applications and make 
recommendations for grant award approval. The IDA will award grants and reimburse 
applicants for approved expenses. At their meeting on August 10, 2017, the IDA agreed 



Subject:  Approval of the Florence Façade Improvement Program      Meeting Date:  October 2, 2017 
Page 2 of 2 

they would be willing to enter into a contract to manage the façade program once it is 
approved by the Town Council.   
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 

A No vote would mean the Florence Façade Improvement Program would not be 
implemented. 
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 

A Yes vote would mean the Florence Façade Improvement Program will be 
implemented. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
$20,000 has been budgeted for a façade program. A small administrative fee will be 
paid to the IDA for managing the program and remaining funds will be used for grant 
awards. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Florence Façade Improvement Program 
Redevelopment Area Map 



FY 2017/18 
Florence Façade Improvement Program 

Page 1 of 4 
 

 
Program Overview and Purpose  
 
The Program provides a reimbursement of up to 50% of eligible pre-approved façade 
improvement costs on commercial buildings. The maximum amount for any individual 
grant award is $5,000 per property owner or tenant per building. 
 
Grants are awarded for exterior improvements only and may be applied to a front, side 
or rear façade provided façade faces a public street or parking area. Grants are 
awarded based on the availability of funds, scope and impact of the project. Façade 
improvements made prior to approval of an application will not be funded by the 
Program. 
 
The Program’s mission is to generate commercial activity by addressing deteriorating 
property conditions in the slum and blight designated Florence Redevelopment Area. A 
map is included of the Florence Redevelopment Area properties eligible for 
participation.  
 
The purpose of the Façade Improvement Program is to improve the street-facing 
exteriors of a building or residential structure that has been re-designated as 
commercial or office located in the Downtown.  
 
Applications for the program are accepted throughout the year. Grants are awarded on 
a first come, first served basis. 
 
Eligible Participants  
 
Eligible participants of the program include property owners of commercial buildings 
within the Florence Redevelopment Area and tenants of commercial buildings in the 
Redevelopment Area. A business owner who leases space must have written approval 
from the property owner to participate in the program.  Applicants may apply to the 
program more than once; however, will not be awarded funding more than once in any 
five (5) year period on the same property unless the ownership changes. An applicant 
may only have one grant award at a time. 
 
Eligible Improvements 
 
Eligible improvements must contribute to the visual enhancement of the property as 
viewed from the public right of way. Improvements must be comprehensive and may 
incorporate several of the acceptable components of the existing façade.  The property 
must meet all Town of Florence Building and Safety Codes upon completion of work. In 
the event there is a violation, correction of the violation must be made prior to 
disbursement of the grant. 
 
Examples of Typical Eligible Improvements include:  

1. Exterior painting and façade repair;  



FY 2017/18 
Florence Façade Improvement Program 

Page 2 of 4 
 

2. Façade detail and trim restoration or replacement; 
3. Accessibility improvements for ADA compliance; 
4. plants and landscaping;  
5. awnings;  
6. doors and windows;  
7. façade and display window lighting;  
8. demolition of obsolete structures; and  
9. addition of a patio or outdoor space.  

 
Exterior signage (street facing) and parking lots/parking lot striping may be considered 
as eligible projects based on a complete façade design package.  

Ineligible Improvements and Exclusions 

Examples of ineligible activities include:  
1. New building construction; 

2. any interior work;  
3. roof repairs, except those portions that directly attach to a new or renovated 

façade; and  
4. any items that are not allowed by the Town of Florence Town Code or Building 

Code.  
 
Funds may not be used for working capital; property, equipment or inventory 
acquisition; refinancing of existing debt; or refinancing private funding. 
 
Façade Improvement Program Administration  
 
The Program provides participants the opportunity to receive a reimbursement of up to 
50% of eligible pre-approved improvement costs. The maximum amount for any 
individual grant award is $5,000 per individual property owner.  
 
All projects should be permanent to the structure or façade and should remain as part of 
the property if the building is sold or applicant moves outside of the Florence 
Redevelopment Area. 
 
The Façade Improvement Program is administered by the Florence Industrial 
Development Authority (IDA). Final decisions of grant awards, the amount of grant 
award and eligible projects will be made by a review committee of the Florence IDA. 
Appeals may be submitted to the Florence IDA within 30 days of notification. Funding 
for the program is subject to availability each fiscal year. The Town of Florence provides 
funding to the Florence IDA for the implementation of a façade program to fulfill the 
following goals:   
 

 To encourage well-designed improvements.  

 To restore or improve architectural elements and interest to the structure.  



FY 2017/18 
Florence Façade Improvement Program 

Page 3 of 4 
 

 To visually improve facades to encourage economic growth in the Florence 
Redevelopment Area.  
 

Application Process 
 

1. Complete and submit a formal application to the Florence Town Clerk, 
Florence Town Hall, 775 North Main Street, Florence, AZ 85132. The Town of 
Florence will accept applications on behalf of the Florence IDA. Submissions 
must include:  

a. a completed application,  
b. a site plan drawn to scale including landscape placement,  

c. altered property rehabilitation plans drawn to scale,  
d. photographs of the existing condition,  
e. estimated total project costs including at least one bid for each project 

(bids are subject to review; additional bids may be requested),  
f. Paint chips/samples if work includes painting of buildings, doors, awnings, 

etc.,  
g. if tenant is the applicant, authorization must be given by the property 

owner indicating permission to apply for the project, and 
h. an electronic copy of submission materials.  

 
2. Application Review Process: The Florence IDA Review Committee will 

evaluate applications on the following criteria:  
a. Total project budget,  
b. Design plan,  
c. Location within the Redevelopment Area,  
d. Returning facility into a productive use and/or creation of new uses within 

the space, and  
e. Total linear feet of storefront to be improved. 

 
Façade improvement projects on properties located with the Florence Townsite 
Historic District must be approved by the Town of Florence Historic District 
Advisory Commission. 
  

3. Following approval, the Florence IDA will issue a formal “Notice to 
Proceed”:  Any work initiated before “Notice to Proceed” will not be eligible for 
funds reimbursement. Participants will be required to enter into and execute a 
written agreement with the Florence IDA to establish the terms, conditions, and 
requirements for participation in the program.  

 
4. Following the “Notice to Proceed”, but prior to work starting, the applicant 

must secure any required building or development permits through the 
Town of Florence.  



FY 2017/18 
Florence Façade Improvement Program 

Page 4 of 4 
 

 
5. The applicant must submit copies of paid bills, cancelled checks, 

contractor lien waivers and receipts to the Florence IDA for 
reimbursements. Reimbursements can be requested on the last day of each 
month for work that has been completed. A receipt, picture of the completed 
work, along with the line item within the application that the work applied to will 
be needed for each reimbursement. 

 
6. The Florence IDA Review Committee will inspect the completed project to 

ensure that work was performed as outlined in application. This inspection 
does not replace or supersede any additional inspections that may be required 
by the Town’s Building Safety Division.  

 
7. The Applicant will be reimbursed up to the amount of the approved grant. 

Work must be completed within 6 months of the stated start date unless 
otherwise noted in application.  

 
Contact the Florence Industrial Development Authority at 520-705-2541 or call the Town 
of Florence at 520-868-7549 for more information and to apply for the program. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



M
AI

N 
ST

PL
AN

T 
RD

ADAMSVILLE RD

BUTTE AVE

8TH ST

W
IL

LO
W

 S
T

PA
RK

 S
T

FELIZ ST

6TH ST

3RD ST

KI
NG

 S
T

rx79

PI
NA

L 
ST

RUGGLES ST

CE
NT

RA
L 

AV
E

VIRGINIA ST

STEWART ST

W
AR

NE
R 

ST

PH
OE

NI
X 

ST
ELLIOT ST

FL
OR

EN
CE

 S
T

SI
LV

ER
 S

T

BRADY ST

RANCHVIEW RD

BA
IL

EY
 S

T
16TH ST

DANA AVE

AGUILAR ST

11TH ST

DIVERSION DAM RD

7TH ST

OR
LA

ND
O 

ST

T O VILLAGE RD

CE
NT

ER
 S

T

GR
AN

IT
E 

ST

FLORENCE HEIGHTS DR

CANAL RD

DURON ST

ECHO LN

EL
IZ

AB
ET

H 
ST

20TH ST

BU
SH

 S
T

9TH ST

22ND ST

GEIB AVE

rx287

GRESSINGER ST

CH
UR

CH
 S

T

14TH ST

DE
SO

TO
 S

T

COLLINGWOOD ST

13TH ST
12TH ST

10TH ST

QU
AR

TZ
 S

T

CAMPBELL RD ASHLEY WAY

AS
H 

ST

BUNKER

HILL DR

1ST ST

KEATING ST

CE
NT

EN
NI

AL
 P

AR
K 

AV
E

VAN HAREN RD

SA
N 

CA
RL

OS
 S

T

BUTTE
CIR

LIBERTY ST

18TH
ST

CE
NT

EN
NI

AL
 P

AR
K 

PL

CEDAR
AVE

SCHOLASTIC
DR

POSTON
CIR

CIRCLE
DR

11TH ST

PA
RK

 S
T16TH

ST

11TH ST
12TH ST

QU
AR

TZ
 S

T

PARK ST

DE
SO

TO
 S

T

PI
NA

L 
PA

RK
W

AY
 A

VE

6TH ST

OR
LA

ND
O 

ST

BUTTE AVE

CELAYA ST

PE
AC

OC
K 

TR
L

M
AT

IL
DA

 S
T

M
AT

IL
DA

 S
T

M
AT

IL
DA

 S
T

SA
N 

CA
RL

OS
 S

T

FREEDOM ST

J A S ON LO

P
E

Z
CIR

M
UL

BE
RR

Y
ST

M
UL

BE
RR

Y 
ST

OA
K

ST

UN
IV

ER
SI

TY
ST

SY
CA

M
OR

E 
ST

CE
NT

EN
NI

AL
PA

RK
 A

VE

13TH ST

6TH ST

12TH ST

10TH ST

rx79B

Heritage
Park

Butte View
Cemeter y

Little
League

Park

Main St
Park

Padilla
Park

Copyright:© 2014 Esri
Page 363

Railroads
Redevelopment District
Parcel Boundary
Town Limits
Outside Town Limits

Roads
State Highway
Major
Local

Town of  Florence

Map Key

Map Information

0 850 1,700 2,550425

Feet

Reference Map Series

Ü

Town Core Redevelopment District

Date Updated: 3/3/2016Date Created: 3/3/2016

The area shown in green represents
the boundary of  the Downtown
Redevelopment District and the
Commercial Business District. The
Redevelopment boundaries were
established in 1998, then expanded in
2003, and again in 2005. By
establishing the District, the Town of
Florence can use a variety of
strategies, under state statue, to direct
the redevelopment of  certain
properties within the District.



TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM 
7b.   

MEETING DATE: October 2, 2017 

DEPARTMENT:  Administration 

STAFF PRESENTER: Jennifer Evans, Management Analyst   

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   
st
Subject:  Approval of an Administrative Services Contract with IDA Meeting Date:  October 2, 2017 
Page 1 of 2 

SUBJECT:  Approval of an Administrative Services Contract with 
the Florence Industrial Development Authority for management 
of the Florence Façade Improvement Program

 1  Reading  

 2nd Reading
 Other 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 

Motion to approve the Administrative Services Contract with the Florence Industrial 
Development Authority (IDA) for management of the Florence Façade Improvement 
Program. 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 

Staff is seeking approval of an administrative services contract with the IDA to manage 
the Florence Façade Improvement Program on behalf of the Town of Florence.  The 
term of the agreement ends on June 30, 2018, with an option to extend the agreement. 
The scope of service includes managing the application and award process; review 
submitted applications; award façade grants based on established criteria; issue a 
Notice to Proceed for each awarded project; inspect completed façade improvement 
projects; and reimburse grant awardees for 50% of approved expenses. 

The purpose of the Florence Façade Improvement Program is to improve the street-
facing exteriors of commercial buildings located in the Florence Redevelopment Area. 
The Florence Façade Improvement Program provides reimbursement of pre-approved 
façade improvement costs of up to 50%. The maximum grant award is $5,000 per 
building. Grants are awarded for exterior improvements on facades that face a public 
street or parking area.  



Subject:  Approval of an Administrative Services Contract with IDA      Meeting Date:  October 2, 2017 
Page 2 of 2 

The IDA will establish a Review Committee to evaluate applications and make 
recommendations for grant award approval.  The IDA will award grants and reimburse 
applicants for approved expenses.  At their meeting on August 10, 2017, the IDA 
agreed they would be willing to enter into a contract to manage the Façade Program 
once it is approved by the Town Council.   
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 

A No vote would mean the Florence Façade Improvement Program would not be 
implemented. 
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 

A Yes vote would mean the Florence Façade Improvement Program will be 
implemented. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
$20,000 has been budgeted for the Façade Program. The IDA will be paid $1,000 (5%) 
for managing the program and the remaining funds will be used for grant awards. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Florence Façade Improvement Program 



Page 1 of 5 
 

FLORENCE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES CONTRACT 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
FAÇADE IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

 
THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into as of the ___ day of October 2017, by and 
between the Town of Florence, an Arizona municipal corporation (“Town”) and the 
Florence Industrial Development Authority, an Arizona non-profit corporation 
(“Contractor”) for administrative services to manage the façade improvement program 
(“Services”). The Town and Contractor may be referred to in this Agreement collectively 
as the “Parties” and each individually as a “Party”.  
 
WITNESSETH: 
 
WHEREAS, the Town has funds designated for a façade improvement program; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town desires assistance in administering the program; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Contractor is agreeable to providing such assistance; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the parties do mutually agree as follows: 
 
1. TERM: Activities under this Agreement shall commence on or about November 1, 
2017, and shall be completed on or about June 30, 2018. The term of the Agreement 
may be extended upon mutual agreement. The Agreement may be unilaterally extended 
by the Town for a period of thirty-one (31) days. 
 
2. SCOPE OF WORK  
 
a. Contractor agrees to perform Services as outlined in Exhibit A (the “Services”). 
 
b. Town will ensure availability of staff assistance as needed to assist with review and 
oversight of the program. 
 
3. AMOUNT AND METHOD OF COMPENSATION 
 
a. The Town shall compensate the Contractor the sum of $1,000.00 (5% of allocated 
grant funds) for management of the program. The payment shall be paid when the 
program is implemented. 
 
b. Town will provide funds for the disbursement of grant awards as part of the façade 
improvement program. 
 
4. CONTRACTOR’S STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE 
 



Page 2 of 5 
 

While performing the Services, Contractor shall exercise the reasonable professional care 
and skill customarily exercised by reputable members of Contractor's profession and shall 
use reasonable diligence and best judgment while exercising its professional skill and 
expertise. Contractor shall be responsible for all errors and omissions Contractor commits 
in the performance of this Agreement. 
 
5. NOTICES 
 
All notices and requests to the other Party required under this Agreement shall be in 
writing and sent by first class certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, 
addressed to the following personnel: 
 
 Town of Florence   Florence Industrial Development Authority 
 Town Manager    President 
 P.O. Box 2670   P.O. Box 1413 
 775 North Main Street  Florence, AZ  85132 
 Florence, AZ 85132  
 
6. TERMINATION 
 
This Agreement may be terminated by either Party upon thirty (30) working days written 
notice. If this Agreement is terminated, Contractor shall be paid for services performed to 
the date of receipt of such termination notice. In the event of such termination, Contractor 
shall deliver to Town all work in any state of completion at the date of effective termination. 
The Town has the right to terminate this Agreement for cause or convenience, or to 
terminate any portion of the services which have not been performed by Contractor. 
 
7. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: Contractor shall at all times during Contractor's 
performance of the services retain Contractor's status as independent contractor. 
Contractor's employees shall under no circumstances be considered or held to be 
employees or agents of Town.  Town shall have no obligation to pay or withhold state or 
federal taxes or provide workers' compensation or unemployment insurance for or on 
behalf of them or Contractor. 
 
8. GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE: This Agreement shall be governed by and construed 
in accordance with the substantive laws of the State of Arizona without reference to 
conflicts of laws and principles. Any action at law or in equity brought by either party for 
the purpose of enforcing a right or rights provided for in this Agreement shall be tried in a 
court of competent jurisdiction in Pinal County, State of Arizona. The parties hereby waive 
all provisions of law providing for a change of venue in such proceeding to any other 
county. In the event either party shall bring suit to enforce any term of this Agreement or 
to recover any damages for and on account of the breach of any term or condition in this 
Agreement, it is mutually agreed that the prevailing party in such action shall recover all 
costs including: all litigation and appeal expenses, collection expenses, reasonable 
attorneys' fees, necessary witness fees and court costs to be determined by the court in 
such action. 



Page 3 of 5 
 

 
9. OWNERSHIP OF RECORDS AND REPORTS: All of the files, reports, documents, 
information and data prepared or assembled pursuant to the Agreement are to be and 
remain the property of the Town and are to be delivered to Town before final payment 
under the Agreement is made to Contractor, or upon termination of the Agreement for 
any reason.  
 
10. NONASSIGNMENT: This Agreement has been entered into based upon the personal 
reputation, expertise and qualifications of Contractor. Neither Party to this Agreement 
shall assign its interest in the Agreement, either in whole or in part. Contractor shall not 
assign any monies due or to become due to it hereunder without the prior written consent 
of Town. 
 
11. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Agreement and any attachments represent the entire 
agreement between Town and Contractor and supersede all prior negotiations, 
representations or agreements, express or implied, written or oral. It is mutually 
understood and agreed that no alteration or variation of the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and signed by the Parties hereto.  
 
12. FUNDS APPROPRIATION. If the term of this Agreement or provision of any Services 
hereunder extends beyond the current fiscal period of the Town and the Town Council 
does not appropriate funds to continue this Agreement and pay for charges hereunder, 
the Town may terminate this Agreement at the end of the current fiscal period. The Town 
agrees, to the extent reasonably practical, to give written notice of such termination 
pursuant to Section 6 of the Agreement at least 30 days prior to the end of the current 
fiscal period and will pay to the Contractor approved charges incurred through the end of 
such period.  
 
13. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST: The provisions of A.R.S. § 38-511 relating to 
cancellation of contracts due to conflicts of interest shall apply to this Agreement. 
 
14. PROHIBITED BOYCOTT. Pursuant to A.R.S. 35-393.01, the Contractor, by execution 
of this Agreement, certifies that it is not currently engaged in, and agrees for the duration 
of the Agreement to not engage in, a boycott of Israel. 
 
 

[BALANCE OF THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY; SIGNATURES AND 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

 
 
 
 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be signed 



Page 4 of 5 
 

by their duly authorized representatives as of the day and year first above written. 
 
 
TOWN OF FLORENCE:    FLORENCE INDUSTRIAL 
         DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY: 
 
 
              
Tara Walter, Mayor     Barbara Kelly, President 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       
Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 



Page 5 of 5 
 

 
Scope of Work 

 
 

1. Manage the application and award process of the façade improvement program 
as outlined in the Florence Façade Improvement Program and approved by the 
Florence Town Council.  

 
2. Review submitted applications from commercial property owners or tenants to 

ensure the application has all required documentation. 
 

3. Award façade grants based on established criteria that encourages good design 
and is compatible with the architecture of neighboring commercial buildings. 

 
4. Issue a “Notice to Proceed” for each awarded project in a timely manner. 

 
5. Inspect completed façade improvement projects to ensure work was performed 

as outlined in the application.  
 

6. Reimburse grant awardees for 50% of expenses associated with the façade 
improvement project. Grants must be disbursed in a timely manner upon 
submittal of all required invoices, proof of payments, and other documentation. 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM 
7c.  

MEETING DATE:   October 2, 2017 

DEPARTMENT:  Legal 

STAFF PRESENTER:   Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   
Subject: Approval and ratification of Terms of Engagement Letter Meeting Date:  October 2, 2017 
Page 1 of 2 

SUBJECT:   Approval and Ratification of the Terms of 
Engagement for Legal Services and Engagement Agreement 
with Jennings, Strouss & Salmon, P.L.C.-Revised for Lawyer’s 
Change of Firms. 

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading
 Other 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  Community Vitality  Economic Prosperity    
 Leadership and Governance     Partnerships and Relationships     Transportation and Infrastructure 
 Statutory    None 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 

Motion to approve and ratify the Terms of Engagement for Legal Services and 
Engagement Agreement letter dated September 12, 2017, with Jennings, Strouss & 
Salmon, P.L.C., for legal representation of the Town of Florence, as Plaintiff, in 
connection with pending litigation against Florence Copper, Inc. (fka, Curis Resources 
(Arizona), Inc.) in pending case:  Town of Florence v. Florence Copper, Inc., Case No. 
CV2015-000325, previously CV2013-02511). 

Staff recommends approving and ratifying the Terms of Engagement for Legal Services 
and Engagement Agreement letter dated September 12, 2017 with Jennings, Strouss & 
Salmon, P.L.C. (“Jennings Strouss”). 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 

In 2013, the Town initiated litigation in the pending case:  Town of Florence v. Florence 
Copper, Inc. (Curis Resources AZ, Inc.) (Case No. CV2015-000325, previously 
CV2013-02511).  The Complaint in the case sought: 1) Declaratory Relief that the uses 
of the subject property for mining and related activities are an illegal use; and 2) 
Eminent Domain for judgment condemning the property and determining the total 
amount of just compensation.  The court dismissed the eminent domain count in 2015.  
The Town is represented by Chris Kramer for the claims in the Complaint.  Mr. Kramer 
recently accepted employment at a new law firm, Jennings Strouss, and as a result of 
this change, Jennings Strouss requires a new engagement agreement with the Town for 
Mr. Kramer’s services. 



Subject: Approval and ratification of Terms of Engagement Letter   Meeting Date:  October 2, 2017 
Page 2 of 2 

This action approves and ratifies the Town’s engagement of Jennings, Strouss & 
Salmon P.L.C., for legal representation of the Town as a Plaintiff in the litigation of the 
Complaint 
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 

The Town retains Chris Kramer (and Jennings, Strouss & Salmon, P.L.C.) as its lawyer 
for the pending litigation of the Complaint. 
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 

The Town does not retain Chris Kramer (and Jennings, Strouss & Salmon, P.L.C.) as its 
lawyer for the pending litigation of the Complaint. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The expenses for legal fees and related services, including retention of experts and 
consultants, are budgeted annually based upon the projected activities for the litigation 
during the fiscal year. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Engagement Agreement letter dated September 12, 2017, with Jennings, Strouss & 
Salmon, P.L.C. 













TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM 
7d.   

MEETING DATE:   October 2, 2017 

DEPARTMENT:  Legal 

STAFF PRESENTER:   Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney 

SUBJECT:   Approval and Ratification of the Revised Terms of 
Engagement for Legal Services and Engagement Agreement 
with Gust Rosenfeld, P.L.C. - Revised for Lawyer’s Change of 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading
 Other 
Subject: Gust Rosenfeld, P.L.C. Agreement Meeting Date:  October 2, 2017 
Page 1 of 2 

Firms. 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  Community Vitality  Economic Prosperity    
 Leadership and Governance     Partnerships and Relationships     Transportation and Infrastructure 
 Statutory    None 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 

Motion to approve and ratify the revised Terms of Engagement for Legal Services and 
Engagement Agreement letter dated September 7, 2017, with Gust Rosenfeld, P.L.C., 
for legal representation of the Town of Florence in regulatory matters, including 
administrative appeals and potential litigation against county, state, and federal 
environmental agencies with respect to the permitting process for the “Florence Copper 
Project,” including but not limited to permits for the proposed “Production Test Facility” 
and any future commercial operations. 

Staff recommends approving and ratifying the revised Terms of Engagement for Legal 
Services and Engagement Agreement letter dated September 7, 2017 with Gust 
Rosenfeld, P.L.C. (“Gust”). 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 

In 2013, the Town initiated litigation in the pending case:  Town of Florence v. Florence 
Copper, Inc. (Curis Resources AZ, Inc.) (Case No. CV2015-000325, previously 
CV2013-02511) (the “Zoning Case”). The Town is represented by Chris Kramer in the 
Zoning Case.  Mr. Kramer recently accepted employment at a new law firm, Jennings 
Strouss & Salmon, P.L.C, and as a result of this change Gust requires a new 
engagement agreement with the Town for services provided by Barbara Pashkowski 
related to the Permit Matters. 

The Town has adopted several resolutions related to the Florence Copper Project and 
the permits for the Production Test Facility, including those:1) Authorizing the execution, 



Subject: Gust Rosenfeld, P.L.C. Agreement  Meeting Date:  October 2, 2017 
Page 2 of 2 

filing, and litigation of the Town’s complaint to the Arizona Ombudsman Citizens’ Aide;  
2) Authorizing the execution, filing and litigation of the Town’s appeal challenging the 
validity and issuance of the Class II Renewal Air Quality Permit;  3) Authorizing the 
negotiation and execution of a Limited Joint Defense and Information Sharing 
Agreement; and 4) Authorizing the execution, filing and litigation of the Town’s appeal 
challenging the validity and issuance of the Class III In-Situ Production of Copper Permit 
(the “Permit Matters”). 
 
This action approves and ratifies the Town’s engagement of Gust Rosenfeld, P.L.C. for 
legal representation of the Town in regulatory matters, including administrative appeals 
and potential litigation against county, state, and federal environmental agencies with 
respect to the permitting process for the “Florence Copper Project,” including but not 
limited to permits for the proposed “Production Test Facility” and any future commercial 
operations. 
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 

The Town retains Barbara Rodriguez-Pashkowski (and Gust Rosenfeld, P.L.C.) as its 
lawyer for the permit matters. 
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 

The Town does not retain Barbara Rodriguez-Pashkowski (and Gust Rosenfeld, P.L.C.) 
as its lawyer for the Permit Matters. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The expenses for legal fees and related services, including retention of experts and 
consultants, are budgeted annually based upon the projected activities for the 
litigation/proceedings during the fiscal year. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Revised Terms of Engagement for Legal Services and Engagement Agreement letter 
dated September 7, 2017, with Gust Rosenfeld, P.L.C. 















Town of Florence
Summary of Warrants Paid

As of August 2017

Source Amount
Accounts Payable-Warrant Register 1,100,800.87                 

ACH/Wire Transfers

Annual Admin Fees 11/28/16 - 7/17/17 3,750.00

MerrillCFD08 trustee fee 1,000.00g

child support/assignment PR levys 3,975.33

credit/debit/analysis/bank fees 4,769.67
FSA Collateral & Disbursements/Infinisource claims reim 12,673.08
health insurance payments - UHC/Medical Dental Vision 193,988.58
AFLAC 5,093.00

deferred comp payments 25,059.01
Total Transfers 250,308.67

Electronic Retirement Transfers
ppd 1 - ASRS 45,093.68
ppd 2 - ASRS 45,871.71
ppd 3 - ASRS 45,769.84
ppd 1 - Securian (Firefighter Pension) 269.75
ppd 2 - Securian (Firefighter Pension) 310.78
ppd 3 - Securian (Firefighter Pension) 312.64

Total Retirement Transfers 137,628.40

Payroll Transfers  
ppd 1 227,333.32
ppd 2 218,056.00
ppd 3 238,321.48
Total Payroll Transfers 683,710.80

Credit Union Transfers
ppd 1 3,346.79
ppd 2 3,346.79
Total Credit Union Transfers 6,693.58
 
Electronic State Tax Transfers  
ppd 1 7,975.55
ppd 2 9,074.67
ppd 3 7,819.22
Total State Tax Deposits 24,869.44

Electronic Federal Tax Transfers/FICA/FWT
ppd 1 66,837.63
ppd 2 72,686.73
ppd 3 65,125.91
Total Federal Tax Deposits 204,650.27

Total Warrants 2,408,662.03                 



GL Account Check Check Merchant Name Invoice Invoice Check
Number Issue Date Number Date Description Amount

10160000 107307 8/10/2017 2nd Temporary 714531-OP 8/7/2017 Overpayment $30.00
10201500 107401 8/14/2017 WEX BANK 50761300 7/31/2017 Fuel $12,483.61
10202000 107250 8/3/2017 ARIZONA STATE TREASURER 17-Jul 8/1/2017 STATE JCEF $341.93
10202500 107250 8/3/2017 ARIZONA STATE TREASURER 17-Jul 8/1/2017 ZFAR 1 $1,185.94
10202501 107250 8/3/2017 ARIZONA STATE TREASURER 17-Jul 8/1/2017 ZFAR 2 $341.06

10203000 107273 8/3/2017 PINAL COUNTY TREASURER Jul-17 8/1/2017 Additional Assessment Justice Court Fee $48.85
10204000 107250 8/3/2017 ARIZONA STATE TREASURER 17-Jul 8/1/2017 STATE SURCHARGES $6,794.17
10206000 107480 8/23/2017 2nd Temporary TR2016000703 817 8/15/2017 Bond Refund $294.00
10209000 107250 8/3/2017 ARIZONA STATE TREASURER 17-Jul 8/1/2017 Victims Rights Enforcement $90.22
10232000 107264 8/3/2017 Florence Hospital at Anthem PPE 721/17 7/31/2017 Levy $611.10
10232000 107283 8/3/2017 Village of Copper Basin Community Assoc PPE 7/21/17 7/31/2017 Levy $146.58
10232000 107416 8/16/2017 Florence Hospital at Anthem PPE 804/17 8/15/2017 Levy $606.45
10232000 107436 8/16/2017 Village of Copper Basin Community Assoc PPE 804/17 8/15/2017 Levy $146.58
10232000 107521 8/28/2017 Florence Hospital at Anthem PPE 818/17 8/24/2017 Levy $494.90
10232000 107538 8/28/2017 Village of Copper Basin Community Assoc PPE 0818/17 8/24/2017 Levy $146.58
10241000 107280 8/3/2017 UNITED WAY OF PINAL COUNTY PPE 0721/17 7/31/2017 EMPLOYEES CONTRIBUTIONS $2.00
10241000 107433 8/16/2017 UNITED WAY OF PINAL COUNTY PPE 804/17 8/15/2017 EMPLOYEES CONTRIBUTIONS $2.00
10241000 107537 8/28/2017 UNITED WAY OF PINAL COUNTY PPE 0818/17 8/24/2017 EMPLOYEES CONTRIBUTIONS $2.00
10243000 107424 8/16/2017 NEW YORK LIFE INSURANCE 6929080 817 8/3/2017 monthly invoice $475.86
10250038 107250 8/3/2017 ARIZONA STATE TREASURER 17-Jul 8/1/2017 STATE FINES $873.56
10260000 107456 8/23/2017 2nd Temporary CM2017000075 817 8/15/2017 Restitution Payment $10.00

$25,127.39

10501201 107282 8/3/2017 Verizon Wireless 9789665618 7/21/2017 Council laptops $163.92
10501401 107269 8/3/2017 Maricopa Association of MB-00239 7/6/2017 Annual Assessment Dues for MAG $1,892.00
10501402 107331 8/10/2017 JOHN ANDERSON 815-16/17 8/9/2017 Per Diem for Centennial,Colo Trip $82.23
10501402 107336 8/10/2017 KRISTEN LARSEN 0815-16/17 8/9/2017 Per Diem for Centennial,Colo $82.23
10501402 107353 8/10/2017 VALLARIE WOOLRIDGE 0815-16/17 8/9/2017 per diem for Centennial,Colo Trip $82.23

10501402 107444 8/17/2017 JOHN ANDERSON 81717 8/17/2017
Per Diem for League Annual Conference 
2017 $157.31

10501402 107445 8/17/2017 KAREN WALL 81717 8/17/2017
Per Diem for League Annual Conference 
2017 $118.31

10501402 107446 Multiple KRISTEN LARSEN 81717 8/17/2017
Per Diem for League Annual Conference 
2017 $0.00

10501402 107448 8/17/2017 TARA WALTER 81717 8/17/2017
Per Diem for League Annual Conference 
2017 $118.31

10501402 107449 8/17/2017 VALLARIE WOOLRIDGE 81717 8/17/2017 per diem for League conference $157.31

10501402 141003813 8/14/2017 LEAGUE OF AZ CITIES AND TOWNS 073117 STMT 7/7/2017

League Annual Conference Pre-Conference 
registration for Lisa Garcia Karen Wall and 
Kristen Larsen. $80.00

10501403 141003813 8/14/2017 LEAGUE OF AZ CITIES AND TOWNS 073117 STMT 7/7/2017
Annual Conference pre-conference session 
for Tara Walter $40.00

$2,973.85

10502201 107282 8/3/2017 Verizon Wireless 9789665618 7/21/2017 Cell phones $108.94
10502209 107451 8/23/2017 ARIZONA GLOVE & SAFETY 7435379 8/9/2017 Hand cleaner for Fleet $9.25
10502217 107285 8/3/2017 American Legal 2017 S14 5/30/2017 Internet Renewal (Code of Ordinances) $756.14

10502401 141003813 8/14/2017 IIMC 073117 STMT 7/24/2017 Membership renewal for Maria Hernandez $125.00
10502401 141003813 8/14/2017 IIMC 073117 STMT 7/25/2017 Membership renewal for Lisa Garcia $225.00
10502402 107313 8/10/2017 BRENT BILLINGSLEY 815-16/17 8/9/2017 Per Diem for Centennial,Colo Trip $66.23

10502402 107443 8/17/2017 BRENT BILLINGSLEY 81717 8/17/2017
Per Diem for League Annual Conference 
2017 $157.31

Sub Total-

Sub Total-

Town Council:

Adminstration:



10502402 107447 8/17/2017 LISA GARCIA 81717 8/17/2017
Per Diem for League Annual Conference 
2017 $157.31

10502402 141003813 8/14/2017 HONG KONG RESTAURANT 073117 STMT 7/1/2017
Business Lunch; Brent Billingsley Lisa 
Garcia and Jess Knudson $31.00

10502402 141003813 8/14/2017 LEAGUE OF AZ CITIES AND TOWNS 073117 STMT 7/7/2017
Credit for cancellation of Trish Buchanan's 
registration. ($110.00)

10502402 141003813 8/14/2017 LEAGUE OF AZ CITIES AND TOWNS 073117 STMT 7/7/2017

League Annual Conference Pre-Conference 
registration for Lisa Garcia Karen Wall and 
Kristen Larsen. $40.00

10502402 141003813 8/14/2017 RITZ CARLTON-DOVE MOUNTAIN 073117 STMT 7/21/2017
Lodging for the 2017 ACMA Summer 
Conference for Brent Billingsley $302.42

10502403 141003813 8/14/2017 Inn at Eagle Mountain 073117 STMT 7/24/2017
Lodging for Maria Hernandez for Clerk's 
Annual Conference $256.20

10502408 107556 8/31/2017 PINAL COUNTY RECORDER 3186-AUG 17 8/16/2017 Prepaid Pinal Co Recordation $200.00
10502408 141003813 8/14/2017 Dollar General 073117 STMT 7/19/2017 Ice cream and cookies for Kids Club $26.52
10502408 141003813 8/14/2017 LANE AWARD MANUFACTURING 073117 STMT 7/19/2017 Purchase of 3 Keys to the City $320.19
10502420 107260 8/3/2017 DocUnited Imaging, LLC 102098 7/19/2017 Laserfiche Licenses & Support $15,649.26

$18,320.77

10503234 107387 8/14/2017 PINAL CO SHERIFF'S OFFICE 967 8/4/2017 INMATE HOUSING $3,067.06
10503301 107341 8/10/2017 OFFICE DEPOT INC 947687893 8/1/2017 Office supplies, canon ink cartridge. $117.83

$3,184.89

10504217 107346 8/10/2017 Rounds Consulting Group 1088 8/6/2017 Economic Impact Analysis/Reasearch $8,000.00
10504217 107418 8/16/2017 Gust Rosenfeld P.L.C. 326485 8/8/2017 legal services: Florence Copper $36,081.20
10504217 107418 8/16/2017 Gust Rosenfeld P.L.C. 326537 8/9/2017 legal services : Environmental Appeals $14,121.63
10504401 107337 8/10/2017 LEXIS NEXIS 3091066341 7/31/2017 legal research July 2017 $205.93

$58,408.76

10505201 107282 8/3/2017 Verizon Wireless 9789665618 7/21/2017 Cell phones $31.75
10505204 107405 8/16/2017 Advanced Infosystems 13943 8/10/2017 data processing of utility bills $947.40
10505227 107401 8/14/2017 WEX BANK 50761300 7/31/2017 Bank Fees-Credit ($22.81)

10505231 141003813 8/14/2017 Pitney Bowes Inc 073117 STMT 7/14/2017
Annual Maintenance for Folding Machine 
and Base $492.96

10505301 107429 8/16/2017 Staples Business Advantage 3348681035 8/3/2017 Office Supplies $42.39
10505403 107252 8/3/2017 Az Society of Certified Accountants CPA83117JM 8/1/2017 CPE Training Registration Fee $300.00
10505403 107263 Multiple Florence Fudge Company FINAN80217 8/2/2017 Dept lunch Training Mission/Vison $0.00
10505403 107330 8/10/2017 JOE JARVIS 80217 8/2/2017 Reim Mission/Vision Training $103.50
10505403 107467 8/23/2017 FRED PRYOR SEMINARS 22259033 7/31/2017 supervisor training transition $199.00

$2,094.19

10508201 107282 8/3/2017 Verizon Wireless 9789665618 7/21/2017 Cell phones $21.48
10508205 107314 8/10/2017 Casa Grande Valley Newspaper Inc. I95691 7/27/2017 Classified Ad for Building Inspector $28.31
10508217 107254 8/3/2017 Benefit Intelligence, Inc. (ConsultADoc) 5514 7/1/2017 Monthly service fee $555.00
10508217 107289 8/3/2017 Benefit Intelligence, Inc. (ConsultADoc) 5056 6/1/2017 Monthly service fee $555.00
10508217 107300 8/3/2017 INFINISOURCE, INC. 8957125 6/30/2017 Monthly administrative fee $292.05
10508217 107511 8/28/2017 Az Department of Public Safety 5X22 817 8/21/2017 Fingerprint background checks $110.00
10508217 107549 8/30/2017 INFINISOURCE, INC. 8942801 6/9/2017 Monthly administrative service fee $292.05
10508314 107284 8/3/2017 WALMART COMMUNITY # 0005 7118 TR01051 7/24/2017 Visa gift cards for July awards $527.20
10508314 141003813 8/14/2017 BAUDVILLE 073117 STMT 7/24/2017 FY 17/18 Svc Award Frames (20) $733.06
10508401 107326 8/10/2017 Grand Canyon State SBARBER8/17 8/3/2017 Scott Barber Membership $45.00

$3,159.15

10510201 107282 8/3/2017 Verizon Wireless 9789665618 7/21/2017 Cell phones $38.13

10510207 107431 8/16/2017 Toshiba Business Solutions,USA 13861971 8/3/2017
Maintenance Agreement Copier- 
Development Services $378.82

Sub Total-

Sub Total-

Sub Total-

Sub Total-

Sub Total-

Courts:

Legal:

Finance:

Human Resources:

Community Development:



10510209 107259 8/3/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 720188 7/26/2017 Tire pressure monitor for CD-1 $116.68
10510215 107492 8/23/2017 SOUTHWEST GAS CORPORATION VARIOUS 817 8/8/2017 Community Development Gas $31.13
10510215 107501 8/24/2017 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE 17-Jul 8/4/2017 ELECTRIC $833.69

10510217 107383 8/14/2017 Nu-Trend Architectural SVCS LLC 720171 8/7/2017
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
CONTRACT $5,060.00

10510408 141003813 8/14/2017 AMERICAN PLANNING ASSOCIATION 073117 STMT 7/26/2017 APA Nomination Application Fee $85.00
$6,543.45

10511201 107282 8/3/2017 Verizon Wireless 9789665618 7/21/2017 Cell phones $1,360.32
10511201 107316 8/10/2017 COX BUSINESS 207217901 717 7/30/2017 digital adapter-mthly fees $6.28
10511209 107451 8/23/2017 ARIZONA GLOVE & SAFETY 7435379 8/9/2017 Hand cleaner for Fleet $28.91
10511211 107286 8/3/2017 Arizona Office of Technology IN327869 5/30/2017 copier charges $437.92
10511215 107312 8/10/2017 BIA Jul-17 8/1/2017 104233-electric $253.43
10511215 107501 8/24/2017 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE 17-Jul 8/4/2017 ELECTRIC $1,973.97
10511302 107279 8/3/2017 THE WATER SHED 11234 7/5/2017 Ice for PD $10.97
10511302 107279 8/3/2017 THE WATER SHED 11518 7/13/2017 Ice for PD $27.43
10511302 107305 8/3/2017 THE WATER SHED 11169 6/26/2017 Ice for PD $10.97
10511302 107536 8/28/2017 THE WATER SHED 11289 7/24/2017 Ice for PD $32.91
10511302 107536 8/28/2017 THE WATER SHED 11486 8/14/2017 Ice for PD $27.43

10511403 107520 8/28/2017 FBINAA ARIZONA CHAPTER REGFEES11317 8/22/2017
Registration for: Chief, Lt, and Deanna for 
Nov. Training $297.00

10511408 107415 8/16/2017 Fire Fighter's Police Officer's FY17176 8/1/2017 Cancer Insurance $100.00

10511444 107541 8/28/2017 SAFEWAY INC. DONATION 8/22/2017 Donation for Family: $150.00 for Groceries $150.00
$4,717.54

10512207 107301 8/3/2017 LANGUAGE LINE SERVICES 4103033 6/30/2017 language line services $10.48

10512215 107492 8/23/2017 SOUTHWEST GAS CORPORATION VARIOUS 817 8/8/2017
Service to Police Evidence/Data Center 200 
E 6th Street $31.13

10512215 107501 8/24/2017 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE 17-Jul 8/4/2017 ELECTRIC $4,504.72
10512401 107245 8/1/2017 DFAS Cleveland AZ 2YTD46 7/31/2017 Books for Training $298.49

10512401 107453 8/23/2017 Az Law Enforcemetn Records Mngt 2X502017 8/14/2017
Registration for Belinda & Deanna (2 
@50.00) $100.00

10512403 107487 8/23/2017 RITA FRANCIS REIM72617-TRAININ 7/26/2017
Reimbursement for items: Communications 
Training/Consultants $35.56

$4,980.38

10513209 107259 8/3/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 47682 7/21/2017
Window regulator for PG G-792CM 
(volunteer) $109.03

10513209 107259 8/3/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 720086 7/25/2017 Shop towels $18.40

10513209 107308 8/10/2017 APPLIED Maintenance Supplies & Solutio 96829388 7/27/2017
Electrical connectors,wd-40,retainers for 
Fleet $106.10

10513209 107413 8/16/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 720950 8/4/2017
Radiator,water pump & hoses for PD G-
103DL (volunteer) $387.00

10513209 107413 8/16/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 720994 8/4/2017
Oil filter adapter gasket fod PD G-103DL 
(volunteer) $11.79

10513209 107413 8/16/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721119 8/7/2017
Fuel injector seal for PD G-103DL 
(volunteer) $17.57

10513209 107413 8/16/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721142 8/7/2017 Sand pad for PD G-103DL (volunteer) $3.24

10513209 107413 8/16/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721175 8/7/2017
Manifold,spark plugs for PD G-103DL 
(volunteer) $718.53

10513209 107413 8/16/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721178 8/7/2017 Hose clamps for PD G-103DL (volunteer) $2.35

10513209 107413 8/16/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721181 8/7/2017
Manifold gasket set for PD G-103DL 
(volunteer) $36.18

Sub Total-
Police Adminstration:

Sub Total-

Sub Total-

Police Support Services:

Police Volunteer Services:



10513209 107413 8/16/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721372 8/9/2017 Temp sensor for PD G-103DL (volunteer) $16.38
10513209 107413 8/16/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721456 8/10/2017 Alternator for PD G-103DL (volunteer) $151.08
10513209 107413 8/16/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721473 8/10/2017 Plastic weld for PD G-103DL (volunteer) $6.40
10513209 107413 8/16/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721578 8/11/2017 Service cap for PD G-103DL (volunteer) $1.10
10513209 107414 8/16/2017 Earnhardt  Service #25440 or 7118 566661 8/10/2017 Blanket: for PD Volunteer $510.43
10513209 107461 8/23/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721853 8/15/2017 TPMS Tool for Fleet $96.81
10514209 107248 8/3/2017 ARIZONA EMERGENCY PRODUCTS INV017352 7/25/2017 Hidh amp timer for PD G-922GL (patrol) $169.05

$2,361.44

10514209 107259 8/3/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 720086 7/25/2017 Shop towels $18.43
10514209 107274 8/3/2017 PURCELL TIRE COMPANY 6765022 7/28/2017 Blanket PO for PD Tires $829.86
10514209 107274 8/3/2017 PURCELL TIRE COMPANY 6765254 8/2/2017 Blanket PO for PD Tires $276.62

10514209 107308 8/10/2017 APPLIED Maintenance Supplies & Solutio 96829388 7/27/2017
Electrical connecters,wd-40,retainers for 
Fleet $106.10

10514209 107319 8/10/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 720508 7/31/2017 Batteries for PD G-869GE (patrol) $105.92

10514209 107319 8/10/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 720514 7/31/2017 Headlight pigtail fpr PD G-895GE (patrol) $14.84
10514209 107374 8/14/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 720859 8/3/2017 Batteries for PD G-311HB (patrol) $307.21
10514209 107374 8/14/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 720901 8/3/2017 CREDIT ($39.13)
10514209 107374 8/14/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721161 8/7/2017 Oil & filters for PD 987GB (patrol) $49.15
10514209 107374 8/14/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721264 8/8/2017 Heater hose for PD G-414FF (patrol) $73.91

10514209 107374 8/14/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721280 8/8/2017 Heater hose tool for PD G-414FF (patrol) $6.51
10514209 107374 8/14/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721355 8/9/2017 Coolant for PD G-414FF (patrol) $19.56
10514209 107403 8/16/2017 A Secure Towing LLC 16278 7/11/2017 PD Vehicle Towed for Repair $110.00
10514209 107413 8/16/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721398 8/9/2017 Blower motor for PD G-009FM (patrol) $49.45
10514209 107413 8/16/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721400 8/9/2017 A/C core for PD G-418FF (patrol) $3.65

10514209 107413 8/16/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721414 8/9/2017 Window regulator for PD G-044FM (patrol) $121.04

10514209 107417 8/16/2017 GARRETT MOTORS 5013295 8/11/2017 Inside door panel for PD G-311HB (patrol) $384.72
10514209 107422 8/16/2017 JONES AUTO CENTER 30696 7/10/2017 ABS Brake repair for PD G-920DL $2,352.69
10514209 107422 8/16/2017 JONES AUTO CENTER FLOR42 8/1/2017 Credit ($57.80)
10514209 107461 8/23/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721796 8/15/2017 Oil & filter for PD G-476EN (patrol) $38.58
10514209 107461 8/23/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721853 8/15/2017 TPMS Tool for Fleet $96.81
10514209 107461 8/23/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721897 8/16/2017 Oil & filter for PD G-871GE (patrol) $48.48

10514209 107519 8/28/2017 Dennis Watkins dba  Autosonics 6948 8/13/2017
Bodywork due to accedent for PD G-871GE 
(patrol) $1,302.80

10514209 107530 8/28/2017 PURCELL TIRE COMPANY 6765586 8/16/2017 Blanket PO for PD Tires $553.24
10514209 107530 8/28/2017 PURCELL TIRE COMPANY 6765677 8/21/2017 CREDIT ($553.24)
10514209 107530 8/28/2017 PURCELL TIRE COMPANY 6765678 8/21/2017 Blanket PO for PD Tires $594.28
10514302 107251 8/3/2017 AZ LAW ENFORCEMENT RADAR 17-1111 7/6/2017 Repair on radar units $106.73
10514302 107258 8/3/2017 DANIEL HUGHES REIM-OPS 7/14/2017 Reimbursement for Ops supplies $25.50
10514304 107552 8/30/2017 UNIVERSAL POLICE SUPPLY INC 210130 6/21/2017 Portion of Officer's Outer Vest $130.00
10514307 107502 8/24/2017 Ironwood Animal Hospital 110414 8/10/2017 Exams/Meds for K-9 Russ: FY 16/17 $291.50

10514309 107348 8/10/2017 SAN DIEGO POLICE EQUIP. CO. 628638 7/27/2017
Ammo: CS/1000 180 gr 
TMJ/CS500/Federal.223 55 GR $3,250.26

10514314 107281 8/3/2017 UNIVERSAL POLICE SUPPLY INC 210742 7/8/2017 Shoulder patches: New hire $97.18
10514314 107434 8/16/2017 UNIVERSAL POLICE SUPPLY INC 210920 7/12/2017 Uniforms New Hire: Kennard $103.72
10514401 107275 8/3/2017 ROCKY MOUNTAIN INFO NETWORK 21231 7/14/2017 MEMBERSHIP $100.00
10514403 107472 8/23/2017 JERRY LOCKE 801 815-16/17 8/14/2017 Per Diem: Training Tucson (2 days) $30.00
10514403 107472 8/23/2017 JERRY LOCKE 801 815-16/17 8/14/2017 Per Diem: Training: Chandler (2 days) $30.00

10514403 107503 8/24/2017 PHILLIP J. RICCOMINI 828-102617 8/16/2017
Per Diems for 12 lunches & 12 dinners: ALP 
Training Phoenix 2017 $492.00

Sub Total-
Police Operations:



10514403 107503 8/24/2017 PHILLIP J. RICCOMINI REIMLAB81117 8/11/2017 Reimbursement for Training Portal Access $52.00
10514408 107415 8/16/2017 Fire Fighter's Police Officer's FY17176 8/1/2017 Cancer Insurance $1,250.00

$12,772.57

10515201 107282 8/3/2017 Verizon Wireless 9789665618 7/21/2017 Cell phones $590.44
10515207 107367 8/14/2017 CallBack Staffing Solutions LLC 6090 8/1/2017 annual charges for staffing software $1,456.56
10515209 107259 8/3/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 720086 7/25/2017 Shop towels $18.43

10515209 107308 8/10/2017 APPLIED Maintenance Supplies & Solutio 96829388 7/27/2017
Electrical connectors ,wd-40,retainers for 
Fleet $106.10

10515209 107461 8/23/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721853 8/15/2017 TPMS Tool for Fleet $96.81
10515215 107312 8/10/2017 BIA Jul-17 8/1/2017 104233-electric $253.42
10515215 107501 8/24/2017 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE 17-Jul 8/4/2017 ELECTRIC $1,866.39

10515217 107383 8/14/2017 Nu-Trend Architectural SVCS LLC 720171 8/7/2017
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
CONTRACT $5,060.00

10515301 107385 8/14/2017 PETTY CASH - FIRE DEPT 923-933 8/10/2017 Walmart-folders for vials of life program $16.11

10515407 107385 8/14/2017 PETTY CASH - FIRE DEPT 923-933 8/10/2017
dollar general purchase - for electric light 
parade candy $23.97

10515408 107415 8/16/2017 Fire Fighter's Police Officer's FY17176 8/1/2017 Cancer Insurance $100.00
$9,588.23

10516209 107360 8/11/2017 Superstition Fire & Medical District 4128 6/14/2017
shop 138 codes and travel time, delivered to 
ww williams $727.00

10516209 107374 8/14/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 720656 8/1/2017 bracket $6.84

10516209 107394 8/14/2017 Superstition Fire & Medical District 4175 7/20/2017
shop 138 blower motor,filter, 2 tires, oil, 
DEF, oil sample kit and test. $2,920.16

10516209 107394 8/14/2017 Superstition Fire & Medical District 4176 7/20/2017
shop 131 drain plug and adapter, towing, 
sensor, diesel $1,028.15

10516302 107376 8/14/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 230976 7/28/2017 blue and red electrical tape $8.41

10516302 107385 8/14/2017 PETTY CASH - FIRE DEPT 923-933 8/10/2017 dollar general - bags for vials of life program $8.70
10516302 107385 8/14/2017 PETTY CASH - FIRE DEPT 923-933 8/10/2017 dollar general puchase - asprin $8.70
10516302 107385 8/14/2017 PETTY CASH - FIRE DEPT 923-933 8/10/2017 dollar general purchase - mouse traps $5.38
10516302 107385 8/14/2017 PETTY CASH - FIRE DEPT 923-933 8/10/2017 florence true value - tags $10.65
10516302 107385 8/14/2017 PETTY CASH - FIRE DEPT 923-933 8/10/2017 home depot- carpet metal $7.54
10516302 107385 8/14/2017 PETTY CASH - FIRE DEPT 923-933 8/10/2017 home depot-mounting tape $21.58
10516302 107385 8/14/2017 PETTY CASH - FIRE DEPT 923-933 8/10/2017 sam's club purchase - jet dry $10.76
10516302 107385 8/14/2017 PETTY CASH - FIRE DEPT 923-933 8/10/2017 target-grill brush $6.15
10516302 107390 8/14/2017 ROADRUNNER OXYGEN SVC 65284 7/27/2017 Cylinder refill $10.59
10516304 107361 8/11/2017 UNITED FIRE EQUIPMENT CO. 663581 5/4/2017 annual uniform allowance Eggers $168.52
10516304 107361 8/11/2017 UNITED FIRE EQUIPMENT CO. 664059 5/19/2017 annual uniform allowance Gribble $1.13

10516304 107384 8/14/2017 PETER MONTGOMERY UNIPTS817 7/16/2017
PT shoe reimbursement for Montgomery 17-
18 $82.87

10516304 107432 8/16/2017 UNITED FIRE EQUIPMENT CO. 668505 8/4/2017 uniform allowance for Kemp FY 17-18 $124.26
10516311 107385 8/14/2017 PETTY CASH - FIRE DEPT 923-933 8/10/2017 harbor freight - bolt cutter $22.68
10516321 107338 8/10/2017 Life Assist 808144 7/18/2017 EMS Consumables Supplies $2,000.00
10516401 107328 8/10/2017 INT'L ASSOC. ARSON INVESTIGATO 1315983 8/2/2017 Membership Dues for Moser and Bruin $135.00
10516408 107415 8/16/2017 Fire Fighter's Police Officer's FY17176 8/1/2017 Cancer Insurance $650.00

$7,965.07

10517201 107257 8/3/2017 CENTURYLINK FIRE7347 7/19/2017 Hunt HwyFire-7347 $215.35
10517201 107316 8/10/2017 COX BUSINESS 221288801 817 8/3/2017 phone lines for station #2 $109.23

10517203 107431 8/16/2017 Toshiba Business Solutions,USA 13842597 7/28/2017 Maintenance Agreement Copier Station #2 $196.18

10517209 107394 8/14/2017 Superstition Fire & Medical District 4171 7/18/2017
shop 139 maintenance, hose, coolant, travel 
time $904.51

Fire Station #1

Sub Total-
Fire Adminstration:

Sub Total-

Sub Total-
Fire Station #2



10517209 107394 8/14/2017 Superstition Fire & Medical District 7177 7/20/2017 DEF Diesel Exhaust  Fluid $19.71
10517212 107421 8/16/2017 Johnson Utilities 13808101 817 8/5/2017 water at station #2 landscaping $47.30
10517212 107421 8/16/2017 Johnson Utilities 13808201 817 8/5/2017 water at station #2 $485.26
10517215 107349 8/10/2017 SOUTHWEST GAS CORPORATION HUNTHWY717 8/1/2017 Hunt Hwy-Gas $99.31
10517215 107492 8/23/2017 SOUTHWEST GAS CORPORATION VARIOUS 817 8/8/2017 Hunt Hwy-Gas $86.82
10517215 107501 8/24/2017 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE 17-Jul 8/4/2017 ELECTRIC $2,079.88

10517304 107361 8/11/2017 UNITED FIRE EQUIPMENT CO. 28463 4/5/2017 Uniform allowance for Kells Returning Pants ($60.54)

10517312 107351 8/10/2017 UNITED FIRE EQUIPMENT CO. 667321 7/17/2017

PPE Turn outs, Boots, Helmets to replace 
equipment found to be no longer viable in a 
live burn situation. $318.14

10517315 107354 8/10/2017 WAXIE SANITARY SUPPLY 76826032 7/18/2017 Janitorial Supplies $562.55
10517315 107354 8/10/2017 WAXIE SANITARY SUPPLY 76835385 7/21/2017 Janitorial Supplies $71.53
10517321 107338 8/10/2017 Life Assist 808144 7/18/2017 EMS Consumables Supplies $1,263.02
10517321 107338 8/10/2017 Life Assist 808278 7/19/2017 EMS Consumables Supplies $110.91
10517408 107415 8/16/2017 Fire Fighter's Police Officer's FY17176 8/1/2017 Cancer Insurance $550.00

$7,059.16

10519201 107282 8/3/2017 Verizon Wireless 9789665618 7/21/2017 Cell phones $377.66
10519201 141003813 8/14/2017 AMAZON.COM 073117 STMT 7/25/2017 Conference Phone Battery $17.94
10519207 141003813 8/14/2017 ADOBE SYSTEMS INCORPORATED 073117 STMT 7/29/2017 Adobe Creative Cloud $54.34
10519207 141003813 8/14/2017 RAMNODE.COM 073117 STMT 7/22/2017 Town Website Hosting $83.00
10519211 141003813 8/14/2017 AMAZON.COM 073117 STMT 7/21/2017 Wireless 4G AirCard for WW Laptop $154.44
10519222 107316 8/10/2017 COX BUSINESS 607998101 717 7/25/2017 Cable and ditgital box monthly fees $33.54

10519323 107554 8/30/2017 ZONES, INC K07076150101 6/20/2017
CONTEX IQ 4490 SCANNER PROMO 
BUNDLE $7,967.71

10519323 107554 8/30/2017 ZONES, INC K07104560101 6/20/2017
Backup 12.5 Advanced Server Including 
AAP $1,391.36

10519323 107554 8/30/2017 ZONES, INC K07104560101 6/20/2017
Backup 12.5 Advanced Virtual Host 
Including AAP $6,195.90

10519323 141003813 8/14/2017 Lepide Software 073117 STMT 7/19/2017 Kernel OST Email Recovery Software $199.00
10519323 141003813 8/14/2017 Microsoft Corporation 073117 STMT 7/1/2017 Office 365 Monthly Fee $674.48

10519323 141003813 8/14/2017 SendGrid 073117 STMT 7/2/2017
Town Marketing and Newsletter Email 
Solution $1.43

10519403 107495 8/23/2017 StormWind 17393 8/21/2017 Microsot All Access Bundle - 12 Months $990.00
$18,140.80

10520211 107290 8/3/2017 BENSON SYSTEMS 180211 5/17/2017 Alarm System Monitoring $49.95
10520211 107290 8/3/2017 BENSON SYSTEMS 181752 6/16/2017 Alarm System Monitoring $49.95
10520215 107492 8/23/2017 SOUTHWEST GAS CORPORATION VARIOUS 817 8/8/2017 GAS-133 N Main St $31.13
10520215 107501 8/24/2017 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE 17-Jul 8/4/2017 ELECTRIC $970.77
10520302 107279 8/3/2017 THE WATER SHED 11389 7/31/2017 Drinking water for Fitness Center Staff $15.91
10520302 107540 8/28/2017 WAXIE SANITARY SUPPLY 76882127 8/11/2017 Janitorial Supplies for Fitness Center $315.07

$1,432.78

10521203 107431 8/16/2017 Toshiba Business Solutions,USA 13849337 8/1/2017
Maintenance Agreement, BW and Color 
copies for Copier at Community Services $454.70

10521209 107451 8/23/2017 ARIZONA GLOVE & SAFETY 7435379 8/9/2017 Hand cleaner for Fleet $11.56
10521301 107272 8/3/2017 OFFICE DEPOT INC 941775873 7/11/2017 Replacement Ink Cartridges for Plotter $439.78

10521301 107272 8/3/2017 OFFICE DEPOT INC 944444265 7/19/2017
Matte Black TOner for Plotter at Fitness 
Center $87.96

10521301 107272 8/3/2017 OFFICE DEPOT INC 945119791 7/21/2017 11x17 LEDGER PAPER $44.07

10521301 107529 8/28/2017 OFFICE DEPOT INC 952409616 8/11/2017
Toner Cartridges for Park Maintenance 
printer. $110.26

10521301 107529 8/28/2017 OFFICE DEPOT INC 952974878 8/14/2017 Office Supplies for Parks and Recreation $8.63

Sub Total-
Information Technology:

Sub Total-
Fitness Center:

Sub Total-
Parks & Recreation Admin:



10521401 107515 8/28/2017 Casa Grande Valley Newspaper Inc. 904/17 1358 9/4/2017 Eight issues of Pinal Ways Magazine $12.00
10521402 107256 8/3/2017 BRYAN HUGHES 808-810/17 7/11/2017 Per Diem for APRA Conference $82.00
10521402 141003813 8/14/2017 ARIZONA PARKS AND 073117 STMT 7/3/2017 APRA Annual Conference - Hughes $455.00

$1,705.96

10522201 107282 8/3/2017 Verizon Wireless 9789665618 7/21/2017 Cell phones $170.00
10522207 107408 8/16/2017 Arizona's Best Choice Pest & Termite Svc 546543 7/10/2017 Heritage Park Gopher Control Service $185.00
10522207 107408 8/16/2017 Arizona's Best Choice Pest & Termite Svc 550409 8/8/2017 Heritage Park Gopher Control Service $185.00
10522207 107509 8/28/2017 Arizona's Best Choice Pest & Termite Svc 547443 7/24/2017 Heritage Park Gopher Control Service $185.00
10522209 107374 8/14/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721290 8/8/2017 Tail light & mirror PR-7 $187.56
10522209 107413 8/16/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721574 8/11/2017 Oil & filter for PR-9 $55.40
10522215 107501 8/24/2017 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE 17-Jul 8/4/2017 ELECTRIC $1,899.49
10522302 107265 8/3/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 230523 7/3/2017 Supplies for Park Maintenance repairs $4.21
10522302 107265 8/3/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 230583 7/10/2017 Supplies for Park Maintenance repairs $37.22
10522302 107265 8/3/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 230584 7/10/2017 Credit for L&G Tube ($10.52)
10522302 107265 8/3/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 230589 7/10/2017 Supplies for Park Maintenance repairs $18.74
10522302 107265 8/3/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 230590 7/10/2017 Supplies for Park Maintenance repairs $4.37
10522302 107265 8/3/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 230595 7/10/2017 Supplies for Park Maintenance repairs $4.29
10522302 107265 8/3/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 230619 7/11/2017 Supplies for Park Maintenance repairs $43.90
10522302 107265 8/3/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 230624 7/11/2017 Supplies for Park Maintenance repairs $17.57
10522302 107265 8/3/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 230657 7/13/2017 Supplies for Park Maintenance repairs $37.84
10522302 107265 8/3/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 230763 7/19/2017 Supplies for Park Maintenance repairs $45.60
10522302 107265 8/3/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 230793 7/20/2017 Supplies for Park Maintenance repairs $5.29
10522302 107265 8/3/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 230845 7/21/2017 Supplies for Park Maintenance repairs $11.59
10522302 107265 8/3/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 230890 7/25/2017 Supplies for Park Maintenance repairs $80.48
10522302 107265 8/3/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 230907 7/25/2017 Supplies for Park Maintenance repairs $5.70
10522302 107265 8/3/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 230924 7/26/2017 Supplies for Park Maintenance repairs $49.72
10522302 107265 8/3/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 230944 7/27/2017 Supplies for Park Maintenance repairs $10.49
10522302 107265 8/3/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 230967 7/27/2017 Supplies for Park Maintenance repairs $13.02

10522302 107279 8/3/2017 THE WATER SHED 11294 7/19/2017 Drinking water for Park Maintenance Staff $19.75

10522302 107279 8/3/2017 THE WATER SHED 11384 7/4/2017 Drinking water for Park Maintenance Staff $13.16
10522302 107413 8/16/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721111 8/7/2017 Supplies for Park Maintenance Tractors $108.45
10522302 107413 8/16/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721139 8/7/2017 Supplies for Park Maintenance Tractors $11.70
10522302 107413 8/16/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721140 8/7/2017 Supplies for Park Maintenance Tractors $3.68
10522302 107517 8/28/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721485 8/10/2017 Supplies for Park Maintenance Tractors $19.33

10522302 107536 8/28/2017 THE WATER SHED 11488 8/14/2017 Drinking water for Park Maintenance Staff $43.33
10522302 107540 8/28/2017 WAXIE SANITARY SUPPLY 76895747 8/18/2017 Sanitary Supplies for Park Maintenance $170.87
10522311 107266 8/3/2017 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 7022172 7/25/2017 Shovels, rakes and fencing supplies $240.75
10522315 107514 8/28/2017 Brady Industries, LLC 5521964 8/21/2017 Black Trash Liners for Park Maintenance $536.92
10522315 107540 8/28/2017 WAXIE SANITARY SUPPLY 76894410 8/18/2017 Sanitary Supplies for Park Maintenance $38.74
10522317 107249 8/3/2017 ARIZONA STATE PRISON-FLORENCE 04117B20170720 7/24/2017 INMATE LABOR/WORK PROGRAM $76.00
10522317 107407 8/16/2017 ARIZONA STATE PRISON-FLORENCE A04118B20170803 8/8/2017 INMATE LABOR/WORK PROGRAM $64.00
10522317 107410 8/16/2017 CEMEX 9436080323 8/2/2017 AB Gravel $385.94
10522317 107542 8/30/2017 ARIZONA STATE PRISON-FLORENCE A04117A20170511 5/19/2017 INMATE LABOR/WORK PROGRAM $68.00
10522317 107543 8/30/2017 ARROYO FENCE CO. 1723 5/24/2017 cage for main st park $169.05

$5,216.63

10523201 107316 8/10/2017 COX BUSINESS 228541501 717 7/29/2017 Cable Svc for Library/Community Center $128.75

10523208 107535 8/28/2017 TAKEFORM 62988 8/16/2017
Updated Signage for Library and Community
Center $529.01

10523208 141003813 8/14/2017 TAKEFORM 073117 STMT 7/14/2017
Updated Signage for Library and Community
Center (deposit) $352.67

10523215 107501 8/24/2017 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE 17-Jul 8/4/2017 ELECTRIC $6,655.02

Community Center Facility:

Sub Total-
Parks Maintenance:

Sub Total-



10523302 107279 8/3/2017 THE WATER SHED 11297 7/14/2017 Drinking water for Community Center Staff $13.16

10523302 107279 8/3/2017 THE WATER SHED 11386 7/31/2017 Drinking water for Community Center Staff $19.75

10523302 107536 8/28/2017 THE WATER SHED 11677 8/17/2017 Drinking water for Community Center Staff $19.75

10523401 141003813 8/14/2017 MOOD MEDIA CORPORATE 073117 STMT 7/11/2017
Pandora Music Subscription - Library and 
Community Center $29.30

$7,747.41

10524201 107282 8/3/2017 Verizon Wireless 9789665618 7/21/2017 Cell phones $17.94
10524215 107492 8/23/2017 SOUTHWEST GAS CORPORATION VARIOUS 817 8/8/2017 174 W 1st-Aquatics $49.25
10524215 107501 8/24/2017 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE 17-Jul 8/4/2017 ELECTRIC $4,466.90

10524224 107322 8/10/2017 DENISE GORDEN 17-Jul 8/1/2017 Instructor Fees for July Zumba and Aerobics $300.00
10524302 107279 8/3/2017 THE WATER SHED 11298 7/19/2017 Drikning water for Aquatic Center Staff $19.75
10524302 107305 8/3/2017 THE WATER SHED 11194 6/29/2017 Driking water for Aquatic Center Staff $19.75
10524302 107437 8/16/2017 WALMART COMMUNITY # 0005 7118 TR08256 8/7/2017 Cleanning Supplies for AC $50.53
10524302 107536 8/28/2017 THE WATER SHED 11460 8/3/2017 Drikning water for Aquatic Center Staff $26.32
10524302 107536 8/28/2017 THE WATER SHED 11676 8/18/2017 Drikning water for Aquatic Center Staff $32.91
10524302 141003813 8/14/2017 RIBBONS GALORE INC 073117 STMT 7/12/2017 Ribbons for Swim Meets $369.05
10524304 107295 8/3/2017 EAST VALLEY SPORTS TB1517 6/15/2017 LG Hats $821.61
10524310 107439 8/16/2017 HILL BROTHERS CHEMICAL CO, 50906851 6/30/2017 Chemicals for Pool $1,672.85

10524401 141003813 8/14/2017 MOOD MEDIA CORPORATE 073117 STMT 7/11/2017
Pandora Music Subscription - Aquatic 
Center $29.30

$7,876.16

10525201 107282 8/3/2017 Verizon Wireless 9789665618 7/21/2017 Cell phones $71.80
10525217 107526 8/28/2017 KIM A. HUNTER Aug-17 8/24/2017 Teen Leadership Program Advisor $2,000.00
10525224 107452 8/23/2017 Arizona Humanities DEC062017 8/17/2017 Guest Speaker Fee-Lecture 1052-2018 $100.00
10525224 107452 8/23/2017 Arizona Humanities FEB072018 8/16/2017 Guest Speaker Fee-Lecture 1062-2018 $100.00
10525224 107452 8/23/2017 Arizona Humanities JAN032018 8/17/2017 Guest Speaker Fee-Lecture 1053-2018 $100.00
10525224 107452 8/23/2017 Arizona Humanities MAR072018 8/17/2017 Guest Speaker Fee-Lecture 1054-2018 $100.00
10525224 107452 8/23/2017 Arizona Humanities NOV082017 8/17/2017 Guest Speaker Fee-Lecture 1051-2018 $100.00

10525224 107518 8/28/2017 DENISE GORDEN CONTRACT817 8/25/2017
August Aqua Aerobics & Aqua Zumba 
Instruction $300.00

10525302 107430 8/16/2017 SURF & SKI ENTERPRISES 150600 8/11/2017
Florence Teen Council Shirts for AZ League 
of Cities $187.55

10525302 107437 8/16/2017 WALMART COMMUNITY # 0005 7118 TR05414 8/7/2017
Supplies for the Before and Agter the Bell 
Program $215.71

10525302 107539 8/28/2017 WALMART COMMUNITY # 0005 7118 TR05424 8/18/2017
Supplies for the Before and Agter the Bell 
Program $16.52

10525402 107246 8/3/2017 Alison, Feliz 0808-10/17 7/11/2017
Per Diem  and Parking Fees for APRA 
Conference $82.00

10525402 107262 8/3/2017 ERASMO MENDIVIL JR. 80817-10/17 7/11/2017
Mileage reimbursement for APRA 
Conference $52.00

10525402 107262 8/3/2017 ERASMO MENDIVIL JR. 80817-10/17 7/11/2017
Per Diem and Parking Fees for APRA 
Conference $82.00

10525402 107267 8/3/2017 JOHN NIXON 089-10/17 7/3/2017
Mileage reimbursement for APRA 
Conference $62.60

10525402 107267 8/3/2017 JOHN NIXON 089-10/17 7/3/2017 Parking Fees for APRA Conference $33.00
10525402 107270 8/3/2017 MEGAN CETTA AUG 08-10/17 7/11/2017 Per Diem for APRA Conference $52.00

10525402 107525 8/28/2017 JOHN NIXON APRA1NITEREF 8/22/2017
APRA Conference & Expo - Lodging 1-night 
(JNixon) Reimbursement $100.19

10525402 141003813 8/14/2017 ARIZONA PARKS AND 073117 STMT 7/3/2017 APRA Annual Conference - Cetta $455.00
10525402 141003813 8/14/2017 ARIZONA PARKS AND 073117 STMT 7/5/2017 APRA Annual Conference - Mendivil $455.00

Sub Total-
Aquatics Progams:

Sub Total-
Recreation Programs:



10525402 141003813 8/14/2017 ARIZONA PARKS AND 073117 STMT 7/5/2017 APRA Annual Conference - Nixon $455.00
$5,120.37

10526201 107282 8/3/2017 Verizon Wireless 9789665618 7/21/2017 Cell phones $27.18
10526217 107329 8/10/2017 JASON REYNOLDS Jul-17 8/1/2017 Graphic Design for event Flyers $250.00

10526222 107409 8/16/2017 Celestial Nights Family Entertainment 559 8/10/2017
Movie Screen Rental for Movie in the Park 
10/14/17 $1,039.10

10526302 141003813 8/14/2017 BROWN PAPER TICKETS 073117 STMT 7/19/2017 Tickets for Historic Home Tour $55.95
10526302 141003813 8/14/2017 Dollar General 073117 STMT 7/4/2017 Table Clothes for 4th of July $10.87
10526401 141003813 8/14/2017 National Recreation & Park Asocication 073117 STMT 7/13/2017 Membership - AFeliz $99.00
10526402 141003813 8/14/2017 ARIZONA PARKS AND 073117 STMT 7/5/2017 APRA Annual Conference - Feliz $455.00

10526407 141003813 8/14/2017 Facebook 073117 STMT 7/1/2017
Social Media Boost - 4th of July Freedom 
Fest  FY17 $66.51

$2,003.61

10528201 107459 8/23/2017 COX BUSINESS 235531701 817 8/11/2017 digital adapter-mthly fees $19.91
10528209 107282 8/3/2017 Verizon Wireless 9789665618 7/21/2017 Cell phones $18.67
10528209 107319 8/10/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 720207 7/26/2017 Radiator,hoses,water pump for SC-4 $298.72
10528209 107319 8/10/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 720376 7/28/2017 Super weatherstrip for SC-4 $8.47
10528209 107319 8/10/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 720406 7/28/2017 Radiator fan assy, for SC-4 $154.57
10528209 107532 8/28/2017 Robert Horne Ford 328434 8/19/2017 A/C repair for SC-16 $454.13
10528215 107492 8/23/2017 SOUTHWEST GAS CORPORATION VARIOUS 817 8/8/2017 SR CTR NATURAL GAS $49.25
10528215 107501 8/24/2017 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE 17-Jul 8/4/2017 ELECTRIC $1,779.78
10528302 107533 8/28/2017 SAFEWAY INC. 803667 7/11/2017 misc supplies for meals $23.63
10528302 107536 8/28/2017 THE WATER SHED 11035 7/3/2017 Ice for year $18.10
10528302 107536 8/28/2017 THE WATER SHED 11290 7/24/2017 Ice for year $18.10
10528302 107536 8/28/2017 THE WATER SHED 11385 7/31/2017 Ice for year $11.52
10528302 107536 8/28/2017 THE WATER SHED 11432 8/7/2017 Ice for year $11.52
10528302 107536 8/28/2017 THE WATER SHED 11487 8/14/2017 Ice for year $11.52
10528302 107536 8/28/2017 THE WATER SHED 11521 7/10/2017 Ice for year $7.40
10528302 107539 8/28/2017 WALMART COMMUNITY # 0005 7118 TR02512 7/18/2017 misc supplies for meals $92.96
10528302 107539 8/28/2017 WALMART COMMUNITY # 0005 7118 TR04513 8/2/2017 misc supplies for meals $180.56
10528302 141003813 8/14/2017 AMAZON.COM 073117 STMT 7/1/2017 Credit Voucher Amazon 3yr Asurion ($31.61)

10528402 141003813 8/14/2017 PRESCOTT RESORT & CONF CTR 073117 STMT 7/19/2017
Hotel room for Tonya and Laura for ASCA 
conference $208.04

10528444 141003813 8/14/2017 A & M PIZZA 073117 STMT 7/21/2017 Senior Meal $110.60
$3,445.84

10529207 107294 8/3/2017 CountWise The People Counting Solution 2017-427 6/1/2017
CountWise Reporting from June'16 until 
June'17 $300.00

10529301 141003813 8/14/2017 AMAZON.COM 073117 STMT 7/1/2017 Misc Office Supplies $257.99
10529301 141003813 8/14/2017 AMAZON.COM 073117 STMT 7/1/2017 Office Supplies $375.52

10529302 141003813 8/14/2017 AMAZON.COM 073117 STMT 7/26/2017
Operating Expenses - Popcorn Portion 
Packs $34.93

10529302 141003813 8/14/2017 AMAZON.COM 073117 STMT 7/26/2017
Operating Expenses - Replacement Straight 
Blades $32.83

10529308 107253 8/3/2017 BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS 4011969696 7/25/2017 Books $53.88
10529308 107253 8/3/2017 BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS 4011969697 7/25/2017 Books/NF $29.00
10529308 107253 8/3/2017 BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS 4011969698 7/25/2017 Non Fiction/DVD $21.83
10529308 107253 8/3/2017 BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS T61616280 7/25/2017 Books/NF $11.24
10529308 107253 8/3/2017 BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS T61616281 7/25/2017 Non Fiction/DVD $101.25
10529308 107366 8/14/2017 BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS 4011974747 7/27/2017 Books $21.99
10529308 107366 8/14/2017 BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS 4011974748 7/31/2017 Non Fiction/DVD $26.68
10529308 107366 8/14/2017 BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS 4011974749 7/31/2017 Fiction Books/Audio $436.54
10529308 107366 8/14/2017 BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS 4011979108 8/7/2017 Non Fiction/DVD $23.84
10529308 107366 8/14/2017 BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS 4011979109 8/7/2017 Fiction Books/Audio $148.36

Sub Total-
Special Events:

Sub Total-
Senior Center:

Sub Total-
Library:



10529308 107366 8/14/2017 BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS 4011979110 8/7/2017 Children's/Juv/YA Books $953.37
10529308 107366 8/14/2017 BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS T61905360 8/1/2017 Books/NF $14.99
10529308 107366 8/14/2017 BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS T61905361 8/1/2017 Non Fiction/DVD $47.22
10529308 107454 8/23/2017 BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS 4011978083 8/16/2017 Children's/Juv/YA Books $151.01
10529308 107454 8/23/2017 BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS 4011987080 8/16/2017 Books $51.49
10529308 107454 8/23/2017 BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS 4011987081 8/16/2017 Non Fiction/DVD $15.94
10529308 107454 8/23/2017 BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS 4011987082 8/16/2017 Fiction Books/Audio $174.77
10529308 107454 8/23/2017 BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS T623809710 8/8/2017 Non Fiction/DVD $168.23
10529308 107454 8/23/2017 BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS T62721020 8/15/2017 Non Fiction/DVD $189.37
10529308 107513 8/28/2017 BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS 4011990826 8/21/2017 Fiction Books/Audio $38.49
10529308 107513 8/28/2017 BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS 4011990827 8/21/2017 Children's/Juv/YA Books $170.81
10529308 107513 8/28/2017 BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS 4011990828 8/21/2017 Non Fiction Books/DVDS $98.93
10529308 107544 8/30/2017 BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS T56824410 3/22/2017 DVD's $53.22
10529308 107544 8/30/2017 BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS T5683740 3/28/2017 DVD's $18.74
10529444 141003813 8/14/2017 AMAZON.COM 073117 STMT 7/1/2017 Programming Supplies $12.74
10529444 141003813 8/14/2017 AMAZON.COM 073117 STMT 7/1/2017 Programming Supplies $89.55
10529444 141003813 8/14/2017 AMAZON.COM 073117 STMT 7/1/2017 Programming Supplies $163.93
10529444 141003813 8/14/2017 AMAZON.COM 073117 STMT 7/1/2017 Programming Supplies $870.93

$5,159.61

10530201 107282 8/3/2017 Verizon Wireless 9789665618 7/21/2017 Cell phones $106.55
10530209 107340 8/10/2017 Manatee Tire & Auto Inc., dba 170316 8/2/2017 4 Tires for ST-79 $143.82
10530217 107395 8/14/2017 TERRACON CONSULTANTS INC T933937 7/18/2017 Geotechnical Engineering Services $2,841.00

10530301 107534 8/28/2017 Staples Business Advantage 3349234227 8/9/2017
ENGINEERING BLANKET PO - Office 
Supplies $96.70

10530301 107534 8/28/2017 Staples Business Advantage 3349234228 8/9/2017
ENGINEERING BLANKET PO - Office 
Supplies $6.73

10530301 107534 8/28/2017 Staples Business Advantage 3349234229 8/9/2017
ENGINEERING BLANKET PO - Office 
Supplies $48.49

10530301 141003813 8/14/2017 AMAZON.COM 073117 STMT 7/20/2017 Mailing / Shipping Label Maker & Supplies $72.21

10530304 107372 8/14/2017 COLLINS, CHRISTIAN UNIBOOT-17/18 7/26/2017
BOOT ALLOWANCE 17/18 FY CHRISTIAN 
C $169.99

10530304 107372 8/14/2017 COLLINS, CHRISTIAN UNIREF-17/18 7/27/2017
PANT ALLOWANCE 17/18 FY CHRISTIAN 
C $289.05

10530324 107391 8/14/2017 Staples Business Advantage 3346893691 7/20/2017 CD KEYBOARD & MOUSE $20.93
10530324 107391 8/14/2017 Staples Business Advantage 3347784122 7/20/2017 CD KEYBOARD & MOUSE $63.41

$3,858.88

10531201 107282 8/3/2017 Verizon Wireless 9789665618 7/21/2017 Cell phones $116.25
10531207 107399 8/14/2017 UNITED EXTERMINATING 193151 8/1/2017 Blanket P.O./ Exterminating $35.00
10531207 107399 8/14/2017 UNITED EXTERMINATING 193152 8/1/2017 Blanket P.O./ Exterminating $35.00
10531207 107399 8/14/2017 UNITED EXTERMINATING 193153 8/1/2017 Blanket P.O./ Exterminating $35.00
10531207 107399 8/14/2017 UNITED EXTERMINATING 193154 8/1/2017 Blanket P.O./ Exterminating $25.00
10531207 107399 8/14/2017 UNITED EXTERMINATING 193155 8/1/2017 Blanket P.O./ Exterminating $35.00
10531207 107399 8/14/2017 UNITED EXTERMINATING 193156 8/1/2017 Blanket P.O./ Exterminating $10.00
10531207 107399 8/14/2017 UNITED EXTERMINATING 193157 8/1/2017 Blanket P.O./ Exterminating $10.00
10531207 107399 8/14/2017 UNITED EXTERMINATING 193158 8/1/2017 Blanket P.O./ Exterminating $10.00
10531207 107399 8/14/2017 UNITED EXTERMINATING 193159 8/1/2017 Blanket P.O./ Exterminating $25.00
10531207 107399 8/14/2017 UNITED EXTERMINATING 193160 8/1/2017 Blanket P.O./ Exterminating $10.00
10531207 107399 8/14/2017 UNITED EXTERMINATING 193161 8/1/2017 Blanket P.O./ Exterminating $80.00
10531207 107399 8/14/2017 UNITED EXTERMINATING 194912 8/1/2017 Blanket P.O./ Exterminating $45.00
10531207 107399 8/14/2017 UNITED EXTERMINATING 194913 8/1/2017 Blanket P.O./ Exterminating $25.00
10531207 107399 8/14/2017 UNITED EXTERMINATING 194914 8/1/2017 Blanket P.O./ Exterminating $25.00
10531207 107399 8/14/2017 UNITED EXTERMINATING 194915 8/1/2017 Blanket P.O./ Exterminating $25.00
10531207 107399 8/14/2017 UNITED EXTERMINATING 194916 8/1/2017 Blanket P.O./ Exterminating $25.00

Engineering:
Sub Total-

Sub Total-
Facilities Maintenance:



10531207 107399 8/14/2017 UNITED EXTERMINATING 194917 8/1/2017 Blanket P.O./ Exterminating $10.00
10531207 107399 8/14/2017 UNITED EXTERMINATING 194918 8/1/2017 Blanket P.O./ Exterminating $25.00
10531207 107399 8/14/2017 UNITED EXTERMINATING 194919 8/1/2017 Blanket P.O./ Exterminating $50.00
10531207 107399 8/14/2017 UNITED EXTERMINATING 194920 8/1/2017 Blanket P.O./ Exterminating $25.00
10531207 107399 8/14/2017 UNITED EXTERMINATING 194921 8/1/2017 Blanket P.O./ Exterminating $50.00
10531207 107399 8/14/2017 UNITED EXTERMINATING 194922 8/1/2017 Blanket P.O./ Exterminating $45.00
10531209 107374 8/14/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 720318 7/27/2017 Oxygen sensor for FM-4 $56.27
10531209 107374 8/14/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 720762 8/2/2017 Lincense plate lens & bulb for FM-3 $14.77
10531209 107374 8/14/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 720764 8/2/2017 Light lens for FM-3 $14.46
10531209 107374 8/14/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 720792 8/2/2017 License plate lens & bulb for FM-3 $15.53
10531209 107374 8/14/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 720905 8/3/2017 CREDIT ($14.46)
10531302 106983 Multiple HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 2632180 6/10/2017 Blanket: Operating Supplies - Facilities $0.00
10531302 106983 Multiple HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 2682281 6/10/2017 Blanket: Operating Supplies - Facilities $0.00

10531302 107324 8/10/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 230927 7/26/2017
Blanket P.O.  for Facilities Maintenance 
needs $25.29

10531302 107324 8/10/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 230968 7/27/2017
Blanket P.O.  for Facilities Maintenance 
needs $7.36

10531302 107324 8/10/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 231152 8/7/2017
Blanket P.O.  for Facilities Maintenance 
needs $22.33

10531302 107324 8/10/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 231156 8/7/2017 Credit Urinal Gasket ($3.98)

10531302 107324 8/10/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 231157 8/7/2017
Blanket P.O.  for Facilities Maintenance 
needs $9.51

10531302 107327 8/10/2017 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 5013505 7/27/2017 BLANKET PO-SUPPLIES-FM $1,116.73
10531302 107327 8/10/2017 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 5154185 7/27/2017 Credit WO#2047 ($432.61)
10531302 107327 8/10/2017 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 5154186 7/27/2017 BLANKET PO-SUPPLIES-FM $389.15
10531302 107327 8/10/2017 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 8013929 8/3/2017 BLANKET PO-SUPPLIES-FM $196.15
10531302 107327 8/10/2017 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 8164310 7/27/2017 Credit for supply line ($130.01)
10531302 107363 8/11/2017 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 2632180 6/10/2017 two tool sets,two metric wrench sets $128.49
10531302 107363 8/11/2017 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 2682281 6/10/2017 kohler canister valve assembly $29.82
10531302 Multiple Multiple HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 3900308 6/9/2017 Blanket: Operating Supplies - Facilities $108.44

10531302 107376 8/14/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 230930 7/26/2017
Blanket P.O.  for Facilities Maintenance 
needs $29.09

10531302 107376 8/14/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 231202 8/9/2017
Blanket P.O.  for Facilities Maintenance 
needs $16.81

10531302 107376 8/14/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 231210 8/9/2017
Blanket P.O.  for Facilities Maintenance 
needs $12.63

10531302 107376 8/14/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 231218 8/9/2017
Blanket P.O.  for Facilities Maintenance 
needs $25.24

10531302 107466 8/23/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 231228 8/9/2017
Blanket P.O.  for Facilities Maintenance 
needs $12.22

10531302 107466 8/23/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 231240 8/10/2017
Blanket P.O.  for Facilities Maintenance 
needs $12.05

10531302 107466 8/23/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 231256 8/10/2017
Blanket P.O.  for Facilities Maintenance 
needs $81.48

10531302 107466 8/23/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 231263 8/11/2017
Blanket P.O.  for Facilities Maintenance 
needs $5.25

10531302 107466 8/23/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 231268 8/11/2017
Blanket P.O.  for Facilities Maintenance 
needs $2.72

10531302 107466 8/23/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 231271 8/11/2017
Blanket P.O.  for Facilities Maintenance 
needs $31.57

10531302 107466 8/23/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 231274 8/11/2017 Credit for mirror & brs angle ($14.73)

10531302 107466 8/23/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 231285 9/11/2017
Blanket P.O.  for Facilities Maintenance 
needs $1.87

10531302 107474 8/23/2017 JOHNSTONE SUPPLY OF ARIZONA 450S3767793001 8/14/2017 switch overfloe $24.30
10531311 107376 8/14/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 231203 8/9/2017 BLANKET P.O. SMALL TOOLS - F.M. $10.41
10531311 107376 8/14/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 231219 8/9/2017 BLANKET P.O. SMALL TOOLS - F.M. $10.52



10531311 107474 8/23/2017 JOHNSTONE SUPPLY OF ARIZONA 450S3767778001 8/14/2017 condensate gun $86.42
10531312 107391 8/14/2017 Staples Business Advantage 3347784126 7/26/2017 3 cases of electrolyte popsicles $195.81
10531315 107499 8/23/2017 WAXIE SANITARY SUPPLY 76882212 8/11/2017 BLANKET P.O. / Janitorial Supplies $3,807.07
10531315 107540 8/28/2017 WAXIE SANITARY SUPPLY 76895753 8/18/2017 BLANKET P.O. / Janitorial Supplies $113.53

10531316 Multiple Multiple HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 2640180 6/10/2017 Ten (10) Faucets for Facilities Maintenance $842.93
10531316 107450 8/23/2017 ARIZONA CORRECTIONAL INDUSTRIE 436822 8/11/2017 Welding of safety toe kick @ Town Hall $100.00
10531316 107546 8/30/2017 DH Pace Company Inc. SVC/54491 6/21/2017 Repairs to Fire Station #1 bay door $2,219.63
10531324 107382 8/14/2017 Newegg Business, Inc. 1300486066 7/13/2017 Monitor for Facilities Maintenance $84.99

$10,041.30

10532201 107420 8/16/2017 inContact, Inc. 743524 8/9/2017 Telephone $323.84
10532201 107455 8/23/2017 CENTURYLINK 4-817 8/1/2017 0118-trunkline $519.83
10532201 107455 8/23/2017 CENTURYLINK 4-817 8/1/2017 7500-Main line $31.78
10532201 107455 8/23/2017 CENTURYLINK 4-817 8/1/2017 911Locator-0238 $78.91
10532201 107455 8/23/2017 CENTURYLINK 4-817 8/1/2017 internet-0593 $99.84
10532214 107501 8/24/2017 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE 17-Jul 8/4/2017 ELECTRIC $1,320.04
10532215 107501 8/24/2017 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE 17-Jul 8/4/2017 ELECTRIC $9,594.38
10532314 107279 8/3/2017 THE WATER SHED 11232 7/5/2017 Water & Ice $15.91
10532314 107279 8/3/2017 THE WATER SHED 11291 7/24/2017 Water & Ice $34.28
10532314 107279 8/3/2017 THE WATER SHED 11390 7/31/2017 Water & Ice $14.54
10532314 107279 8/3/2017 THE WATER SHED 11519 7/13/2017 Water & Ice $19.75
10532314 107279 8/3/2017 THE WATER SHED 11522 7/13/2017 Water & Ice $26.32
10532410 107545 8/30/2017 Better Direct 44591 6/16/2017 Seagate IronWolf Hard Drive 10TB $3,804.50

10532410 107545 8/30/2017 Better Direct 44591 6/16/2017
Synology 8 bay NAS DiskStation DS1817+ 
8GB Diskless $1,005.48

10532410 107554 8/30/2017 ZONES, INC K07099170101 6/20/2017
HP 1TB MIDLINE SERIAL ATA HOT PLU 
SFF $3,223.70

10532410 107554 8/30/2017 ZONES, INC K07099170101 6/20/2017
HP 600GB SAS ENTERPRISE G8 G9 
HARD DRIVE IN SMART CARRIER $3,854.72

10532410 107554 8/30/2017 ZONES, INC K07099170101 6/20/2017 HP G8 G9 4-TB 6G 7.2K SATA SC $432.19

10532410 107554 8/30/2017 ZONES, INC K07099170101 6/20/2017 HP MSA2 4-TB 6G 7.2K 3.5 DP MDL SAS $2,488.01

10532425 107309 8/10/2017 Arizona Department of Revenue 02017-125 7/25/2017
Administration & Collections Assessment 
Fee $52,234.25

$79,122.27

10533211 107340 8/10/2017 Manatee Tire & Auto Inc., dba 170343 8/2/2017 2 tires for cemetery canopy $48.84
10533317 107407 8/16/2017 ARIZONA STATE PRISON-FLORENCE A04118A20170803 8/8/2017 INMATE LABOR/ CEMETERY $8.00

$56.84

10551402 141003813 8/14/2017 SUNLINE CONTRACTING LLC 073117 STMT 7/1/2017
2017 Rural Policy Forum registration for 
Jennifer Evans. $132.81

$132.81

12518201 107282 8/3/2017 Verizon Wireless 9789665618 7/21/2017 Cell phones $496.30
12518209 107259 8/3/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 720086 7/25/2017 Shop towels $18.43

12518209 107308 8/10/2017 APPLIED Maintenance Supplies & Solutio 96829388 7/27/2017
Electrical connectors,wd-40,retainers for 
Fleet $106.10

12518209 107340 8/10/2017 Manatee Tire & Auto Inc., dba 170316 8/2/2017 4 Tires for ST-79 $431.48
12518209 107374 8/14/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 720675 8/1/2017 Air filter for ST-81 $18.10
12518209 107413 8/16/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 720367 7/28/2017 Interchangeable ball for Streets $93.00
12518209 107413 8/16/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 720644 8/1/2017 Oil & filter for ST-81 $49.00
12518209 107413 8/16/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721107 8/7/2017 Batteries for ST-9 $284.08
12518209 107413 8/16/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721189 8/7/2017 CREDIT ($39.13)
12518209 107413 8/16/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721271 8/8/2017 Weather strip clips for ST-10 $11.50

Sub Total-
General Government:

Sub Total-
Cemetery:

Sub Total-
Economic Development:

Sub Total-
Public Works/Streets:



12518209 107442 8/16/2017 Verizon Wireless 13114513 7/18/2017 Network Fleet (install) $910.00
12518209 107442 8/16/2017 Verizon Wireless 13114513 7/18/2017 Network Fleet (pro rate May svc) $91.62
12518209 107451 8/23/2017 ARIZONA GLOVE & SAFETY 7435379 8/9/2017 Hand cleaner for Fleet $52.03
12518209 107461 8/23/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721810 8/15/2017 Batterry disconnect for ST15 $9.20
12518209 107461 8/23/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721853 8/15/2017 TPMS Tool for Fleet $96.81
12518209 107517 8/28/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721888 8/16/2017 AW 46hyd fluid for ST-38 (jcb) $335.58
12518209 107517 8/28/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721895 8/16/2017 Blanket PO for Day Auto Supply $24.99
12518209 107517 8/28/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721903 8/16/2017 AW 68hyd fluid for ST-38 (jcb) $280.38
12518209 107517 8/28/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 722003 8/17/2017 hyd hoses & fittings for ST-28 (jcb) $67.10
12518209 107517 8/28/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 722083 8/18/2017 Brake controller for ST-10 $160.76
12518209 107517 8/28/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 722225 8/21/2017 water pump & serp for shop $110.13
12518211 107255 8/3/2017 BlueTarp Financial 38376122 7/25/2017 Cordless drill for Fleet $269.00
12518211 107259 8/3/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 720044 7/25/2017 Air filters for ST-28 (jcb) $75.82
12518211 107259 8/3/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 720081 7/25/2017 Schrader valve for ST-30 (grader) $3.65
12518211 107259 8/3/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 720085 7/25/2017 Pag oil for ST-30 (grader) $8.69
12518211 107259 8/3/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 720258 7/27/2017 Signal bulb for ST-3 (backhoe) $1.51
12518211 107259 8/3/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 720261 7/27/2017 Wiper blade for ST-3 (back hoe) $6.51
12518211 107261 8/3/2017 EMPIRE SOUTHWEST EMPS4165709 7/25/2017 A/C filter for ST-30 (grader) $42.70
12518211 107261 8/3/2017 EMPIRE SOUTHWEST EMPS4166818 7/26/2017 A/C filter for ST-30 (grader) $35.77
12518211 107340 8/10/2017 Manatee Tire & Auto Inc., dba 170158 8/2/2017 Tires & tubes for ST-54 (9 wheel roller) $537.13

12518211 107374 8/14/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 720866 8/3/2017
Blinker light housing for ST-54 (9 wheel 
roller) $9.77

12518211 107374 8/14/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 720953 8/4/2017 Sochet for ST-18 (loader) $17.00
12518211 107392 8/14/2017 STOTZ EQUIPMENT P66007 8/9/2017 Seal kit for ST-006 (mower) $83.67
12518211 107510 8/28/2017 Arnold Machinery Company B3I124 8/15/2017 Fuel cap for ST-46 (street broom) $24.08

12518211 107516 8/28/2017 COHONE TECHNOLOGIES 00G17079 8/17/2017 Hydraulic cylinder repair for ST-6 (mower) $470.84
12518211 107522 8/28/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 231448 8/21/2017 Nuts & bolts for ST-37 (trailer) $7.00

12518214 107500 8/23/2017 ZUMAR, IND. 30751 8/7/2017
Various street signs & posts / (Maricopa 
County Contract 14105-C attached) $3,824.50

12518214 107550 8/30/2017 SIERRA Transportation & Technoligies 3516 6/30/2017
Emergency Traffic signal repair / Hunt & 
Franklin $1,000.00

12518215 107312 8/10/2017 BIA Jul-17 8/1/2017 00353-electric $233.75
12518215 107312 8/10/2017 BIA Jul-17 8/1/2017 10522-electric $110.00
12518215 107312 8/10/2017 BIA Jul-17 8/1/2017 20509-electric $46.20
12518215 107312 8/10/2017 BIA Jul-17 8/1/2017 21243-electric $61.60
12518215 107465 8/23/2017 Electrical District  No. 2 66289 817 8/14/2017 electricity at 7158 Hunt Hwy $48.61
12518215 107501 8/24/2017 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE 17-Jul 8/4/2017 ELECTRIC $4,715.47
12518217 107551 8/30/2017 Swan architects, Inc. 1 63017 6/30/2017 Professional Services $1,428.00
12518301 107441 8/16/2017 Staples Business Advantage 3343462186 6/17/2017 Supplies to create 17-18 Budget Books $103.14
12518301 107441 8/16/2017 Staples Business Advantage 3343462190 6/17/2017 Sharpies $41.28
12518302 107279 8/3/2017 THE WATER SHED 10274 7/3/2017 WATER & ICE $68.86
12518302 107279 8/3/2017 THE WATER SHED 11286 7/24/2017 WATER & ICE $81.45
12518302 107279 8/3/2017 THE WATER SHED 11287 7/19/2017 WATER & ICE $23.68
12518302 107279 8/3/2017 THE WATER SHED 11505 7/10/2017 WATER & ICE $63.68
12518302 107279 8/3/2017 THE WATER SHED 11524 7/13/2017 WATER & ICE $14.31
12518302 107279 8/3/2017 THE WATER SHED 11567 7/13/2017 WATER & ICE $39.98

12518302 107376 8/14/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 231235 8/10/2017
BLANKET P.O. / OPERATING SUPPLIES / 
ST $3.24

12518302 107461 8/23/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721590 8/11/2017 One quart pre mix & bar & chain oil $61.86

12518302 107517 8/28/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721746 8/14/2017
BLANKET P.O. / OPERATING SUPPLIES - 
ST. $9.54

12518304 107317 8/10/2017 Curtis, Laning UNIBTTS817 8/8/2017 Uniform allowance for Work Boots $155.58
12518304 107369 8/14/2017 Cintas Corporation Lock 696 696323587 7/5/2017 CONTRACT #7388 UNIFORM RENTAL $40.51
12518304 107369 8/14/2017 Cintas Corporation Lock 696 696325859 7/12/2017 CONTRACT #7388 UNIFORM RENTAL $40.51
12518304 107369 8/14/2017 Cintas Corporation Lock 696 696328121 7/19/2017 CONTRACT #7388 UNIFORM RENTAL $92.67



12518304 107369 8/14/2017 Cintas Corporation Lock 696 696330378 7/26/2017 CONTRACT #7388 UNIFORM RENTAL $42.73
12518304 107369 8/14/2017 Cintas Corporation Lock 696 696332619 8/2/2017 CONTRACT #7388 UNIFORM RENTAL $42.72
12518304 107369 8/14/2017 Cintas Corporation Lock 696 696334877 8/9/2017 CONTRACT #7388 UNIFORM RENTAL $61.45
12518311 107413 8/16/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721395 7/26/2017 Grearwrench for ST-10 $37.94
12518311 107413 8/16/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721595 8/9/2017 Batteries for Shop tools $13.89
12518311 107413 8/16/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721615 8/11/2017 Water hose for Shop cooler $27.16
12518311 107413 8/16/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 720184 8/11/2017 Air hose for Shop portable air tank $29.32
12518311 107413 8/16/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721623 8/11/2017 Tir valve for Shop portable air tank $2.16
12518311 107517 8/28/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 722255 8/21/2017 Safety cabinet shelfs for shop $163.03
12518317 107249 8/3/2017 ARIZONA STATE PRISON-FLORENCE A04117A20170720 7/24/2017 INMATE LABOR/ ROW $48.00
12518317 107407 8/16/2017 ARIZONA STATE PRISON-FLORENCE A04118A20170803 8/8/2017 INMATE LABOR/ ROW $56.00
12518319 107287 8/3/2017 AZ PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY AR0480005682 7/20/2017 Streetlight Maintenance $3,121.54
12518323 141003813 8/14/2017 SMARTDRAW SOFTWARE 073117 STMT 7/14/2017 Purchase Smartdraw Software $197.00
12518403 107365 8/14/2017 Az Local Technical Assistance Program FY17-141 7/28/2017 CODY CURTIS $35.00
12518403 107365 8/14/2017 Az Local Technical Assistance Program FY17-141 7/28/2017 JOHN PITTS $35.00
12518403 107365 8/14/2017 Az Local Technical Assistance Program FY17-141 7/28/2017 MIGUEL VALENZUELA $35.00
12518403 107373 8/14/2017 DAN, CISCO 08102017DC 8/10/2017 CLASS MEAL PER DIEM 8/10/17 $54.00
12518403 107379 8/14/2017 JOHN PITTS C. JR. 8022017 8/10/2017 MEAL PER DIEM CLASS 8/2/17 $46.00
12518403 107380 8/14/2017 Larry O. Garcia Jr. 80217 8/10/2017 MEAL PER DIEM - CLASS 8/2/17 $28.00
12518403 107381 8/14/2017 Miguel, Valenzuela 8022017 8/10/2017 MEAL PER DIEM - CLASS 8/2/17 $46.00
12518403 107388 8/14/2017 RAYMOND, WHITE 80317 8/10/2017 MEAL PER DIEM - CLASS 8/2/17 $28.00
12518403 107396 8/14/2017 The Braun Corporation 20208 7/31/2017 LARRY GARCIA $60.00
12518403 107396 8/14/2017 The Braun Corporation 20208 7/31/2017 RAY WHITE $60.00

12518403 141003813 8/14/2017 FRED PRYOR SEMINARS 073117 STMT 7/28/2017
Purchase Fredpryor Careertrack - David 
Hills $199.00

12518408 107371 8/14/2017 CODY CURTIS 80217 8/10/2017 MEAL PER DIEM - 8/2/17 CLASS $46.00

12561507 107505 8/24/2017 EPS  GROUP 163042-5 6/21/2017
T-08 and T-09 Street Improvements for 
Florence Gardens Phases IV and V $10,084.00

12581507 107303 8/3/2017 Regional Pavement Maintenance of Az In 17-252 6/29/2017
CIP Project / Hunt Highway Improvement 
Project (Not to exceed $263,629.84) $242,337.37

12581507 107550 8/30/2017 SIERRA Transportation & Technoligies 3514 6/30/2017
Traffic signal cabinet & controller @ 
Hunt/Anthem Hospital $17,853.09

$292,298.42

51219000 107247 8/3/2017 2nd Temporary 122321 7/31/2017 Water Deposit Refund $62.70
51219000 107268 8/3/2017 2nd Temporary 421702 7/31/2017 Water Deposit Refund $34.31
51219000 107276 8/3/2017 2nd Temporary 210413 7/28/2017 Water Deposit Refund $15.69
51219000 107277 8/3/2017 2nd Temporary 10200809 8/2/2017 Water Deposit Refund $40.27
51219000 107278 8/3/2017 2nd Temporary 10217205 7/31/2017 Water Deposit Refund $66.23
51219000 107333 Multiple 2nd Temporary 303008 8/4/2017 Water Deposit Refund $0.00
51219000 107458 8/23/2017 2nd Temporary 11001502 8/15/2017 Water Deposit Refund $150.00
51219000 107462 8/23/2017 2nd Temporary 10401903 8/15/2017 Water Deposit Refund $150.00
51219000 107471 8/23/2017 2nd Temporary 431611 8/15/2017 Water Deposit Refund $225.00
51219000 107473 8/23/2017 2nd Temporary 10214704 8/15/2017 Water Deposit Refund $150.00
51219000 107476 8/23/2017 2nd Temporary 403303 8/15/2017 Water Deposit Refund $150.00
51219000 107478 8/23/2017 2nd Temporary 428807 8/15/2017 Water Deposit Refund $75.00
51219000 107481 8/23/2017 2nd Temporary 10103404 8/15/2017 Water Deposit Refund $150.00
51219000 107482 8/23/2017 2nd Temporary 10609911 8/15/2017 Water Deposit Refund $150.00
51219000 107483 8/23/2017 2nd Temporary 10609502 8/15/2017 Water Deposit Refund $150.00
51219000 107488 8/23/2017 2nd Temporary 10307004 8/15/2017 Water Deposit Refund $150.00
51219000 107496 8/23/2017 2nd Temporary 10607192 8/15/2017 Water Deposit Refund $150.00
51219000 107497 8/23/2017 2nd Temporary 112902 8/15/2017 Water Deposit Refund $75.00
51371446 107435 8/16/2017 Valley Collection Service 206602CRUIZ 8/16/2017 Overpayment 2 bad debit06602 $27.58
51371446 107460 8/23/2017 2nd Temporary 10201802-OP 8/16/2017 Overpayment $261.26
51371446 107468 8/23/2017 2nd Temporary 11200455-OP 8/16/2017 Overpayment $3.26
51371446 107477 8/23/2017 2nd Temporary 421702-OP 8/16/2017 Overpayment $60.38

Water Funds:
Sub Total-



51371446 107479 8/23/2017 2nd Temporary 11207901-O9 8/16/2017 Overpayment $36.48
51371446 107490 8/23/2017 2nd Temporary 10406503-OP 8/16/2017 Overpayment $150.89
51371446 107494 8/23/2017 2nd Temporary 10800161-OP 8/16/2017 Overpayment $32.29

$2,516.34

51574201 107282 8/3/2017 Verizon Wireless 9789665618 7/21/2017 Cell phones $329.41
51574201 107315 8/10/2017 CENTURYLINK WWW8356 717 7/28/2017 W/WW alarms-8356 $62.59
51574209 107259 8/3/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 720086 7/25/2017 Shop towels $18.43

51574209 107308 8/10/2017 APPLIED Maintenance Supplies & Solutio 96829388 7/27/2017
Electrical connectors,wd-40,retainers for 
Fleet $106.10

51574209 107340 8/10/2017 Manatee Tire & Auto Inc., dba 170316 8/2/2017 4 Tires for ST-79 $71.91
51574209 107374 8/14/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 720761 8/2/2017 Headlight bulb for W-27 $14.88
51574209 107451 8/23/2017 ARIZONA GLOVE & SAFETY 7435379 8/9/2017 Hand cleaner for Fleet $6.94
51574209 107461 8/23/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721717 8/14/2017 Oil & filter for W-27 $61.32
51574209 107461 8/23/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721853 8/15/2017 TPMS Tool for Fleet $96.81
51574209 107517 8/28/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 722229 8/21/2017 CREDIT ($4.35)
51574209 107530 8/28/2017 PURCELL TIRE COMPANY 6765608 8/17/2017 4 Tires for W-31 $756.86
51574211 107259 8/3/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 714685 5/17/2017 Oil & filters for W-32 $157.26
51574211 107259 8/3/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 720286 7/27/2017 Hyd hose fittings forW-32 (power vac) $13.67
51574211 107374 8/14/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721233 8/8/2017 Battery for W-24 (backhoe) $126.73
51574211 107512 8/28/2017 AZ Locators 16253 8/21/2017 Repair and Recertifying  Locating Equip $339.89
51574211 107531 8/28/2017 RIPPLE INDUSTRIES 1806 8/18/2017 WATER DEPT - MISC WELL REPAIRS $905.00
51574215 107312 8/10/2017 BIA Jul-17 8/1/2017 21242-electric $1,758.03
51574215 107312 8/10/2017 BIA Jul-17 8/1/2017 21245-electric $2,247.16
51574215 107501 8/24/2017 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE 17-Jul 8/4/2017 ELECTRIC $10,966.47
51574217 107292 8/3/2017 CASA GRANDE COURIER, INC. 1225 6/30/2017 Courier fees for June 2017 Water $252.00
51574217 107364 8/14/2017 AZ DEPT OF WATER RESOURCES 1576 6/9/2017 APPLICATION 73-534439.0500 $39.79
51574217 107386 8/14/2017 PINAL CO AIR QUALITY CONTROL 2017224 7/18/2017 WELL SITE #1 PERMIT S16122.000 $2,512.10
51574217 107386 8/14/2017 PINAL CO AIR QUALITY CONTROL 2017225 7/18/2017 WELL SITE #5 PERMIT S16121.000 $2,512.10
51574217 107389 Multiple RIPPLE INDUSTRIES 1790 7/13/2017 Equipment & Materials PLC Program $0.00
51574217 107402 8/14/2017 WILLDAN 010-35394 8/10/2017 Utility Rate Study (1st Installment) $5,950.00
51574217 107440 8/16/2017 Legend Technical Svcs., Inc. 1709877 6/30/2017 Analytical Testing for June 2017 $356.00
51574217 107531 8/28/2017 RIPPLE INDUSTRIES 1790 7/14/2017 Micrologix PLC $1,457.50
51574217 107551 8/30/2017 Swan architects, Inc. 1 63017 6/30/2017 Professional Services $714.90
51574302 107279 8/3/2017 THE WATER SHED 10274 7/3/2017 WATER & ICE $7.66
51574302 107279 8/3/2017 THE WATER SHED 11286 7/24/2017 WATER & ICE $9.05
51574302 107279 8/3/2017 THE WATER SHED 11287 7/19/2017 WATER & ICE $2.64
51574302 107279 8/3/2017 THE WATER SHED 11505 7/10/2017 WATER & ICE $7.08
51574302 107279 8/3/2017 THE WATER SHED 11508 7/10/2017 WATER & ICE $9.46
51574302 107279 8/3/2017 THE WATER SHED 11524 7/13/2017 WATER & ICE $4.60
51574302 107279 8/3/2017 THE WATER SHED 11567 7/13/2017 WATER & ICE $4.45
51574302 107368 8/14/2017 CEMEX 943066877 7/26/2017 CARRY OVER FOR PO# 46810 $1,544.83
51574304 107369 8/14/2017 Cintas Corporation Lock 696 696323587 7/5/2017 CONTRACT #7388 UNIFORM RENTAL $12.00
51574304 107369 8/14/2017 Cintas Corporation Lock 696 696325859 7/12/2017 CONTRACT #7388 UNIFORM RENTAL $12.00
51574304 107369 8/14/2017 Cintas Corporation Lock 696 696328121 7/19/2017 CONTRACT #7388 UNIFORM RENTAL $12.00
51574304 107369 8/14/2017 Cintas Corporation Lock 696 696330378 7/26/2017 CONTRACT #7388 UNIFORM RENTAL $12.00
51574304 107369 8/14/2017 Cintas Corporation Lock 696 696332619 8/2/2017 CONTRACT #7388 UNIFORM RENTAL $12.00
51574304 107369 8/14/2017 Cintas Corporation Lock 696 696334877 8/9/2017 CONTRACT #7388 UNIFORM RENTAL $12.00

51574304 107397 8/14/2017 Timothy, Wainscott WKBTS718 7/4/2017
BOOT ALLOWANCE 2017-2018 FY - TIMM 
W $162.06

51574310 107298 8/3/2017 HACH COMPANY 10517158 6/27/2017 Credit from invoice paid twiice ($263.13)
51574311 107374 8/14/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721397 8/9/2017 Battery $63.59

51574311 107376 8/14/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 230923 7/26/2017
WATER DEPT BLANKET: MISC SMALL 
TOOLS $59.05

51574311 107376 8/14/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 230978 7/28/2017
WATER DEPT BLANKET: MISC SMALL 
TOOLS $13.15

Sub Total-
Florence Water:



51574311 107400 8/14/2017 USABlueBook - ACCT 703717 315574 7/19/2017
WATER DEPT BLANKET: MISC WATER 
LINE $86.56

51574311 107400 8/14/2017 USABlueBook - ACCT 703717 321273 7/25/2017
WATER DEPT BLANKET: MISC WATER 
LINE $105.16

51574320 107376 8/14/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 230527 7/5/2017
Blanket PO Misc Utility Line Maint Water 
lines $39.11

51574320 107376 8/14/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 230895 7/25/2017 WATER DEPT BLANKET: WATER LINE $3.24

51574320 107376 8/14/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 231041 8/1/2017 WATER DEPT BLANKET: WATER LINE $201.02

51574320 107376 8/14/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 231134 8/5/2017 WATER DEPT BLANKET: WATER LINE $9.74

51574320 107377 8/14/2017 FORTLINE INC 3992889 7/3/2017
WATER DEPT BLANKET: MISC WATER 
LINE $660.75

51574320 107377 8/14/2017 FORTLINE INC 3995517 7/10/2017
WATER DEPT BLANKET: MISC WATER 
LINE $257.17

51574320 107377 8/14/2017 FORTLINE INC 4000390 7/25/2017
WATER DEPT BLANKET: MISC WATER 
LINE $3,126.43

51574320 107523 8/28/2017 FORTLINE INC 4018162 8/2/2017
WATER DEPT BLANKET: MISC WATER 
LINE $157.76

51574320 107547 8/30/2017 FORTLINE INC 398279 6/27/2017
Misc parts for water - repair and 
Maintenance $485.90

51574401 141003813 8/14/2017 ADOBE SYSTEMS INCORPORATED 073117 STMT 7/22/2017
JUNE SUBSCRIPTION PHOTO LICENSE 
FOR CCR $32.60

51574403 107397 8/14/2017 Timothy, Wainscott 810/17 8/10/2017 MEAL PER DIEM CLASS 8/10/17 $54.00
51574507 107377 8/14/2017 FORTLINE INC 4012992 7/27/2017 WATER DEPT BLANKET: CIP WU-60 $1,291.53
51574507 107558 8/31/2017 WESTLAND RESOURCES INC 48605003 7/6/2017 CIP WU-83 Waterline $21,407.38

51581507 107393 8/14/2017 Superior Tank Solutions 1637P 7/24/2017 WU-26 Water Storage Tank - CIP Project $99,061.60
$160,505.94

51581507 107555 8/31/2017 HAZEN and SAWYER 00000 617 7/11/2017
WU-26 Water Storage Tank N Florence - 
Engineering Services $12,174.21

$12,174.21

52575201 107282 8/3/2017 Verizon Wireless 9789665618 7/21/2017 Cell phones $329.41
52575209 107259 8/3/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 720086 7/25/2017 Shop towels $18.43

52575209 107308 8/10/2017 APPLIED Maintenance Supplies & Solutio 96829388 7/27/2017
Electrical connectors,wd-40,retainers for 
Fleet $49.11

52575209 107340 8/10/2017 Manatee Tire & Auto Inc., dba 170316 8/2/2017 4 Tires for ST-79 $71.91
52575209 107374 8/14/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 720989 8/4/2017 Starter for WW-7 $146.19
52575209 107374 8/14/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721231 8/8/2017 Tail lights for WW-25 $19.54
52575209 107375 8/14/2017 Earnhardt  Service #25440 or 7118 566140 8/8/2017 Fuse box for WW-007 $503.21
52575209 107428 8/16/2017 SHAWS INTERIORS 3172 8/11/2017 Drivers seat repair for WW-26 $103.88
52575209 107451 8/23/2017 ARIZONA GLOVE & SAFETY 7435379 8/9/2017 Hand cleaner for Fleet $6.94
52575209 107461 8/23/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721712 8/14/2017 Radiator,fan clutch,water pump for WW-3 $229.89
52575209 107461 8/23/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721714 8/14/2017 Serp belt for WW-3 $41.95
52575209 107461 8/23/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721758 8/14/2017 Water put let & temp sensor for WW-3 $41.07
52575209 107461 8/23/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721766 8/14/2017 Coolant recovery tank for WW-3 $29.35
52575209 107461 8/23/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721795 8/15/2017 Wiper Blades for WW-3 $23.57
52575209 107461 8/23/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721797 8/15/2017 Blower motorfor WW-3 $30.97
52575209 107461 8/23/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721853 8/15/2017 TPMS Tool for Fleet $96.83
52575211 107293 8/3/2017 COOLIDGE ENGINE & PUMP, L.L.C. 7455 6/12/2017 POC Well Repair at SWWTP $200.00

52575211 107355 8/11/2017 A.C. Sanitation Service, LLC 9175-122 5/13/2017
Landfill fees for April 2017 Bio-Solid Waste 
Removal $14,117.53

Sub Total-
Capital Outlay:

Sub Total-
Sewer Operations South Plant:



52575211 107355 8/11/2017 A.C. Sanitation Service, LLC 9262-105 6/30/2017
Landfill fees for June 2017 Bio-Solid Waste 
Removal $29,652.03

52575211 107356 8/11/2017 Construction Product Marketing LLC 1752 3/14/2017 Parts for valves/gears @ SWRF $858.60
52575211 107362 8/11/2017 Western Environmental Equipment Co. W5085 7/10/2017 Parts needed to fix grit pump at SWWTP $3,995.15
52575211 107423 8/16/2017 MeHALL CONTRACTING LLC 2835 7/13/2017 Rebuild and repair Pista Grit at SWRF $1,150.00
52575211 107426 8/16/2017 Pro-Tec Environmental, Inc. 170710-12 7/17/2017 Hydrovac/Jet-Rodding at SWRP $2,310.00

52575211 107484 8/23/2017 MOTION INDUSTRIES AZ52690210 8/7/2017
Decanter actuator/parts needed to maintain 
SBR#2 at the SWRF $1,646.58

52575211 107508 8/24/2017 Western Environmental Equipment Co. W5118 6/21/2017 Parts needed to fix grit pump at SWWTP $484.70

52575211 107527 8/28/2017 KRUGER INC 1700474RI05700 8/17/2017
Micron Weave Filters and Filter Panels for 
SWRF $2,387.46

52575211 141003813 8/14/2017 True Value Hardware 073117 STMT 7/20/2017 Purchase Russ Hardware Inc : Maintenance $9.70
52575215 107501 8/24/2017 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE 17-Jul 8/4/2017 ELECTRIC $31,398.42
52575217 107292 8/3/2017 CASA GRANDE COURIER, INC. 1225 6/30/2017 Courier Fees for June 2017 Water $836.00
52575217 107402 8/14/2017 WILLDAN 010-35394 8/10/2017 Utility Rate Study (1st Installment) $5,950.00
52575217 107440 8/16/2017 Legend Technical Svcs., Inc. 1709879 6/30/2017 Analytical Testing for June 2017 $2,905.40

52575217 107506 8/24/2017 HAZEN and SAWYER 1 6/15/2017
Lump Sum Fee - SWWTP Task Assignment 
- Preliminary Design Concept Memo $2,500.00

52575217 107551 8/30/2017 Swan architects, Inc. 1 63017 6/30/2017 Professional Services $238.10

52575230 107404 8/16/2017 A.C. Sanitation Service, LLC 9297101 7/31/2017
Landfill fees for July 2017 for Bio-solid 
waste removal $24,456.03

52575301 107359 8/11/2017 Staples Business Advantage 3343462191 6/17/2017 Restock Ink/Toner $250.00
52575302 107279 8/3/2017 THE WATER SHED 11508 7/10/2017 WATER & ICE $4.73
52575302 107297 8/3/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 230022 6/7/2017 Operating Supplies for SWWTP $223.12
52575302 107297 8/3/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 230028 6/7/2017 Operating Supplies for SWWTP $5.50
52575302 107297 8/3/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 230204 6/16/2017 Operating Supplies for SWWTP $10.50
52575302 107297 8/3/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 230226 6/19/2017 Operating Supplies for SWWTP $58.34
52575302 107297 8/3/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 230228 6/19/2017 Operating Supplies for SWWTP $94.40
52575302 107297 8/3/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 230363 6/23/2017 Operating Supplies for SWWTP-Credit ($38.89)
52575302 107297 8/3/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 230364 6/26/2017 Operating Supplies for SWWTP $17.59
52575302 107297 8/3/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 230377 6/28/2017 Operating Supplies for SWWTP $64.31
52575302 107297 8/3/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 230472 6/30/2017 Operating Supplies for SWWTP $48.65
52575302 107299 8/3/2017 Harrington Industrial Plastic 016A3980 6/9/2017 SWTP Op Supplies-Pump MAG $2,181.92
52575302 107304 8/3/2017 SENERGY PETROLEUM LLC 353837 6/30/2017 F/C charge for April Invoice $17.28

52575302 107304 8/3/2017 SENERGY PETROLEUM LLC 362936 6/13/2017
Red dyed diesel #2 for Generator @ 
SWWTP $1,174.56

52575302 107412 8/16/2017 COOLIDGE ACE HARDWARE 149603/2 7/19/2017 Blanket: Operating Supplies $18.04
52575302 107412 8/16/2017 COOLIDGE ACE HARDWARE 149611/2 7/19/2017 Blanket: Operating Supplies $2.72
52575302 107412 8/16/2017 COOLIDGE ACE HARDWARE 149621/2 7/20/2017 Blanket: Operating Supplies $0.96

52575302 107419 8/16/2017 Harrington Industrial Plastic 016A4467 8/4/2017
Blanket: Misc. Operating Supplies for 
WWTP's $133.79

52575302 107466 8/23/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 231318 8/14/2017
Blanket: Misc. Operating Supplies for 
WWTP's $123.82

52575302 107466 8/23/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 231322 8/15/2017
Blanket: Misc. Operating Supplies for 
WWTP's $44.83

52575302 107466 8/23/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 231332 8/15/2017
Blanket: Misc. Operating Supplies for 
WWTP's $9.76

52575302 107469 8/23/2017 HACH COMPANY 10568300 8/1/2017
Blanket: Misc. Operating Supplies for 
WWTP's $497.78

52575302 107498 8/23/2017 USABlueBook - ACCT 703717 321707 7/25/2017
Blanket: Misc. Operating Supplies for 
WWTP's $25.25

52575302 107498 8/23/2017 USABlueBook - ACCT 703717 325615 7/28/2017
Blanket: Misc. Operating Supplies for 
WWTP's $25.63

52575302 107498 8/23/2017 USABlueBook - ACCT 703717 326067 7/28/2017 credit tubing ($15.74)



52575302 107498 8/23/2017 USABlueBook - ACCT 703717 328563 8/1/2017
Blanket: Misc. Operating Supplies for 
WWTP's $501.77

52575302 107498 8/23/2017 USABlueBook - ACCT 703717 328564 8/1/2017
Blanket: Misc. Operating Supplies for 
WWTP's $159.73

52575302 107548 8/30/2017 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 5901122 5/8/2017 Storage containers for WWT'P's $80.87

52575302 141003813 8/14/2017 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 073117 STMT 7/12/2017
Purchase The Home Depot #0415: 
Workbenches for BiSulfite pump $164.95

52575302 141003813 8/14/2017 T.S.C. (Tractor Supply Company) 073117 STMT 7/12/2017
Purchase Tractor Supply Co #2013 Bulldog 
A Frame Jack for vac trailer $23.37

52575302 141003813 8/14/2017 WALMART COMMUNITY # 0005 7118 073117 STMT 7/17/2017
Purchase Wm Supercenter #2778: 
Operating Supplies $5.01

52575304 107369 8/14/2017 Cintas Corporation Lock 696 696323587 7/5/2017 CONTRACT #7388 UNIFORM RENTAL $2.67
52575304 107369 8/14/2017 Cintas Corporation Lock 696 696325859 7/12/2017 CONTRACT #7388 UNIFORM RENTAL $2.67
52575304 107369 8/14/2017 Cintas Corporation Lock 696 696328121 7/19/2017 CONTRACT #7388 UNIFORM RENTAL $2.67
52575304 107369 8/14/2017 Cintas Corporation Lock 696 696330378 7/26/2017 CONTRACT #7388 UNIFORM RENTAL $2.67
52575304 107369 8/14/2017 Cintas Corporation Lock 696 696332619 8/2/2017 CONTRACT #7388 UNIFORM RENTAL $2.67
52575304 107369 8/14/2017 Cintas Corporation Lock 696 696334877 8/9/2017 CONTRACT #7388 UNIFORM RENTAL $2.67
52575310 107298 8/3/2017 HACH COMPANY 10517158 6/27/2017 Lab Supplies: TNT830 $225.85

52575310 107439 8/16/2017 HILL BROTHERS CHEMICAL CO, 50906841 6/30/2017
1200 gals Hypochlorite Liquid Bleach for 
SWWTP $128.60

52575310 107470 8/23/2017 HILL BROTHERS CHEMICAL CO, 50907296 7/31/2017
1200 gallons of Hypochlorite Liquid Bleach 
for SWWTP $1,133.60

52575310 107491 8/23/2017 SOLENIS LLC 131186006 7/11/2017 Polymer drums for WWTP's $872.74
52575310 107507 8/24/2017 HILL BROTHERS CHEMICAL CO, 50906319 5/30/2017 hypo liquid bleach for SWWTP $1,559.88
52575311 107363 8/11/2017 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 7778148 6/15/2017 Small tools: misc for SWWTP $27.60

52575311 Multiple Multiple HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 1654820 6/21/2017
Replace PO #45722-Small Tools for 
SWWTP $13.82

52575311 Multiple Multiple HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 636269 3/24/2017 Small tools: misc for SWWTP $39.47

52575311 Multiple Multiple HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 6650082 6/16/2017
Replace PO #45722-Small Tools for 
SWWTP $19.42

52575311 Multiple Multiple HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 7652859 3/27/2017 Small tools: misc for SWWTP $16.91

52575311 Multiple Multiple HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 7717953 3/17/2017
Replace PO #45722-Small Tools for 
SWWTP $35.88

52575311 Multiple Multiple HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 7738062 3/17/2017 Small tools: misc for SWWTP $31.98

52575311 Multiple Multiple HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 8657315 3/16/2017
Replace PO #45722-Small Tools for 
SWWTP $111.16

52575311 Multiple Multiple HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 9740163 3/25/2017 Small tools: misc for SWWTP $176.04

52575311 Multiple Multiple HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 9901791 6/13/2017
Replace PO #45722-Small Tools for 
SWWTP $21.66

52575311 Multiple Multiple HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES W616750439 6/28/2017
Replace PO #45722-Small Tools for 
SWWTP $78.79

52575312 107406 8/16/2017 ARIZONA GLOVE & SAFETY 7435543 8/10/2017
Blanket: Safety Supplies needed for 
WWRF's $41.57

52575316 107370 8/14/2017 Clemans Plumbing 6878 7/14/2017 SWWTP Facility Maintenance $600.00

52575320 107378 8/14/2017 Hoffman Southwest Corporation-dba A422182 7/18/2017
WATER DEPT BLANKET: VIDEO 
SERVICES $743.75

52575323 141003813 8/14/2017 Foxit Corporation Incorporated 073117 STMT 7/1/2017 Foxit Software for WWTP $278.00
52575335 107296 8/3/2017 Ferguson Waterworks a Wolseley  Co. 301678 5/25/2017 Inverter Portable Generator for WWTP's $386.46

52575406 107425 8/16/2017 PINAL CO AIR QUALITY CONTROL 2017195A 8/3/2017
SWWTP Annual Permit Fee - Permit No. 
S16088.000 $3,721.00

52575507 107306 8/3/2017 WESTLAND RESOURCES INC 48603004 6/8/2017
SU-85: Recharge Permitting and Design for 
SWWTP $6,416.84

52575507 107553 8/30/2017 WESTLAND RESOURCES INC 48603005 6/30/2017
SU-85 Recharge Permitting & Design 
SWWTP/NWWTP $10,747.47

$160,197.01Sub Total-
Sewer Operations North Plant:



52576201 107315 8/10/2017 CENTURYLINK WWW8356 717 7/28/2017 W/WW alarms-8356 $62.60
52576208 107271 8/3/2017 MeHALL CONTRACTING LLC 2384 7/13/2017 Blanket: Misc. Maint/Repairs at WWTP's $1,975.00

52576208 107297 8/3/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 230301 6/22/2017
Blanket PO: Misc Repairs/Maintenance @ 
NWWTP $28.49

52576208 107297 8/3/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 230329 6/23/2017
Blanket PO: Misc Repairs/Maintenance @ 
NWWTP $47.53

52576208 107297 8/3/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 230359 6/26/2017
Blanket PO: Misc Repairs/Maintenance @ 
NWWTP $35.82

52576208 107297 8/3/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 230366 6/26/2017
Blanket PO: Misc Repairs/Maintenance @ 
NWWTP $38.97

52576208 107297 8/3/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 230422 6/28/2017
Blanket PO: Misc Repairs/Maintenance @ 
NWWTP $20.65

52576208 107297 8/3/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 230427 6/28/2017
Blanket PO: Misc Repairs/Maintenance @ 
NWWTP $11.13

52576208 107297 8/3/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 230438 6/28/2017
Blanket PO: Misc Repairs/Maintenance @ 
NWWTP $58.83

52576208 107297 8/3/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 230440 6/28/2017
Blanket PO: Misc Repairs/Maintenance @ 
NWWTP $92.73

52576208 107297 8/3/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 230463 6/30/2017
Blanket PO: Misc Repairs/Maintenance @ 
NWWTP $65.34

52576208 107297 8/3/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 230469 6/30/2017
Blanket PO: Misc Repairs/Maintenance @ 
NWWTP $59.87

52576208 107297 8/3/2017 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 23425 6/28/2017
Blanket PO: Misc Repairs/Maintenance @ 
NWWTP $8.76

52576208 107524 8/28/2017 Geuther Electrical, LLC 2410 7/18/2017 Blanket: Misc. Repairs/Maint. at WWTP's $1,004.46

52576208 107524 8/28/2017 Geuther Electrical, LLC 2410 7/18/2017 Blanket: Misc. Repairs/Maint. at WWTP's $1,004.46
52576209 107374 8/14/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721146 8/7/2017 Booster cable for WW-6 $96.19
52576209 107374 8/14/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721208 8/7/2017 Batteries for WW-6 $276.36
52576209 107374 8/14/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721247 8/8/2017 Neg battery cable for WW-6 $67.61
52576209 107374 8/14/2017 Day Auto Supply, Inc 721248 8/8/2017 CREDIT ($39.13)
52576211 107271 8/3/2017 MeHALL CONTRACTING LLC 2836 7/13/2017 NWRF - Upper Clarifier Repairs $1,915.00

52576211 107291 8/3/2017 Casa Gande Pumping Svc., Inc 10714 6/21/2017
Sludge Hauling from NWWTP to SWWTP - 
Inv. 10714 $2,300.00

52576211 107302 8/3/2017 MeHALL CONTRACTING LLC 2799 6/20/2017 NWWTP Bar Screen Clean Repair $1,825.00
52576211 107398 8/14/2017 Titan Machinery Inc. 9655832GP 7/25/2017 Reman-alternator for WW-22 (backhoe) $169.22

52576211 107423 8/16/2017 MeHALL CONTRACTING LLC 2881 8/9/2017 Repairs/Maint. to Upper Clarifier at NWWTP $2,375.00
52576211 107528 8/28/2017 Manatee Tire & Auto Inc., dba 170827 8/21/2017 Tires for 6 water pump trailer WW" $162.42
52576215 107312 8/10/2017 BIA Jul-17 8/1/2017 21241-electric $4,046.99
52576217 107292 8/3/2017 CASA GRANDE COURIER, INC. 1225 6/30/2017 Courier Fees for June 2017 Water $836.00
52576217 107440 8/16/2017 Legend Technical Svcs., Inc. 1709878 6/30/2017 Analytical Testing for June 2017 $1,348.00
52576301 107359 8/11/2017 Staples Business Advantage 3343462191 6/17/2017 Restock Ink/Toner $57.34

52576301 107359 8/11/2017 Staples Business Advantage 3343462191 6/17/2017 Desk chair for Wastewater Superintendent $77.34
52576301 107359 8/11/2017 Staples Business Advantage 3343462192 6/17/2017 Restock Ink/Toner $38.39
52576301 107359 8/11/2017 Staples Business Advantage 3344048929 6/13/2017 Restock Ink/Toner $60.92
52576301 107359 8/11/2017 Staples Business Advantage 3344048934 6/24/2017 Restock Ink/Toner $15.44
52576301 107359 8/11/2017 Staples Business Advantage 3344048935 6/24/2017 Restock Ink/Toner $28.06
52576302 107279 8/3/2017 THE WATER SHED 11508 7/10/2017 WATER & ICE $4.73

52576302 107311 8/10/2017 BEARING-BELT & CHAIN INC. 1456352 7/14/2017
C for WWTP'slarifier gear box chain for 
NWRF $202.14

52576302 107412 8/16/2017 COOLIDGE ACE HARDWARE 149603/2 7/19/2017 Blanket: Operating Supplies $18.05
52576302 107412 8/16/2017 COOLIDGE ACE HARDWARE 149611/2 7/19/2017 Blanket: Operating Supplies $2.72
52576302 107412 8/16/2017 COOLIDGE ACE HARDWARE 149621/2 7/20/2017 Blanket: Operating Supplies $0.96



52576302 107419 8/16/2017 Harrington Industrial Plastic 016A4467 8/4/2017
Blanket: Misc. Operating Supplies for 
WWTP's $133.79

52576302 107498 8/23/2017 USABlueBook - ACCT 703717 321707 7/25/2017
Blanket: Misc. Operating Supplies for 
WWTP's $25.24

52576302 107498 8/23/2017 USABlueBook - ACCT 703717 325615 7/28/2017
Blanket: Misc. Operating Supplies for 
WWTP's $25.62

52576302 107498 8/23/2017 USABlueBook - ACCT 703717 326067 7/28/2017 Credit tubing ($15.73)

52576302 107498 8/23/2017 USABlueBook - ACCT 703717 328563 8/1/2017
Blanket: Misc. Operating Supplies for 
WWTP's $501.78

52576302 107498 8/23/2017 USABlueBook - ACCT 703717 328564 8/1/2017
Blanket: Misc. Operating Supplies for 
WWTP's $159.73

52576302 107548 8/30/2017 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 5901122 5/8/2017 Storage containers for WWTP's $80.87

52576302 141003813 8/14/2017 T.S.C. (Tractor Supply Company) 073117 STMT 7/12/2017
Purchase Tractor Supply Co #2013 Bulldog 
A Frame Jack for vac trailer $23.36

52576304 107369 8/14/2017 Cintas Corporation Lock 696 696323587 7/5/2017 BLANKET PO FOR FY 2017 - 2018 $8.66
52576304 107369 8/14/2017 Cintas Corporation Lock 696 696325859 7/12/2017 BLANKET PO FOR FY 2017 - 2018 $6.65
52576304 107369 8/14/2017 Cintas Corporation Lock 696 696328121 7/19/2017 BLANKET PO FOR FY 2017 - 2018 $37.96
52576304 107369 8/14/2017 Cintas Corporation Lock 696 696330378 7/26/2017 BLANKET PO FOR FY 2017 - 2018 $21.20
52576304 107369 8/14/2017 Cintas Corporation Lock 696 696332619 8/2/2017 BLANKET PO FOR FY 2017 - 2018 $69.35
52576304 107369 8/14/2017 Cintas Corporation Lock 696 696334877 8/9/2017 BLANKET PO FOR FY 2017 - 2018 $1.00
52576310 107298 8/3/2017 HACH COMPANY 10517158 6/27/2017 Lab Supplies: TNT830 $225.84
52576310 107463 8/23/2017 DPC ENTERPRISES, L.P. 27200897-17 8/10/2017 150 lb. CL2 Cylinders for the NWWTP $545.18
52576310 107491 8/23/2017 SOLENIS LLC 131186006 7/11/2017 Polymer drums for WWTP's $872.74

52576311 Multiple Multiple HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 1654820 6/21/2017
Replace PO #45722-Small Tools for 
NWWTP $13.82

52576311 Multiple Multiple HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 636269 3/24/2017 Small tools: misc for NWWTP $39.47

52576311 Multiple Multiple HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 6650082 6/16/2017
Replace PO #45722-Small Tools for 
NWWTP $19.42

52576311 Multiple Multiple HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 7652859 3/27/2017 Small tools: misc for NWWTP $16.90
52576311 Multiple Multiple HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 7717953 3/17/2017 Small tools: misc for SWWTP $35.89
52576311 Multiple Multiple HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 7738062 3/17/2017 Small tools: misc for SWWTP $31.98

52576311 Multiple Multiple HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 8657315 3/16/2017
Replace PO #45722-Small Tools for 
NWWTP $111.17

52576311 Multiple Multiple HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 9740163 3/25/2017 Small tools: misc for NWWTP $176.05

52576311 Multiple Multiple HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 9901791 6/13/2017
Replace PO #45722-Small Tools for 
NWWTP $21.67

52576311 Multiple Multiple HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES W616750439 6/28/2017
Replace PO #45722-Small Tools for 
NWWTP $78.80

52576312 107406 8/16/2017 ARIZONA GLOVE & SAFETY 7435543 8/10/2017
Blanket: Safety Supplies needed for 
WWRF's $41.57

52576335 107296 8/3/2017 Ferguson Waterworks a Wolseley  Co. 301678 5/25/2017 Inverter Portable Generator for WWTP's $386.46

52576507 107288 8/3/2017 BEARING-BELT & CHAIN INC. 1454977 6/29/2017
SU-12: WWTP Expansion (N. Florence) - 
Bearing for Bright Belt Press $2,398.36

52576507 107288 8/3/2017 BEARING-BELT & CHAIN INC. 1454976 6/29/2017
SU-12: WWTP Expansion (N. Florence) - 
Bearing for Bright Belt Press $222.91

52576507 107306 8/3/2017 WESTLAND RESOURCES INC 48603004 6/8/2017
SU-85: Recharge Permitting and Design for 
NWWTP $1,107.25

52576507 107357 8/11/2017 Felix Construciton Company 1683.11-01JN17 6/26/2017

SU-13: WWTP Expansion (N. Florence) - 
JOC with City of Peoria Contract # P13-
0042  (design and construction of new 
facilities and rehab) $41,296.68

52576507 107358 8/11/2017 Geuther Electrical, LLC 2382 6/27/2017

SU13: WWTP Expansion (N. Florence) - 
wiring new influent pump, dig, recept. repair, 
MAG meter electrical install. $320.00



52576507 107358 8/11/2017 Geuther Electrical, LLC 2385 6/27/2017

SU13: WWTP Expansion (N. Florence) - 
wiring new influent pump, dig, recept. repair, 
MAG meter electrical install. $320.00

52576507 107358 8/11/2017 Geuther Electrical, LLC 2390 6/27/2017

SU13: WWTP Expansion (N. Florence) - 
wiring new influent pump, dig, recept. repair, 
MAG meter electrical install. $240.00

52576507 107358 8/11/2017 Geuther Electrical, LLC 2411 6/22/2017

SU13: WWTP Expansion (N. Florence) - 
wiring new influent pump, dig, recept. repair, 
MAG meter electrical install. $1,967.00

52576507 107504 8/24/2017 Controlled Energy Engineers, LLC 17003-02 6/9/2017
SU-12 Prof. Serv. NWWTP Expansion-
Electrical Upgrades $2,930.64

52576507 107553 8/30/2017 WESTLAND RESOURCES INC 48603005 6/30/2017
SU-85: Recharge Permitting and Design for 
NWWTP $1,108.00

52576507 107557 8/31/2017 WATER WORKS ENGINEERS, LLC 7730 6/30/2017
SU-13:WWTP Expansion-Design Concept 
Memo $2,450.00

52576507 107557 8/31/2017 WATER WORKS ENGINEERS, LLC 7731 6/30/2017
SU-13:WWTP Exp (NFlo) NWWTP 
headwks $18,000.00

$96,456.67

53219000 107307 8/10/2017 2nd Temporary 714531 8/7/2017 Refund Sanitation Deposit $51.00
53219000 107318 8/10/2017 2nd Temporary 792050 8/8/2017 Refund Sanitation Deposit $51.00
53219000 107320 8/10/2017 2nd Temporary 790180 8/8/2017 Refund Sanitation Deposit $51.00
53219000 107321 8/10/2017 2nd Temporary 792110 8/8/2017 Refund Sanitation Deposit $51.00
53219000 107323 8/10/2017 2nd Temporary 791000 8/8/2017 Refund Sanitation Deposit $51.00
53219000 107325 8/10/2017 2nd Temporary 792020 8/8/2017 Refund Sanitation Deposit $51.00
53219000 107332 8/10/2017 2nd Temporary 790980 8/8/2017 Refund Sanitation Deposit $51.00
53219000 107334 8/10/2017 2nd Temporary 707671 8/8/2017 Refund Sanitation Deposit $51.00
53219000 107335 8/10/2017 2nd Temporary 789500 8/8/2017 Refund Sanitation Deposit $51.00
53219000 107339 8/10/2017 2nd Temporary 790660 8/8/2017 Refund Sanitation Deposit $51.00
53219000 107342 8/10/2017 2nd Temporary 790990 8/8/2017 Refund Sanitation Deposit $51.00
53219000 107343 8/10/2017 2nd Temporary 718801 8/8/2017 Refund Sanitation Deposit $51.00
53219000 107345 8/10/2017 2nd Temporary 792060 8/8/2017 Refund Sanitation Deposit $51.00
53219000 107347 8/10/2017 2nd Temporary 792000 8/8/2017 Refund Sanitation Deposit $51.00
53219000 107350 8/10/2017 2nd Temporary 791040 8/8/2017 Refund Sanitation Deposit $51.00
53219000 107464 8/23/2017 2nd Temporary 708912 8/15/2017 Refund Sanitation Deposit $51.00
53219000 107475 8/23/2017 2nd Temporary 785491 8/15/2017 Refund Sanitation Deposit $25.50
53219000 107486 8/23/2017 2nd Temporary 712933 8/15/2017 Refund Sanitation Deposit $17.00

$858.50

53571201 107282 8/3/2017 Verizon Wireless 9789665618 7/21/2017 Cell phones $48.84
53571217 107344 8/10/2017 RIGHT AWAY DISPOSAL 1616308 8/1/2017 RAD Contact Residential $39,361.85
53571217 107427 8/16/2017 RIGHT AWAY DISPOSAL 1621177 8/1/2017 RAD Contact Residential addtionial $34.30
53571230 107411 8/16/2017 Central Az Solid Waste Inc TOF1707 7/1/2017 LANDFILL FEES - JULY 2017 $3,707.44
53571230 107438 8/16/2017 Central Az Solid Waste Inc TOF1706 6/1/2017 Py for Transfer Station Fees $3,048.09

$46,200.52

250510312 107281 8/3/2017 UNIVERSAL POLICE SUPPLY INC 211117 7/17/2017 Ballistic Vest: Riccomini $954.41
250510312 107352 8/10/2017 UNIVERSAL POLICE SUPPLY INC 21702 7/29/2017 Ballistic Vest: Kennard: Grant Funded $918.80

$1,873.21

300506215 107310 8/10/2017 Arizona Public Service Company 2976311000 717 8/3/2017 SLID #1-Merrill Ranch $2,381.89
301506215 107310 8/10/2017 Arizona Public Service Company 7596020000 717 8/8/2017 SLID #2 Merrill Ranch $2,393.27
302506215 107310 8/10/2017 Arizona Public Service Company 2496090000 717 8/8/2017 SLID #3 Merrill Ranch $2,129.36

Sub Total- $6,904.52

911160000 107457 8/23/2017 2nd Temporary 181600067 8/15/2017 Overpayment $167.90

Sanitaion Operations:

Sub Total-

Sub Total-

Customer Sanitation Deposits:

Sub Total-
BVP Grant-Bullet Proof Vest:

Sub Total-
Anthem Slids:

Assessment Clearing #1 & #2:



911160000 107489 8/23/2017 2nd Temporary 16090012-OP 8/15/2017 Overpayment $66.86
911160000 107493 8/23/2017 2nd Temporary 181600012 8/15/2017 Overpayment $65.38
921160000 107485 8/23/2017 2nd Temporary 224001031-OP 8/15/2017 Overpayment $197.28

$497.42
$1,100,800.87GRAND TOTAL-

Sub Total-



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION 

FORM 

AGENDA ITEM 
8a. 

MEETING DATE:  October 2, 2017 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Brent Billingsley, Town Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Resolution No. 1644-17: Authorization to enter 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  
nd
Subject: Resolution No, 1644-17 Startup Pavilion Inc.                               Meeting Date: October 2, 2017 
Page 1 of 2 
 

into a Development Agreement with Startup Pavilion Inc. 
(DBA Innovation Pavilion Inc.) and Pinal County.  

 2  Reading 
 Other 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    
 Leadership and Governance     Partnership and Relationships    Transportation and Infrastructure     
Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1644-17; A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING THE TOWN OF FLORENCE 
TO EXECUTE A DEVELOMENT AGREEMENT WITH STARTUP PAVILION, INC. 
(DBA INNOVATION PAVILION INC.) AND PINAL COUNTY TO CONSTRUCT A 
MIXED-USE PROJECT ON APPROXIMATELY 12 ACRES IN THE TERRITORY 
SQUARE DISTRICT.  
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Startup Pavilion Inc. (DBA Innovation Pavilion Inc.) submitted a Development 
Agreement Application in July and subsequently, staff was instructed by Town Council 
on August 7, 2017, to commence negotiations for the development of an innovation 
campus.   

Innovation Pavilion (IP) offers services that enhance a community’s live, work, play 
environment by engaging niche entrepreneurial communities, developing municipal and 
corporate innovation projects, and increasing the available technical workforce through 
education.  IP has, or is currently developing, innovation campuses in Centennial, 
Colorado; Parker, Colorado; Joliet, Illinois; and Olathe, Kansas.  They seek to expand 
the number of campuses in communities located close to major metropolitan areas.  
The initial steps in establishing an innovation campus are to conduct a feasibility study 
with stakeholders, conduct an innovation audit with the Town, and hold community 
events during the first year.   

The Developer intends to construct a mixed-use project on approximately 12 acres in 
the Heritage Square District, in concert with the North End Framework Area Master 



Subject: Resolution No, 1644-17 Startup Pavilion Inc.                               Meeting Date: October 2, 2017 
Page 2 of 2 
 

Plan.  Pursuant to A.R.S.§ 9-499.10, the Town designated an Infill Incentive District (the 
“District”) and adopted the Town Core Infill Incentive Plan (the “Infill Plan”) to encourage 
redevelopment in the District by, among other activities, waiving fees for development 
activities and granting relief from development standards.  The Project is within the 
District.  The Town intends to use the Infill Plan in connection with this Agreement. 

The Parties intend to develop the Project utilizing a pre-development phase (the “Pre-
Development Phase”) and (if the predevelopment phase demonstrates that the Project 
is feasible) a development phase (the “Development Phase”).  

Depending on the results of the Pre-Development Phase, the property will be made 
available to the Developer under either of two options: (i) pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-256, 
under which the Town will transfer the Property to the County and the County will make 
the Property available to the Developer pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-256 (the “County 
Option”), or (ii) under a Government Property Lease Excise Tax (“GPLET”) lease 
pursuant to A.R.S. § 42-6201 et seq (the “GPLET Option”). 

The Town has determined that encouraging the development of the property pursuant 
to this Agreement will result in significant economic and other public purpose benefits to 
the Town and its residents by, among other things: (i) providing for the planning, design, 
engineering, construction, acquisition, and/or installation of public infrastructure in order 
to support anticipated development of the property and the larger area that includes the 
property; (ii) the development of the property in a manner consistent with the Town’s 
comprehensive land use plan; (iii) an increase in sales tax revenues to the Town arising 
from or relating to the development of the property; and (iv) the creation of new jobs and 
otherwise enhancing the economic welfare of the residents of the Town. 
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 

A No vote would mean that negotiations with Startup Pavilion Inc. (DBA Innovation 
Pavilion Inc.) and Pinal County would cease and the subsequent “Pre-Development” 
and “Development” phases of the project would not occur. 
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 

A Yes vote would start the “Pre-Development” Phase of the project in concert with the 
Town of Florence and Pinal County.   
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Within two business days after the effective date, and in reliance on the benefits 
described in the Economic Impact Report, the Town shall pay a deposit of $66,000 to 
Innovation Pavilion upon signing of this agreement. 
 
 
 
 



Subject: Resolution No, 1644-17 Startup Pavilion Inc.                               Meeting Date: October 2, 2017 
Page 3 of 2 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Resolution No. 1644-17 
Development Agreement 
Exhibits A - E 



 1

RESOLUTION NO. 1644-17 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT RELATING TO REAL PROPERTY FOR 
CONSTRUCTION OF A MIXED-USE PROJECT LOCATED ON TWELVE 
ACRES ON ASSESSOR PARCEL NUMBER 200-40-160.  

 
  
 WHEREAS, A.R.S. 9-500.05 authorizes the Town of Florence (“Town”) to enter 
into development agreements with persons having an interest in real property located in 
the Town and Developer and Town desire to enter into a development agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Startup Pavilion, LLC (dba Innovation Pavilion) (“Developer”), a 
Delaware C company, is in the process of acquiring real property located on 12 acres of 
Assessor Parcel Number 200-40-160 (“Property”) and Developer intends to construct a 
mixed-use development on the Property; and 
 
 WHEREAS, This Development Agreement (“Agreement”) is consistent with the 
portions of the Town’s 2020 General Plan applicable to the Property on the date this 
Agreement is executed; and 
 
 WHEREAS, The Town Council, and the Town Manager, as administrator of the 
Town’s Infill Plan, acknowledge that this project meets the intent of the Infill Plan; and 
 
 WHEREAS, The Town Council and the Town Manager find, and the Developer 
acknowledges and agrees, that the project adds to the quality of life and the overall 
social, economic, and general well-being of the Florence community; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of 
Florence, Arizona, as follows: 
 
Section 1. The Town Council approves the Town of Florence entering into the 
Development Agreement with Developer that shall be in substantially the form and 
content attached hereto as Exhibit “1” to this Resolution and incorporated herein by 
this reference, after it has been executed by all other parties. 
 
Section 2. The Mayor of the Town of Florence is authorized to execute the 
Development Agreement and any related documents for and on behalf of the Town of 
Florence. 
 
Section 3. The Town Clerk is hereby directed to record the Development Agreement 
with the Pinal County Recorder no later than ten (10) days after the Town enters into 
the Agreement. 
 
 
 

 



 2

 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 
Arizona, this 2nd day of October 2017. 

 
 

  ______________________________ 
    Tara Walter, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
___________________________  ______________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk    Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney  
 
 



 

Page 1 of 31 
 

WHEN RECORDED, RETURN TO:  
 
Town of Florence 
Attn: Town Clerk 
P.O. Box 2670 
775 North Main Street 
Florence, AZ 85132 
 
 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 
THIS DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is entered into as of the ___ 
day of ______________, 2017 (the “Effective Date”), by and between the TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, an Arizona Municipal Corporation (the “Town”), Pinal County, a political 
subdivision of the State of Arizona (the “County”) and Startup Pavilion Inc., DBA 
Innovation Pavilion Inc., a Delaware C corporation (the “Developer”).  The Town, the 
County and the Developer are sometimes referred to herein collectively as the “Parties,” 
or individually as a “Party.” 
 

RECITALS 
 

A. The Developer intends to construct a mixed-use project on approximately 12 acres 
known as “Project Centennial” and more fully described and depicted on Exhibit 
“A” attached hereto (the “Project”). Pursuant to A.R.S.§ 9-499.10, the Town 
designated an Infill Incentive District (the “District”) and adopted the Town Core 
Infill Incentive Plan (the “Infill Plan”) to encourage redevelopment in the District 
by, among other activities, waiving fees for development activities and granting 
relief from development standards.  The Project is within the District. The Town 
intends to use the Infill Plan in connection with this Agreement. 
 

B. The Parties intend to develop the Project utilizing a pre-development phase (the 
“Pre-Development Phase”) and (if the predevelopment phase demonstrates that 
the Project is feasible) a development phase (the “Development Phase”).  

 
C. Developer is interested in developing a parcel of real property, currently owned by 

the Town of Florence, located north of the Florence Community Center, in the 
Town of Florence, Arizona, and as more particularly described in Exhibit “B” 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference (the “Property”).  
 

D. Depending on the results of the Pre-Development Phase, the Property will be 
made available to the Developer under either of two options: (i) pursuant to A.R.S. 
§ 11-256, under which the Town will transfer the Property to the County and the 
County will make the Property available to the Developer pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-
256 (the “County Option”), or (ii) under a Government Property Lease Excise Tax 
(“GPLET”) lease pursuant to A.R.S. § 42-6201 et seq (the “GPLET Option”). 

 



 

Page 2 of 31 
 

E. The Town has determined that encouraging the development of the Property 
pursuant to this Agreement will result in significant economic and other public 
purpose benefits to the Town and its residents by, among other things: (i) providing 
for the planning, design, engineering, construction, acquisition, and/or installation 
of public infrastructure in order to support anticipated development of the Property 
and the larger area that includes the Property; (ii) the development of the Property 
in a manner consistent with the Town’s comprehensive land use plan; (iii) an 
increase in sales tax revenues to the Town arising from or relating to the 
development of the Property; and (iv) the creation of new jobs and otherwise 
enhancing the economic welfare of the residents of the Town. 

 
F. If the parties elect to pursue the County Option, the County is willing to provide 

assistance for this Project by taking title to the Property and leasing and conveying 
the Property to the Developer (if the option set forth in Section 3.1.1  is exercised) 
as authorized pursuant to A.R.S.§ Section 11-256. 

 
G. The Parties understand and acknowledge that the Town seeks assurances from 

the Developer that the Developer will develop the Property in accordance with the 
“Plan of Development” (as generally indicated in Exhibit “C” and defined in 
Section 3.4.1 below).  

 
H. The Parties understand and acknowledge that this Agreement is a “Development 

Agreement” within the meaning of and entered into pursuant to the terms of 
A.R.S.§ 9-500.05, in order to facilitate the proper development of the Property by 
providing for, among other things:  (i) conditions, terms, restrictions and 
requirements for the Property by the Town; (ii) conditions, terms, restrictions and 
requirements for the construction and installation of public services/infrastructure 
improvements; (iii) the permitted uses for the Property; (iv) the density and intensity 
of such uses; (v) lot coverage and land disturbance requirements; and (vi) other 
matters related directly or indirectly to the development of the Property.  The terms 
of this Agreement shall constitute covenants running with the Property as more 
fully described in this Agreement. 

 
I. The Property currently has Territory Square Zoning. Any improvements will be 

required to be consistent with the zoning district. The Town acknowledges that the 
Project is consistent with the zoning district, but development of the Project shall 
be in accordance with all applicable law.  
 

J. The Town and the Developer acknowledge and agree that the Project meets the 
goals and objectives of the Town Core Infill Incentive Plan and A.R.S.§ 9-499.10. 

 
K. The Parties acknowledge that the Project adds to the quality of life and the overall 

social, economic, and general well-being of the Florence community.  
 

L. The Town acknowledges that portions of the public services/infrastructure 
improvements necessary for the Project may be provided as part of the early 



 

Page 3 of 31 
 

stages of the Development Phase of Project, prior to the time when such public 
services/infrastructure improvements would otherwise be required to serve 
completed phases of the development within the Property, and therefore prior to 
the time Developer might otherwise be required to provide or contribute to the cost 
of same and prior to the time that the expense of such public services/infrastructure 
improvements otherwise would be justified by the phasing of development of the 
Property. Developer is willing to provide such public services/infrastructure 
improvements earlier than otherwise required for its private development of the 
Property. The timeline for the Town and the Developer to provide these 
improvements is included in Exhibit “C”. 

 
M. The Town, the County and Developer, in reliance on the Innovations Pavilion 

Economic and Fiscal Impacts – Initial Estimates Memorandum, dated August 9, 
2017, attached hereto as Exhibit “D” (the “Economic Impact Report”) hereby 
acknowledge and agree that Developer’s obligation to develop the Project will 
result in significant direct and indirect benefits accruing to the Town, the County 
and the general public, including, without limitation according to the Plan of 
Development as described in Exhibit “C”. All of the foregoing will result in 
increased tax revenues and opportunities for employment within the Town, and will 
otherwise improve and enhance the economic welfare and quality of life for the 
inhabitants of the Town. Town has therefore agreed to waive certain Town-
imposed fees associated with the planning and construction of the Project and 
grant relief from certain standards in the Town’s Development Code, on strict 
compliance with the terms of this Agreement.  If the Parties elect to pursue the 
GPLET Option, the Economic Impact Report shall be updated to comply with 
A.R.S. § 42-6206. 

 
N. This Agreement is consistent with the Town of Florence 2020 General Plan, the 

North End Framework Area Master Plan, the Property’s Zoning and the Infill Plan. 
    
 

AGREEMENTS 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the above premises, the promises 
contained in the Agreement, the fees, construction sales and transaction privilege taxes 
and other revenues that will be received by Town as a result of the completion of the 
Project, the other economic benefits to be derived by the Town and its residents during 
the term of this Agreement by reason of the development of the Project and Developer’s 
performance hereunder, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and 
sufficiency of which the Parties acknowledge, the Parties hereto agree as follows: 
 

ARTICLE I 
DEFINITIONS 

 



 

Page 4 of 31 
 

In addition to words and terms defined elsewhere herein, the following terms shall have 
the meanings set forth below whenever used in this Agreement, except where the context 
clearly indicates otherwise: 
 
1.1  “BAP” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.3.5. 
 
1.2  “Certificate of Occupancy” means a final Certificate of Occupancy for each phase 
of the Project, or portions thereof, issued by the Community Development Department of 
the Town of Florence. 
 
1.3  “Commencement of Construction” or any grammatical derivation thereof, means 
(a) the obtaining of building permits and (b) actual commencement and diligent pursuit of 
the work described in each such permit. 
 
1.4   “Contractor Immigration Warranty” has the meaning set forth in Section 7.33.2. 
 
1.5   “County” means Pinal County, a political subdivision of the State of Arizona. 
 
1.6    “County Option” has the meaning set forth in Recital D. 
 
1.7  “Developer” means Startup Pavilion Inc., a Delaware C corporation and its permitted 
successors and assigns. 

1.8    “Developer Financed Improvements” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.3.3. 

 
1.9     “Development Election Date” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.3.6. 
 
1.10 “Development Phase” has the meaning set forth in Recital B.  
 
1.11 “Feasibility Study” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.3.3. 
 
1.12   “GPLET” has the meaning set forth in Recital D.  

 
1.13 “GPLET Amended Development Agreement” has the meaning set forth in Section 
3.1.2. 
 
1.14    “GPLET Lease” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.1.2. 
 
1.15    “GPLET Option” has the meaning set forth in Recital D. 
 
1.16     Reserved 

 
1.17    “Main Street Extension” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.5.2. 
 
1.18    “Outside Review Agency” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.4.3. 
   
1.19    “Party” or “Parties” has the meaning in the preamble. 



 

Page 5 of 31 
 

 
1.20   “Phase One” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.3.3. 

 
1.21   “Phases” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.2. 

 
1.22   “Plan of Development” or “Schedule of Performance” has the meaning set forth 

in Exhibit “C” and Section 3.4.1. 
 

1.23   “Pre-Development Phase” has the meaning set forth in Recital B. 
 

1.24   “Preliminary Feasibility Study” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.3.3. 
 
1.25  “Project” shall mean the mixed use development known as Innovation Pavilion 
described on Exhibit “A”, to be constructed in “Phases” as described in said Exhibit 
attached hereto and incorporated by this reference. It is noted that, at the time of this 
Agreement, there is only a detailed Plan of Development for Phase One. Future phases 
shall be in compliance with the Property’s Zoning and consistent with Plan of 
Development. 

 
1.26   “Project Community Manager” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.3.1. 

 
1.27   “Property” shall mean that certain real property referred to in Recital B and 
described in Exhibit “B” attached hereto and incorporated by this reference. 

 
1.28  “Public Improvements” means all improvements which may be constructed from 
time to time on the Property as part of the Project, including, without limitation, all tenant 
improvements, utilities, driveways, parking areas, walls, landscaping and other 
improvements of any type or kind to be built by Developer. 

 
1.29  Reserved 

 
1.30 “Schedule of Deliverables” has the meaning on Exhibit E. 

 
1.31  “Services” has the meaning set forth in Section 7.33.7. 
 
1.32 “Town” means the Town of Florence, an Arizona Municipal Corporation, and any 
successor public body or entity. 
 
1.33 “Town Council” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.2. 

 
1.34  “Updated Economic Impact Report” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.1.2. 
 
1.35  “Zoning Ordinance” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.4.1. 

 
ARTICLE II 

DEVELOPMENT PLAN 



 

Page 6 of 31 
 

 
2.1. Incorporation of Recitals and Exhibits. The foregoing Recitals are true and correct 
and, together with all Exhibits attached hereto and referenced herein, are incorporated by 
this reference as if fully set forth herein. 
 
2.2. Term and Effective Date. The Developer, its successors and assigns, shall have 
the right to implement development on the Property in accordance with this Agreement 
for a period of fifteen (15) years from the date this Agreement is approved by the Mayor 
and Town Council of the Town (the “Town Council”) and the County Board of 
Supervisors, at which time this Agreement shall automatically terminate as to the Property 
without the necessity of any notice, agreement or recording by or between the Parties 
(the “Term”); provided that provisions of this Agreement that specifically survive the 
termination of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect, subject only to the 
termination provisions herein specifically related thereto. 
 
2.3. Pre-Development Phase. 
 

2.3.1 Stakeholders Meetings.   No later than ninety (90) days following the 
Effective Date, the Developer shall provide a person who will work in Pinal County who 
shall serve as the “Project Community Manager.”  The Project Community Manager 
shall start convening local stakeholders meeting within 180 days after the Effective 
Date. The Developer will conduct no less than fifteen (15) stakeholders’ meetings to 
address the issues set forth in the “Schedule of Deliverables” attached as Exhibit “E”. 
Capitalized terms used in this Section 2.3 that are not otherwise defined shall have the 
meaning set forth in “Exhibit E”. 

 
2.3.2 Initial Development Milestones.  No later than one (1) year following the 

Effective Date, the Developer shall have: 
 

a. contracted with a real estate developer for the Project; 
b. completed a Corporate Innovation Analysis, Inventory and Plan; 
c. completed a SMART-City Analysis, Inventory and Plan;  

 
2.3.3 Feasibility Study for Phase One of Pre - Development Phase.   No later 

than nine (9) months after the Effective Date, the Developer shall have completed a 
preliminary project feasibility study (the “Preliminary Feasibility Study”) to establish 
regional corporate innovation opportunities.  At a minimum, the Feasibility Study shall 
include the items set forth below: 

 
a. identified tenants for the Project; 
b. completed a financial proforma for the Project;  
c. completed site plan for the Project; 
d. completed “Innovate Florence Report;” 
e. A plan of activities and initiatives with a timeline and development 

objectives; 
f. A list of potential initiatives for government innovation; 



 

Page 7 of 31 
 

g. An inventory of local/regional corporations and assess need for 
corporate innovation services and infrastructure; 

h. A plan for business attraction and innovation practices; 
i. An inventory of education sector stakeholders that produce high tech   

workforce; 
j. Explore the possibility of a STEM school within the innovation campus; 

and 
 
The Developer shall submit the Preliminary Feasibility Study to the Town for review and 
comment.  The Town shall provide comments to the Developer within thirty (30) 
following the Town’s receipt of the Preliminary Feasibility Study.  The Developer shall 
address Town comments and provide a final Feasibility Study (the “Feasibility Study”) 
to the Town and County no later than sixty (60) days after the feedback.  The Feasibility 
Study shall include a detailed phasing plan that identifies site and infrastructure public 
improvements (collectively, the “Developer Financed Improvements”), including an 
analysis of necessary public improvements to be provided in connection with the first 
phase of the Project (“Phase One”).   
 

2.3.4 Town Obligations During Pre-Development Phase.  In connection with the 
Pre-Development Phase, the Town shall provide introductions to stakeholders and shall 
provide office space for Developer to operate until an innovation campus is built.  Within 
two (2) business days after the Effective Date, and in reliance on the benefits described 
in the Economic Impact Report, the Town shall pay Sixty-Six Thousand Dollars 
($66,000) to Innovation Pavilion upon signing of this Agreement.  

 
2.3.5 County Obligations During the Pre-Development Phase.  In connection 

with the Feasibility Study and in reliance on the benefits described in the Economic 
Impact Report, pursuant to the Pinal County Business Assistance Program (the “BAP”), 
the County shall reimburse Developer for all expenses eligible for reimbursement under 
the BAP which are incurred by Developer after the Effective Date. Total reimbursements 
to Developer from the BAP shall not exceed One Hundred Thousand Dollars 
($100,000).  Developer may submit a request for reimbursement for expenses eligible 
under the BAP following the Developer’s accomplishment of all obligations under 
Section 2.3.3 of this Agreement.  The County shall reimburse Developer for expenses 
eligible under the BAP within thirty (30) days following the submission of a paid invoice 
for the costs to be reimbursed and supporting documentation evidencing such 
expenses.  It is understood by all parties, that any BAP funds provided to the Developer 
during the Pre-Development Phase shall be refunded to the County if the Development 
Phase is not completed within sixty (60) months of the Effective Date.  The Developer 
shall reimburse the County within thirty (30) days of the sixty (60) month deadline. 

 
2.3.6 Decision to Proceed to Development Phase.  Following the submission of 

the Feasibility Study, the Parties shall meet to discuss the implementation of the 
Feasibility Study.  If all three Parties agree to proceed to the Development Phase, the 
parties shall elect to proceed to the Development Phase (the “Development Election 
Date”) and shall undertake the obligations of Article III of this Agreement. If all three 



 

Page 8 of 31 
 

parties do not agree to the proceed to the Development Phase, this Agreement shall 
terminate.  The Development Phase shall commence on the Development Election Date 
if the parties agree to proceed to the Development Phase. 

 
2.3.7 Town/County Development Partnership.  Prior to the Development 

Election Date, and depending on the alternative selected by the Developer, the County 
and the Town will enter negotiations on an agreement to convey real property and 
potentially develop a joint facility adjacent to the Property.  As such, all parties 
acknowledge a desire to partner and to support the County Option described in Section 
3.1.1, if necessary.  
 

ARTICLE III 
DEVELOPMENT MATTERS 

 
3.1. County Option versus GPLET Option. If the Parties elect to proceed with the 
Development Phase, the Town and the Developer must elect to proceed under either the 
County Option or the GPLET Option.   
 
 3.1.1 County Option.  If the Town and the Developer elect to proceed under the 
County Option, the Town and Developer provide the County written notice of such 
election and within two (2) business days after such notice the Town shall convey the 
Property to the County in consideration of the County agreeing to enter into a “Lease 
Option Agreement” with the Developer in a form acceptable to the County, the Town 
and the Developer and promptly  thereafter the County shall enter into the Lease Option 
Agreement with the Developer.  The terms of the Lease Option Agreement shall comply 
with A.R.S.§ Section 11-256. 
 
 3.1.2 GPLET Option. If the Town and the Developer elect to proceed under the 
GPLET Option, the Town shall order an amendment to the Economic Impact Report.  
Following the completion of such amendment (the “Updated Economic Impact Report”), 
and assuming the Updated Economic Report complies with the requirements of  A.R.S. 
§ 42-6201 et seq., the Town and the Developer shall negotiate in good faith an 
amendment to this Agreement (the “GPLET Amended Development Agreement”) as 
may be required to satisfy the requirements of A.R.S.  § 42-6201 et seq. and a GPLET 
Lease in a form acceptable to the County, the Town and the Developer (the “GPLET 
Lease”).  Thereafter, and prior to Town Council approval of the GPLET Amended 
Development Agreement and the GPLET Lease, the Town shall issue the notices as 
required by A.R.S. § 42-6206.    
 
3.2 Schedule of Performance. Town and Developer intend that the Project shall be 
developed pursuant to, and in accordance with, the description and the Schedule of 
Performance attached hereto as part of the Plan of Development (Exhibit “C”).  It is 
understood by the parties that the Project may be developed in phases (collectively, the 
“Phases”) as set forth on “Exhibit C”.  Completion of construction and Acceptance of the 
final Phase of the Project shall occur no later than fifteen (15) years after the Effective 
Date. Phase One and each Phase thereafter must include necessary public 



 

Page 9 of 31 
 

services/infrastructure improvements as required by the Town.  As a condition to the 
Town’s obligations to fund the public improvements set forth in Section 3.5, the Developer 
must complete the Developer Financed Improvements on or before the dates required by 
Schedule of Performance or provide financial assurance in form, substance and amount 
acceptable to the Town. 
 
3.3. Compliance with Schedule of Performance.  If the Developer fails to comply with 
the Schedule of Performance, upon ninety (90) days written notice by the Town to the 
Developer, this Agreement shall automatically terminate as to any Phase not completed 
as of the date of such notice.   
 
3.4 Development Standards.  
 
 3.4.1. Plan of Development.  The various exhibits attached hereto and this 
Agreement collectively constitutes a “Plan of Development” (herein so called) which 
includes modifications to the Town of Florence Land Development Code (the “Zoning 
Ordinance”).  It is the intent of the Parties that the Project be constructed in accordance 
with the Zoning Ordinance as amended by the terms of this Agreement.  This Agreement 
is limited in scope in that its sole purpose is to allow for the limited set of modifications to 
the Zoning Ordinance as set forth herein.  All public improvements must meet or exceed 
Town, county, state, and federal design requirements. 
 
 3.4.2. Approvals. The Town agrees that, in connection with all requests for 
approval relating to the Project that no extraordinary plan or review requirements will be 
imposed on Developer; provided however, that nothing herein shall preclude Town from 
the reasonable exercise of its normal review processes and other governmental functions 
within its police powers.  Developer additionally agrees and acknowledges that the Town 
may exercise its discretion in the manner provided by law. The Town acknowledges that 
it will use good faith efforts to expedite Town approvals.  
 
 3.4.3 Plan Submittal.  Developer shall submit all plats and plans to the Town.  
Development of the Property cannot occur until the Town has concurred that the plans 
comply with Town standards.  Town shall review said plans and provide Developer with 
its comments on these submittals in a reasonably timely manner, and may retain the 
services of a private company or individual (“Outside Review Agency”) to provide 
expedited development review processes upon the request of Developer.  The Town and 
Developer shall mutually agree on the Outside Review Agency selected from the Town’s 
procurement list.  The fee for such expedited review shall be double the then existing fee, 
except as otherwise stated herein.  
 
 3.4.4. Further Council Approval.  The Parties hereby agree and understand that, 
subsequent to the execution of this Agreement, and based upon the Town’s review and 
due consideration, including without limitation, the conduct of the requisite public 
hearings, the Town Council shall consider approval of all actions required to be 
considered under this Agreement. 
 



 

Page 10 of 31 
 

 3.4.5. Dedications.  Multiple dedications of easements and rights-of-way are 
required for the Project and such shall be done in accordance with usual and customary 
codes and procedures. This includes, but is not limited to, utility easements, access 
easements and on and off-site right-of-way dedications. 
 
3.5 Improvements.  In order to satisfy minimum code requirements on-site and off-
site improvements will be required as part of this Project, but only undertaken by the Town 
as and when the Developer satisfies the Developer Financed Improvements as required 
by the Schedule of Performance.  
  

3.5.1 The Town has determined that the existing public water transmission and 
wastewater collection systems that serve the Property are currently not adequate to serve 
Phase One of the Project, which consists of approximately twelve acres, up to three 
buildings, and related site improvements.  The Town will be responsible for conducting 
the water/sewer utility needs analysis and designing the necessary improvements for 
Phase One. The analysis and design is estimated to cost the Town not to exceed 
approximately $100,000. The Town will also be responsible for constructing the 
necessary off-site improvements necessary for Phase One.  The improvements are 
estimated to cost not to exceed approximately $700,000. Dependent on technical 
analysis, the Developer may need to design, construct, and dedicate public water and 
wastewater improvements with future phases. Required future public utility improvements 
will be allocated among Phases based on technical analysis and as approved by the 
Town Engineer.  The cost of such future public water and wastewater improvements shall 
be paid by Developer.  

 
3.5.2  The Town has determined that the existing pavement cross-sections (“Main 

Street Extension”), access points, and turn lanes that serve the Property are not 
adequate to serve the Phase One of the Project. The Main Street Extension does not 
include necessary drainage, ADA, or multimodal improvements required for the Project 
or any modifications required by the approved Traffic Impact Study for the Project.  The 
Town will be responsible for completion of a Traffic Impact Analysis (“TIA”) for the Project, 
consistent with Town guidelines. The TIA is estimated to cost not to exceed approximately 
$30,000, and an outside consultant will be hired to complete the TIA for the Project.  The 
Town will assist with design, construction, and dedication of the transportation 
improvements necessary for Phase One, and such improvements shall be as determined 
by the Town Engineer.  The improvements are estimated to cost not to exceed 
approximately $1,300,000, but the Town shall have no obligation to fund any amounts set 
forth in this Section 3.5 unless the Developer satisfies the Developer Financed 
Improvements as and when required by the Schedule of Performance. 

 
3.5.3  If necessary for Phase One or any subsequent phases, the Developer will 

design, construct, and dedicate all necessary transportation improvements per the 
approved Traffic Impact Analysis for the Project. 

 
3.5.4  The Developer shall design and install commercial fire sprinkler systems for 

all proposed commercial buildings to be constructed on the Property. 



 

Page 11 of 31 
 

 
3.5.5  Dependent on technical analysis and at the sole discretion of the Town 

Engineer, the Town will consider the use of alternative surfacing materials for on-site 
parking areas and internal circulation routes to accommodate the party’s architectural 
expectations while not deviating from Federal, state, county and local codes and 
standards including ADA, MAG, and IBC. Any alternative materials use for access roads, 
walkways and/or parking shall be maintained to codes in perpetuity. 
 
 3.5.6 Traffic ImpactAnalysis.  The Town will provide the TIA for Phase One and 
shall provide improvements in connection with the TIA pursuant to Section 3.5.2 of this 
Agreement.  All other improvements required by the TIA shall be paid by the Developer 
and the Developer shall otherwise satisfy all stipulations required by the Town as a result 
of the TIA prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy (“C of O”) for each Phase 
of the Project.  The TIA will require future updates when local and regional impacts if the 
Project are determined.  The Developer shall pay for any future TIA update and 
improvements related thereto.  Public improvements may include but are not limited to 
widening, street lighting, turn lanes, deceleration lanes, multimodal improvements, traffic 
control, and curb and gutter, all of which shall be funded by the Developer. 
 
 3.5.7 Flood Control. Development of the Property shall comply with the 
requirements of the United States Army Corp of Engineers (USCOE), Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA), and all applicable state and local laws, regulations and 
ordinances, and to the extent they are not superseded by the requirements of the USCOE, 
FEMA, or state and local laws, regulations and ordinances.  Developer agrees to comply 
with all laws, regulations, ordinances or requirements of any governmental entity, 
including the Florence Flood Control District.   
 
 3.5.8 Expedited Plan Review. The Town has agreed to expedite, at no added cost 
to the Developer, all building safety and fire safety plan reviews and inspections on Phase 
One of the Project.   
 
 3.5.9 Filing, Inspection, Review, Development Impact, and Permit Fees.  State 
Statutes and the Town’s Development Code define how Development Impact Fees 
(“DIF”) are collected and correlated with the approved Infrastructure Improvement Plan 
(“IIP”).  For Phase One of the Project, the Town agrees that one half (1/2) of the 
calculated Development Impact Fees shall be paid at the time of issuance of any building 
permit and the second one half (1/2) shall be paid prior to issuance of a Certificate of 
Occupancy for the first structure on-site. This obligation shall be done in accordance with 
all applicable laws.  In good faith, in the spirit of cooperation regarding the infrastructure 
required for this Project, and in reliance on the benefits described in the Updated 
Economic Impact Report the Town agrees to waive fees and amounts set forth below for 
Phase One, but all such fees and amounts are estimates and subject to change. 
 

a. The legal review deposit for the Development Agreement application. 
($1,000) 

b. Engineering report reviews ($1,500) 



 

Page 12 of 31 
 

c. Easement dedication fees associated with the project. ($400) 
d. Water main/service inspection ($481) 
e. Sewer main/service inspection ($275) 
f. Water tap ($825) 
g. Sewer tap ($950) 
h. Water meter ($1,050) 
i. Tap water main/shut down ($350) 
j. ½ of the fire sprinkler fee for Public Works. ($2,500) 
k. Fire sprinkler inspection for Fire Department ($850) 
l. Fire flow testing by the Fire Department. ($240) 

 
3.6. Other Incentives.  In addition, the Town will consider the incentives listed below 
which (if agreed upon by the Town and the Developer) shall be included in an amendment 
to this Agreement to be negotiated in good faith by the Town and the Developer following 
the Development Election Date. 
 

a. New Markets Tax Credits (NMTC) assistance 
b. U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA-RD) Rural Development 

funding 
c. Arizona Commerce Authority (ACA) 
d. Economic Development Administration (EDA) Grants 
e. Retail sales tax abatement 
f. Utility rebates 

 
The Developer shall pay all other current applicable filing fees, plan review fees, permit 
fees and building fees in effect at the time of issuance of any filing, review or permit 
issuance. 
 
3.7  Deviations from Subdivision Ordinance, Zoning Ordinance and Other 
Codes.  
 
 3.7.1. Setbacks. The Project will comply with applicable setback requirements for 
the Territory Square Zoning District.   
 

3.7.2. Subdivision of Property.  The Project will consist of approximately 12 acres. 
All subdivisions shall be done in accordance with applicable codes and procedures. 
 
 3.7.3. Building Height.  The Territory Square Zoning District allows for a building 
height on the Project of up to sixty (60) feet for all commercial uses. The Town commits 
to not changing the building height requirements on the Property without the consent of 
the Developer. 
 
 
3.8  General Cooperation. Town and Developer acknowledge and agree that they shall 
cooperate in good faith with each other and use their respective good-faith and 
commercially reasonable efforts to pursue the Project as contemplated by this 



 

Page 13 of 31 
 

Agreement.  Town agrees to use its reasonable best efforts to assist Developer or its 
affiliates with other governmental agencies as appropriate, including the State of Arizona 
Department of Transportation and any state or local agencies whose approvals are 
required for the Project. 
 

ARTICLE IV 
REPRESENTATIONS 

 
4.1  Town Representations.  The Town represents and warrants to the Developer 
that: 
 
 4.1.1  The Town’s execution and delivery of this Agreement have been duly 
authorized and agreed to in compliance with the requirements of the Town of Florence 
Town Code. 
 
 4.1.2 All consents and approvals necessary to the execution and delivery of this 
Agreement by the Town have been obtained, and no further action needs to be taken in 
connection with such execution, delivery and performance. 
 
 4.1.3 The Town will execute and acknowledge when appropriate all documents 
and instruments and take all reasonable actions necessary to evidence and implement 
this Agreement. 
 
 4.1.4 The execution and delivery of this Agreement by the Town is not prohibited 
by, and does not conflict with, any other agreements, instruments or judgments or 
decrees to which the Town is a party or is otherwise subject. 
 
 4.1.5 The Town has been assisted by legal counsel of its own choosing in 
connection with the preparation and execution of this Agreement. 
 
4.2. Developer Representations.  The Developer represents and warrants to the 
Town that: 
 
 4.2.1 The Developer has the full right, power and authorization to enter into this 
Agreement and to perform its obligations and undertakings under this Agreement, and 
the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement by the Developer has been 
duly authorized and agreed to in compliance with the organizational documents of the 
Developer. 
 
 4.2.2 All consents and approvals necessary to the execution, delivery and 
performance of this Agreement have been obtained, and no further action needs to be 
taken in connection with such execution, delivery and performance. 
 
 4.2.3. The Developer will execute and acknowledge when appropriate all 
documents and instruments and take all actions necessary to implement, evidence and 
enforce this Agreement. 



 

Page 14 of 31 
 

 
 4.2.4 As of the Effective Date, the Developer knows of no litigation, proceeding, 
or investigation pending or threatened against or affecting the Developer, which could 
have a material adverse effect on the Developer’s performance under this Agreement 
that has not been disclosed in writing to the Town. 
 
 4.2.5 This Agreement (and each undertaking of the Developer contained herein) 
constitutes a valid, binding and enforceable obligation of the Developer, enforceable 
according to its terms, except to the extent limited by bankruptcy, insolvency and other 
laws of general application affecting creditors’ rights and by equitable principles, whether 
considered at law or in equity.  The Developer will, at its sole cost and expense, defend 
the validity and enforceability of this Agreement and each of its terms in the event of any 
proceeding or litigation which challenges the validity or enforceability of any provisions of 
this Agreement or the authority of the Developer or the Town to enter into or perform any 
provision under this Agreement and shall indemnify the Town against any cost, expense, 
liability or judgment (including attorneys’ fees, court costs and expert witnesses) incurred 
by the Town in connection with any such litigation or proceeding.  The severability and 
reformation provisions of Section 7.9 shall apply in the event of any successful challenge 
to this Agreement. 
 
 4.2.6 The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement by the 
Developer is not prohibited by, and does not conflict with, any other agreements, 
instruments, judgments or decrees to which the Developer is a party or to which the 
Developer is otherwise subject. 
 
 4.2.7 The Developer has not paid or given, and will not pay or give, any third party 
any money or other consideration for obtaining this Agreement other than normal costs 
of conducting business and costs of professional services such as the services of 
architects, engineers and attorneys. 
 
 4.2.8 The Developer has been assisted by legal counsel of its own choosing in 
connection with the preparation and execution of this Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE V 

EVENTS OF DEFAULT; REMEDIES 
 
5.1 Events of Default by the Developer. Default or Event of Default (each respectively 
herein so called) by the Developer under this Agreement shall mean one or more of the 
following: 
 

5.1.1 Any representation or warranty made in this Agreement by the Developer 
was materially inaccurate when made or shall prove to be materially inaccurate 
during the Term; 
5.1.2 The Developer fails to comply with any dates established herein for any 
required actions of the Developer hereunder, for any reason other than an 
Enforced Delay; 



 

Page 15 of 31 
 

5.1.3 Foreclosure (or deed in lieu of foreclosure) upon any mechanic’s, 
materialmen’s or other lien on the Project prior to Completion of construction or 
upon any improvements on the Project, but such lien shall not constitute a 
Default if the Developer deposits in escrow sufficient funds to discharge the lien 
or otherwise bonds over such liens in an customary fashion and maintain such 
deposit during the pendency of litigation; 
5.1.4 The Developer intends to bring joint venture partners to this development 
project and this agreement may be transferred to new joint ventures or newly 
formed LLC companies in parts or in whole.  
5.1.5 It shall be a default hereunder if:  (i) any petition or application for a 
custodian, as defined by Title 11, United States Code, as amended from time 
to time (the “Bankruptcy Code”) or for any form of relief under any provision of 
the Bankruptcy Code or any other law pertaining to reorganization, insolvency 
or readjustment of debts is filed by or against Developer or any partnership of 
which Developer is a partner, their respective assets or affairs, and such 
petition or application is not dismissed within ninety (90) days of such filing; (ii) 
Developer makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors, is not paying 
material debts as they become due, or is granted an order for relief under any 
chapter of the Bankruptcy Code; (iii) a custodian, as defined by the Bankruptcy 
Code, takes charge of any property of Developer or any property of any 
partnership of which Developer is a partner; (iv) garnishment, attachment, levy 
or execution in an amount in excess of an amount equal to ten percent (10%) 
of its net worth is issued against any of the property or effects of Developer, or 
any partnership of which Developer is a partner, and such issuance is not 
discharged or bonded against within ninety (90) days; (v) the dissolution or 
termination of existence of Developer unless its successor by transfer or 
operation of law is continuing the business of operating the Project; or (vi) there 
is a material false statement or material breach of any representation, warranty 
or covenant, or there is a material false statement or material omission, by 
Developer under any other document forming part of the transaction in respect 
of which this Agreement is made. 

 
5.2 Events of Default by the Town.  Default or an Event of Default by the Town under 
this Agreement shall mean one or more of the following: 
 

5.2.1 Any representation or warranty made in this Agreement by the Town was 
materially inaccurate when made or shall prove to be materially inaccurate 
during the Term; or 
5.2.2 The Town fails to observe or perform any other material covenant, 
obligations or agreement required of it under this Agreement. 

 
5.3 Grace Periods, Notice and Cure.  Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default by 
any Party, such Party shall, upon written notice from a non-defaulting Party, proceed 
immediately to cure or remedy such Default and, in any event, such Default shall be cured 
within thirty (30) days (or twenty (20) days in the event of a monetary default) after receipt 
of such notice, or, if such Default is of a nature that is not capable of being cured within 



 

Page 16 of 31 
 

thirty (30) days shall be commenced within such period and diligently pursued to 
completion, such total cure period not to exceed ninety (90) days after transmission of 
such written notice of default. 
 
5.4 Remedies on Default.  Whenever any Event of Default occurs and is not cured 
(or cure undertaken) in accordance with Section 5.3 of this Agreement, the non-defaulting 
Party may take any of one or more of the following actions: 
 
 5.4.1 Remedies of the Town.  The Town’s remedies shall include, but not be limited 
to, the following: 
  (a) If an Event of Default by the Developer occurs prior to completion of 
construction and with respect to the Developer’s obligation to construct or develop any 
Public Improvements in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, the Town may 
suspend any or all of its obligations under this Agreement during the period of the Default.  
If the Default has not been cured within the applicable cure period set forth in Section 5.3, 
the Town may (but is not obligated to) terminate this Agreement by written notice of such 
termination to the Developer. 
  (b) If an Event of Default by the Developer occurs at any, whether prior to 
or after completion of construction of Public Improvements, the Town may seek special 
action or other similar relief (whether characterized as mandamus, injunction or 
otherwise), requiring the Developer to undertake and to fully and timely perform its 
obligations under this Agreement, including, but not limited to, completion of construction 
of any Public Improvements required hereby or referenced herein, injunctive relief to 
address a public safety concern or to enjoin any construction or activity undertaken by 
the Developer which is not in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 
  (c) If an Event of Default by the Developer occurs with respect to 
Developer’s obligations to cause the completion of construction of any Public 
Improvements referenced herein or required hereby, Developer shall be deemed to have 
assigned its rights under the construction contract or contracts related thereto to the 
Town; and the Town may thereafter: (i) cause the completion of such public 
improvements in accordance with the terms of said construction contract(s), in which 
event the Town may “call” (or otherwise seek to recover the amounts described therein) 
the letter of credit (or other accepted form of financial assurance provided by Developer) 
for all amounts expended by the Town or otherwise incurred in connection with such 
Default; or (ii) bring an action against Developer seeking to recover all of the Town’s 
actual damages incurred by the Town in connection with such Default, including but not 
limited to all amounts incurred to cause the completion of construction of such Public 
Improvements by the Town, or in excess of any amounts received or recovered pursuant 
to the letter of credit (or other accepted form of financial assurance). 
  (d)  If an Event of Default occurs at any time with respect to any indemnity 
obligation of the Developer, the Town shall have all rights available at law, in equity and 
pursuant to this Agreement, including the right to seek and obtain actual and 
consequential damages. 
 
 5.4.2 Remedies of the Developer.  The Developer’s exclusive remedies shall 
consist of, and shall be limited to, the following: 



 

Page 17 of 31 
 

 
  (a) If an Event of Default by the Town occurs at any time, whether prior to 
or after completion of construction and with respect to the Developer’s obligation to 
construct or develop any public improvements in accordance with the terms of this 
Agreement, the Developer may seek special action or other similar relief (whether 
characterized as mandamus, injunction or otherwise), requiring the Town to undertake 
and to fully and timely perform its obligations under this Agreement. 
 
5.5 Delays; Waivers.  Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, any 
delay by any Party in asserting any right or remedy under this Agreement shall not operate 
as a waiver of any such rights or limit such rights in any way; and any waiver in fact made 
by such Party with respect to any Default by the other Party shall not be considered as a 
waiver of rights with respect to any other Default by the non-defaulting Party or with 
respect to the particular Default except to the extent specifically waived in writing.  It is 
the intent of the Parties that this provision will enable each Party to avoid the risk of being 
limited in the exercise of any right or remedy provided in this Agreement by waiver, laches 
or otherwise at a time when it may still hope to resolve the problems created by the Default 
involved. 
 
5.6 Enforced Delay in Performance for Causes Beyond Control of Party. 
 
Whether stated or not, all periods of time in this Agreement are subject to this Section 5.6 
and the grace and cure periods in Section 5.3.  Neither the Town nor the Developer, as 
the case may be, shall be considered in Default of its obligations under this Agreement in 
the event of an enforced delay due to the following causes beyond its control and without 
its fault, without its failure to comply with applicable laws, or without its negligence (an 
“Enforced Delay”): (1) acts of God, acts of public enemy, acts of the federal, state or local 
government and acts of third parties; (2) litigation concerning the validity and 
enforceability of this Agreement not related to a breach of an obligation or representation 
or warranty under this Agreement or relating to transactions contemplated by this 
Agreement (including the effect of petitions for initiatives or referendum), fires, floods, 
epidemics, quarantine, restrictions, strikes, embargoes, labor disputes, and unusually 
severe weather or the delays of subcontractors or materialmen due to such causes; and 
(3) without limiting the foregoing, any action or inaction of the Town, its officers, agents, 
agencies, departments, committees, Council members, board members or 
commissioners which is negligent or contrary to applicable laws and which (without the 
Developer’s fault, negligence or failure to comply with applicable laws) materially delays, 
directly or indirectly, the Developer’s ability to comply with the Schedule of Performance 
or any other construction schedule or requirement imposed by this Agreement.  In no 
event will Enforced Delay include any delay resulting from general economic or market 
conditions, unavailability for any reason of particular tenants or purchasers of portions of 
the Project, nor from the unavailability for any reason of particular contractors, 
subcontractors, vendors, investors or lenders desired by the Developer in connection with 
the Project, it being agreed that the Developer will bear all risk of delay which are not 
Enforced Delay.  In the event of the occurrence of any Enforced Delay, the time or times 
for performance of the obligations of the Party claiming Enforced Delay shall be extended 



 

Page 18 of 31 
 

for the period of time of the Enforced Delay; provided that the Party seeking the benefit 
of the provision of this Section 5.6 shall, within thirty (30) days after such Party knows or 
reasonably could have known of any such Enforced Delay, first notify the other Party of 
the specific delay in writing and claim the right to an extension for the period of the 
Enforced Delay; and provided further that in no event shall any Enforced Delay extend 
beyond ninety (90) days. 
 
5.7 Rights and Remedies Cumulative.  The rights and remedies of the Parties are 
cumulative, and the exercise by either Party of any one or more of such rights shall not 
preclude the exercise by it, at the same or different times, of any other right or remedy for 
any other Default by the other Party. 
 
5.8 Dispute Resolution. If the Parties cannot resolve any dispute that arises out of this 
Agreement between, or among, themselves, the Parties agree that there shall be a forty-
five (45) day moratorium on litigation during which time the Parties agree to attempt to 
settle the dispute by mediation before commencement of litigation. The mediation shall 
be held under the commercial mediation rules of the American Arbitration Association. 
The matter in dispute shall be submitted to a mediator mutually selected by Developer 
and the Town. If the Parties cannot agree upon the selection of a mediator within seven 
(7) days, then within three (3) days thereafter, the Town and the Developer shall request 
the presiding judge of the Superior Court in and for the County of Pinal, State of Arizona, 
to appoint an independent mediator. The mediator selected shall have at least five (5) 
years’ experience in mediating or arbitrating disputes relating to commercial property 
development. The cost of any such mediation shall be divided equally between the Town 
and Developer, or in such other fashion as the mediator may order. A Party shall be free 
to initiate litigation upon the conclusion of mediation if no mutual agreement between, or 
among, the Parties is entered as a result of the mediation. 
 
5.9 Effect of Event of Termination. Upon the termination of this Agreement as the result 
of the Default of the Developer, the Developer shall have no further rights to the Town-
provided development incentives pursuant to this Agreement accruing from and after the 
termination of this Agreement. 
 

ARTICLE VI 
LIMITATION ON ASSIGNMENT AND TRANSFER 

 
6.1  No Limitation on Transfer.  Developer intends to bring in joint venture partners for 
the real estate development part of this project. Parts or all this agreement may be 
transferred to newly formed LLCs; provided, however that any such transfer is subject to 
the approval of the Town, which approval may not be unreasonably withheld.  
 
6.2  Assignment.  Developer intends to bring in joint venture partners for the real estate 
development part of this Project. Parts or all of this Agreement may be assigned to newly 
formed LLCs; provided, however that any such assignment is subject to the approval of 
the Town, which approval may not be unreasonably withheld.  
 



 

Page 19 of 31 
 

ARTICLE VII 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 
7.1 Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence with regard to performance under the 
terms and provisions of this Agreement, and any amendment, modification or revision 
thereof, with respect to the actions and obligations of each person bound by the terms 
hereof. 
 
7.2 Nonliability of Town Officials. No Town Council member, agent, official, 
representative, attorney or employee of the Town shall be personally liable to Developer, 
or any successor or assignee, (a) in the event of any default or breach by the Town, or 
(b) for any amount which may become due to the Developer or its successor or assign, 
or (c) with respect to any obligation of the Town under the terms of this Agreement.  
 
7.3 Liability and Indemnification. 
 
 7.3.1 Pre-Development Phase. During the Pre-Development Phase, to the fullest 
extent permitted by law, the Developer and Town as the “Indemnifying Party”) shall each 
protect, defend, indemnify and hold harmless the other, and other Party’s managers in 
the case of the Developer and Council members in the case of the Town and each of their 
respective, agents, officers, officials, representatives and employees (collectively, the 
“Indemnified Party”) from and against all suits, claims, demands, damages, losses, 
liabilities, fines, charges, penalties, administrative and judicial proceedings and orders, 
judgments, remedial actions of any kind, and all costs and cleanup actions of any kind, 
together with expenses (including but not limited to attorneys’ fees, court costs, experts’ 
fees, the cost of appellate proceedings, and all claim adjusting and handling expenses), 
relating to, arising out of, resulting from or alleged to have resulted from the Indemnifying 
Party’s acts, errors, mistakes or omissions relating to any action or inaction of the 
Indemnifying Party under this Agreement, including, but not limited to the acts, errors, 
mistakes, omissions, work or services of the Indemnifying Party’s agents, employees, 
contractors, subcontractors or anyone for whose acts they or the Indemnifying Party may 
be liable in the performance of this Agreement.  The Indemnifying Party’s duty to defend, 
hold harmless and indemnify the Indemnified Party shall arise in connection with any 
suits, claims, damages, losses or expenses that are attributable to or otherwise relate to, 
result from, or are alleged to have resulted from the Indemnifying Party’s acts, errors, 
mistakes or omissions relating to any action or inaction of the Indemnifying Party under 
this Agreement, including but not limited to the acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, work or 
services of the Indemnifying Party’s agents, employees, contractors, or anyone for whose 
acts they or  the Indemnifying Party may be liable in the performance of this Agreement, 
regardless of the legal or equitable grounds upon which such suits, claims, damages, 
losses and expenses are based.  The amount and type of insurance coverage 
requirements set forth herein are separate and independent from the indemnity provisions 
of this Agreement and shall not be construed in any way to limit the scope and magnitude 
of the indemnity provisions of this Agreement.  The indemnity provisions of this 
Agreement shall not be construed in any way to limit the scope, magnitude and 
applicability of the insurance provisions of this Agreement.  The foregoing indemnity 



 

Page 20 of 31 
 

obligations of the Indemnifying Party shall survive the expiration or termination of this 
Agreement for three (3) years and then expire.  The Town’s obligation as an Indemnifying 
Party under this Section 7.3.1 shall in the aggregate be no greater than One Hundred 
Thousand Dollars ($100,000). 
 

7.3.2 Development Phase. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Developer 
shall protect, defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Town, its Council members, 
agents, officers, officials, representatives and employees from and against all suits, 
claims, demands, damages, losses, liabilities, fines, charges, penalties, administrative 
and judicial proceedings and orders, judgments, remedial actions of any kind, and all 
costs and cleanup actions of any kind, together with expenses (including but not limited 
to attorneys’ fees, court costs, experts’ fees, the cost of appellate proceedings, and all 
claim adjusting and handling expenses), relating to, arising out of, resulting from or 
alleged to have resulted from the Developer’s acts, errors, mistakes or omissions relating 
to any action or inaction of the Developer under this Agreement, including, but not limited 
to the acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, work or services of the Developer’s agents, 
employees, contractors, subcontractors or anyone for whose acts they or the Developer 
may be liable in the performance of this Agreement.  The Developer’s duty to defend, 
hold harmless and indemnify the Town, its Council members, agents, officers, officials, 
representatives and employees shall arise in connection with any suits, claims, damages, 
losses or expenses that are attributable to or otherwise relate to, result from, or are 
alleged to have resulted from the Developer’s acts, errors, mistakes or omissions relating 
to any action or inaction of the Developer under this Agreement, including but not limited 
to the acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, work or services of the Developer’s agents, 
employees, contractors, or anyone for whose acts they or Developer may be liable in the 
performance of this Agreement, regardless of the legal or equitable grounds upon which 
such suits, claims, damages, losses and expenses are based.  The amount and type of 
insurance coverage requirements set forth herein are separate and independent from the 
indemnity provisions of this Agreement and shall not be construed in any way to limit the 
scope and magnitude of the indemnity provisions of this Agreement.  The indemnity 
provisions of this Agreement shall not be construed in any way to limit the scope, 
magnitude and applicability of the insurance provisions of this Agreement.  The foregoing 
indemnity obligations of the Developer shall survive the expiration or termination of this 
Agreement for three (3) years and then expire.  The Developer assumes the risk of any 
and all loss, damage or claims to any portion of the Project, except that risk of loss of the 
Public Improvements shall pass to the Town upon completion of construction and 
Acceptance. 

 
7.4 Conflict of Interest. Pursuant to Arizona law (A.R.S.§ 38-503 and 38-511), rules and 
regulations, no member, agent, official or employee of the Town shall have any personal 
interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement, nor shall any such member, agent, official 
or employee participate in any decision relating to this Agreement which affects his or her 
personal interest or the interest of any corporation, partnership or association in which he 
or she is, directly or indirectly, interested. This Agreement is subject to cancellation 
pursuant to the terms of A.R.S. § 38-511. 
 



 

Page 21 of 31 
 

7.5 Notices and Requests. Any notice or other communication required or permitted to 
be given under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly 
given if (A) delivered to the party at the address set forth below, (B) deposited in the U.S. 
Mail, registered or certified, return receipt requested, to the address set forth below or (C) 
given to a recognized and reputable overnight delivery services, to the address set forth 
below: 
 
If to the Developer:    

Startup Pavilion, Inc. 
dba Innovation Pavilion,  

    Attn: Vic Ahmed 
    9200 East Mineral Ave 
    Centennial, CO 80112 
 
If to the Town:   Town Manager 
    Town of Florence 
    P. O. Box 2670 
    Florence, Arizona 85132 
 
With a copy to:  Town Clerk 
    Town of Florence 
    P. O. Box 2670 
    Florence, Arizona 85132 
 
If to the County: Pinal County 
  135 N. Pinal Street 
  Administrative Complex 
  PO Box 827 
  Florence, Arizona 85132 
  Attention:  County Manager 
   
With a copy to: Pinal County 
  135 N. Pinal Street 
  Administrative Complex 
  PO Box 827 
  Florence, Arizona 85132 
  Attention:  County Attorney 
 
 
 
or at such other address, and to the attention of such other person or officer, as any Party 
may designate in writing by notice duly given pursuant to this Section.  Notices shall be 
deemed received: (A) when delivered to the Party; (B) three business days after being 
placed in the U.S. Mail, properly addressed, with sufficient postage; or (C) the following 
business day after being given to a recognized overnight delivery service, with the person 
giving the notice paying all required charges and instructing the delivery service to deliver 



 

Page 22 of 31 
 

on the following business day.  If a copy of a notice is also given to a Party’s counsel or 
other recipient, the provisions above governing the date on which a notice is deemed to 
have been received by a Party shall mean and refer to the date on which the party, and 
not its counsel or other recipient to which a copy of the notice may be sent, is deemed to 
have received the notice. 
 
7.6 Disputes, Governing Law.  

 
7.6.1 Should any dispute, misunderstanding or conflict arise as to the terms or 

provisions contained in this Agreement, the matter shall first be referred to Town, and 
Town shall determine the term’s or provision’s true intent and meaning. 
 

7.6.2 This Agreement shall be deemed to be made under, shall be construed in 
accordance with, and shall be governed by the laws of the State of Arizona, without 
reference to choice of law or conflicts of laws principles thereof.  Any action brought to 
interpret, enforce, or construe any provision of this Agreement shall be commenced and 
maintained in the Superior Court of the State of Arizona in and for the County of Pinal (or, 
as may be appropriate, in the Justice Courts of Pinal County, Arizona or in the United 
States District Court for the District of Arizona, if but only if, the Superior Court lacks or 
declines jurisdiction over such action).  The Parties irrevocably consent to jurisdiction and 
venue in such courts for such purposes and agree not to seek transfer or removal of any 
action commenced in accordance with the terms of this paragraph.  
 
7.7 Amendment. No amendment or waiver of any provision in this Agreement will be 
binding: (A) on the Town unless and until it has been approved by the Town Council and 
has become effective; or (B) on the Developer unless and until it has been executed by 
an authorized representative.  
 
7.8 Waiver. No delay in exercising any right or remedy shall constitute a waiver thereof, 
and no waiver of any breach shall be construed as a waiver of any preceding or 
succeeding breach of the same or any other covenant, or conditions of this Agreement. 
None of the provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed to have been waived by an act 
or knowledge of any Party or its agent or employee, but only by a specific written waiver 
signed by an authorized officer of such Party and delivered to the other Party.  One or 
more waivers by either Party of any provisions, terms, conditions, or covenants of this 
Agreement, or any breach thereof, shall not be construed as a waiver of a subsequent 
breach by the other Party. 
 
7.9 Severability. Every provision of this Agreement is and will be construed to be a 
separate and independent covenant.  If any provision in this Agreement or the application 
of the same is, to any extent, found to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this 
Agreement or the application of that provision to circumstances other than those to which 
it is invalid or unenforceable will not be affected by that invalidity or unenforceability.  Each 
provision of this Agreement will be valid and will be enforced to the extent permitted by 
law and the Parties will negotiate in good faith for such amendments of this Agreement 



 

Page 23 of 31 
 

as may be necessary to achieve its intent, notwithstanding such invalidity or 
unenforceability. 
 
7.10 Covenant of Good Faith.  In exercising their rights and in performing their 
obligations pursuant to this Agreement, the Parties will cooperate with one another in 
good faith to ensure the intent of this Agreement can be attained. 
 
7.11 Headings; References.  The headings of this Agreement are for purposes of 
reference only and shall not limit or define the meaning of any provision of this Agreement.  
Any references in this Agreement to a “section” or a “subsection” shall include all 
subsections and paragraphs thereof. 
 
7.12 Binding Nature.  The provisions of this Agreement are binding upon and shall inure 
to the benefit of the Parties, and all of their permitted successors in interest and assigns. 
 
7.13 Third Parties.  No term or provisions of this Agreement is intended to, or shall be 
for the benefit of any person or entity not a Party hereto, and no such other person or 
entity shall have any right or cause of action hereunder. 
 
7.14 No Partnership.  None of the terms or provisions of this Agreement shall be 
deemed to create a partnership between or among the Parties hereto in their respective 
businesses or otherwise, nor shall it cause them to be considered members of a joint 
venture or joint enterprise.  Each Party hereto shall be considered a separate owner, and 
no Party hereto shall have the right to act as an agent for another Party hereto, unless 
expressly authorized to do so herein or by separate written instrument signed by the Party 
to be charged. 
 
7.15 Business Days.  If the last day of any time period stated in this Agreement or the 
date on which any obligation to be performed under this Agreement shall fall on a 
Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday, then the duration of such time period or the date of 
performance, as applicable, shall be extended so that it shall end on the next succeeding 
day which is not a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday. 
 
7.16 Computation of Time.  In computing any period of time under this Agreement, the 
date of the act or event from which the designated period of time begins to run shall not 
be included.  The last date of the period so completed shall be included unless it is a 
Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday, in which event the period shall run until the end of the 
next day which is not a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday.  The time for performance of 
any obligation or taking any action under this Agreement shall be deemed to expire at 
5:00 p.m. local time, (Florence, Arizona) on the last day of the applicable time period 
provided herein. 
 
7.17 Further Documentation.  The Parties agree in good faith to execute such further 
or additional instruments and documents and to take such further acts as may be 
necessary or appropriate to fully carry out the intent and purpose of this Agreement. 
 



 

Page 24 of 31 
 

7.18  Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the 
Parties hereto pertaining to the subject matter hereof and all prior and contemporaneous 
agreements, representations, negotiations, and understandings of the Parties hereto, oral 
or written, are hereby superseded and merged herein.  This Agreement may not be 
modified or amended except by a written document, signed by authorized representatives 
of each Party. 
 
7.19 Attorneys’ Fees. In the event either Party brings any action for any relief, 
declaratory or otherwise, arising out of this Agreement, or on account of any breach or 
default hereof, the prevailing Party shall be entitled to receive from the other Party 
reasonable attorneys’ fees and reasonable costs and expenses (including expert witness 
fees), determined by the arbitrator or court sitting without a jury, which fees shall be 
deemed to have accrued on the commencement of such action and shall be enforced 
whether or not such action is prosecuted through judgment. 
 
7.20 Schedules; Exhibits. All Schedules and Exhibits attached hereto are incorporated 
herein by this reference as though fully set forth herein.   
 
7.21  Reserved 
7.22 Taxes.  Developer shall be solely responsible for any and all tax obligations which 
may result out of Developer’s performance of this Agreement. 
 
7.23 Licenses.  Developer shall maintain in current status all Federal, State and local 
licenses and permits required for the operations of the business conducted by Developer. 
 
7.24 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, and 
each originally executed duplicate counterpart of this Agreement shall be deemed to 
possess the full force and effect of the original, but all of which together shall constitute 
one and the same instrument, binding on the Parties.  The Parties agree that this 
Agreement may be transmitted between them via facsimile or so-called “PDF” signature.  
The Parties intend that faxed or “PDF” signatures constitute original signatures and that 
a fully collated agreement containing the signatures (original, faxed or PDF) of the Parties 
is binding upon the Parties. 
 
7.25 Construction.  The terms and provisions of this Agreement represent the results of 
negotiations between the Parties, each of which has been or has had the opportunity to 
be represented by counsel of its own choosing, and neither of which has acted under any 
duress or compulsion, whether legal, economic or otherwise.  Consequently, the terms 
and provisions of this Agreement shall be interpreted and construed in accordance with 
their usual and customary meanings, and the Parties each hereby waive the interpretation 
and construction of this Agreement that ambiguous or conflicting terms or provisions 
contained in this Agreement shall be interpreted or construed against the Party whose 
attorney prepared the executed Agreement or any earlier draft of the same. 
 
7.26 Recordation of Agreement. This Agreement, and any amendment to it or 
cancellation of it, shall be recorded in its entirety in the Pinal County Recorder’s Office, 



 

Page 25 of 31 
 

Arizona not later than 10 days after it is fully executed by the Parties (or, in the case of 
an amendment or cancellation, any other necessary Party), as required by A.R.S.§ 9-
500.05(D).  The Developer shall reimburse the Town for all recording fees and charges. 
 
7.27 Town Manager’s Power to Consent.  The Town authorizes and empowers the 
Town Manager to consent to any and all requests of the Developer requiring the consent 
of the Town hereunder without further action of the Town Council, except for any actions 
requiring Town Council approval as a matter of law, including, without limitation, any 
amendment or modification of this Agreement. 
 
7.28 Estoppel Certificate. Within 10 days after receipt of written request therefor 
from the other party, Town or Developer or County, as the case may be, shall execute, 
acknowledge and deliver to the requesting party and/or its lender a statement certifying 
that this Agreement is unmodified and in full force and effect (or, if modified, stating the 
nature of such modification and certifying that this Agreement, as so modified, is in full 
force and effect), and acknowledging that there are not, to the certifying party’s 
knowledge, any uncured defaults on the part of the other party hereunder, or specifying 
such defaults if any are claimed.  Any such statement may be conclusively relied on by 
any auditor of either party, or by any prospective purchaser of the Property. 
 
7.29 Land Use Waivers. Upon approval of this Agreement by the Town, Developer 
shall execute and deliver to the Town, a so-called “Proposition 207 Waiver” in the form 
promulgated by the Town from time to time. The Developer on behalf of itself and all other 
parties having an interest in the Property intends to encumber the Property with the 
following agreements and waivers.  Developer agrees and consents to all conditions 
imposed by this Agreement, the land uses, densities, permits and other approvals for the 
Project, and by signing this Agreement waives any and all claims, suits, damages, 
compensation and causes of action for diminution in value of the Property the owner of 
the Property may have now or in the future under the provisions of the Private Property 
Rights Protection Act, A.R.S.§ 12-1131 et seq. (the “Act”) resulting from this Agreement, 
the land uses, densities, permits and other approvals for the Project as enacted and 
adopted by the Town.  Developer acknowledges and agrees the terms and conditions set 
forth in this Agreement and the land uses, densities, permits and other approvals for the 
Project cause an increase in the fair market value of the Property and such increase 
exceeds any possible reduction in the fair market value of the Property caused by any 
actions permitted by this Agreement as enacted and adopted by the Town.  The 
Developer and the Town understand and agree that the waivers contained in this Section 
are binding upon Developer’s successors in interest and assigns pursuant to the 
provisions of A.R.S.§ 9-500.05(D).  
 
7.30 Financial Assurances.  Nothing herein relieves the Developer from providing the 
Town with financial assurances, in a form and substance that complies with the Town’s 
requirements, in an amount sufficient to complete the Public Improvements contemplated 
by the Project or the Plan of Development. 
 



 

Page 26 of 31 
 

7.31  Rights and Remedies Cumulative.  The rights and remedies of the Parties are 
cumulative, and the exercise by either Party of any one or more of such rights shall not 
preclude the exercise by it, at the same or different times, of any other right or remedy for 
any other Default by the other Party. 
 
7.32  Insurance Requirements.   

 
7.32.1 General.  Developer agrees to comply with all Town ordinances and state 

and federal laws and regulations.  Without limiting any obligations or liabilities of 
Developer, Developer shall purchase and maintain, at its own expense, hereinafter 
stipulated minimum insurance with insurance companies duly licensed by the State of 
Arizona (admitted insurer) with an AM Best, Inc. rating of B ++ 6 or above or an equivalent 
qualified unlicensed insurer by the State of Arizona (non-admitted insurer) with policies 
and forms satisfactory to Town of Florence. Failure to maintain insurance as specified 
may result in termination of this Agreement at Town’s option.  The Developer is primarily 
responsible for the risk management if its work under this Agreement, including but not 
limited to obtaining and maintaining the required insurance and establishing and 
maintaining a reasonable risk control and safety program. Town reserves the right to 
amend the requirements herein at any time during the Agreement by providing thirty (30) 
days’ written notice to Developer.  The Developer shall require any and all subcontractors 
to maintain insurance as required herein naming the Town and Developer as “Additional 
Insured” on all insurance policies, except Worker’s Compensation, and this shall be 
reflected on the Certificate of Insurance and endorsements.  The Developer’s insurance 
coverage shall be primary insurance with respect to all available sources.  Coverage 
provided by the Developer shall not be limited to the liability assumed under the 
Indemnification provision of this Agreement. To the extent permitted by law, Developer 
waives all rights of subrogation or similar rights against Town, its Council members, 
agents, and employees.  All insurance policies, except Workers’ Compensation, required 
by this Contract, and self-insured retention or deductible portions, shall name, to the 
fullest extent permitted by law for claims arising out of performance of this Agreement, 
Town of Florence, its Mayor and Council members, agents, representatives, officers, 
directors, officials and employees as Additional Insureds.  The Town reserves the right to 
require complete copies of all insurance policies and formal endorsements required by 
this Agreement at any time. Failure to maintain the insurance policies as required by this 
Agreement, or to provide evidence of renewal, is a material breach and Event of Default.  
 

7.32.2 No Representation of Coverage Adequacy.  By requiring insurance herein, 
the Town does not represent that coverage and limits will be adequate to protect 
Developer.  The Town reserves the right to review any and all of the insurance policies 
and/or endorsements cited in this Agreement, but Town has no obligation to do so.  
Failure to demand such evidence of full compliance with the insurance requirements set 
forth in this Agreement or failure to identify any insurance deficiency shall not relieve 
Developer from, nor be construed or deemed a waiver of, its obligation to maintain the 
required insurance at all times during the performance of this Agreement. 
 



 

Page 27 of 31 
 

7.32.3 Coverage Term.  All insurance required herein shall be maintained in full 
force and effect until all work or services required to be performed under the terms of this 
Agreement is satisfactorily performed, completed and formally accepted by the Town of 
Florence, unless specified otherwise in this Agreement. 

 
7.32.4 Policy Deductibles and or Self-Insured Retentions.  The policies set forth in 

these requirements may provide coverage which contains deductibles or self-insured 
retention amounts.  Such deductibles or self-insured retention shall not be applicable with 
respect to the policy limits provided to the Town.  The Developer shall be solely 
responsible for any such deductible or self- insured retention amount.  The Town, at its 
option, may require Developer to secure payment of such deductible or self-insured 
retention by a surety bond or irrevocable and unconditional Letter of Credit. 

 
7.32.5 Use of Subcontractors.  If any work under this Agreement is subcontracted 

in any way, Developer shall execute written agreement with subcontractor containing the 
same Indemnification Clause and Insurance Requirements set forth herein protecting the 
Town of Florence and the Developer.  Developer shall be responsible for executing the 
agreement with subcontractor and obtaining Certificates of Insurance and endorsements 
verifying the insurance requirements. 

 
7.32.6 Evidence of Insurance.  Prior to commencing any work or Services under 

this Agreement, Developer shall furnish the Town with Certificate(s) of Insurance, or 
formal endorsements as required by this Agreement, issued by Developer’s insurer(s) as 
evidence that policies are placed with acceptable insurers as specified herein and provide 
the required coverage’s, conditions, and limits of coverage and that such coverage and 
provisions are in full force and effect. 

 
7.32.7 Required Coverage. 

 
7.32.7.1 Commercial General Liability.  Developer shall maintain  

“occurrence” form Commercial General Liability insurance with a limit of not less than 
$1,000,000 for each occurrence, $2,000,000 Products and Completed Operations Annual 
Aggregate, and $2,000,000 General Aggregate Limit.  The policy shall cover liability 
arising from premises, operations, independent contractors, products-completed 
operations, personal injury and advertising injury.  Coverage under the policy will be at 
least as broad as Insurance limited to, separation of insureds clause.  If any Excess 
insurance is utilized to fulfill the requirements of this paragraph, such Excess insurance 
shall be “follow form” equal or broader to coverage scope then underlying. 
 

7.32.7.2  Worker’s Compensation Insurance.  Developer shall maintain 
Workers Compensation insurance to cover obligations imposed by federal and state 
statutes having jurisdiction of Developer’s employees engaged in the performance of 
work or services under this Agreement and shall also maintain Employers Liability 
Insurance of not less than $100,000 for each accident, $100,000 disease for each 
employee and $250,000 disease policy limit. 

 



 

Page 28 of 31 
 

7.32.7.3   Commercial Auto Coverage.  Auto Liability limits of not less than 
$1,000,000 each accident, combined Bodily Injury and Property Damage Liability 
insurance. Certificate to reflect coverage for “Any Auto” or “All Owned, Scheduled, Hired 
and Non-Owned”.  

 
7.32.7.4 Errors & Omissions Liability (for Professional Engineering and 

Consulting or Legal Services as determined by the Town).  Coverage Amount: 
$1,000,000 per occurrence/aggregate, unless higher coverage limits are required under 
the solicitation documents, in which case such higher limits shall apply.  

 
7.33 Compliance with Certain Federal and State laws.   

 
7.33.1 The Developer understands and acknowledges the applicability to it 

of the American with Disabilities Act, the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 
and the Drug Free Workplace Act of 1989.  

 
7.33.2 Under the provisions of A. R. S. § 41-4401, Developer hereby 

warrants to the Town that the Developer and each of its subcontractors will comply with, 
and are contractually obligated to comply with, all Federal Immigration laws and 
regulations that relate to their employees and A. R. S. § 23-214 (A) (hereinafter 
“Contractor Immigration Warranty”). 

 
7.33.3 A breach of the Contractor Immigration Warranty shall constitute a 

material breach of this Agreement and Event of Default and shall subject the Developer 
to penalties up to and including termination of this Agreement at the sole discretion of 
the Town. 
 

7.33.4 The Town retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any 
contractor or subcontractor’s employee who works on this Agreement to ensure that the 
Developer or subcontractor is complying with the Contractor Immigration Warranty.  
Developer agrees to assist the Town regarding any such inspections. 
 

7.33.5 The Town may, at is sole discretion, conduct random verification of 
the employment records of the Developer and any subcontractors to ensure compliance 
with Contractor’s Immigration Warranty.  Developer agrees to assist the Town in regard 
to any random verifications performed. 
 

7.33.6 Neither the Developer nor any subcontractor shall be deemed to 
have materially breached the Contractor Immigration Warranty if the Developer or 
subcontractor establishes that it has complied with the employment verification 
provisions prescribed by section 274A and 274B of the Federal Immigration and 
Nationality Act and the E-Verify requirements prescribed by A. R. S. § 23-214, 
Subsection A. 
 

7.33.7 The provisions of this Section must be included in any contract the 
Developer enters into with any and all of its subcontractors who provide services under 



 

Page 29 of 31 
 

this Agreement or any subcontract.  “Services” are defined as furnishing labor, time or 
effort in the State of Arizona by a contractor or subcontractor.  Services include 
construction or maintenance of any structure, building or transportation facility or 
improvement to real property. 
 
  7.33.8 The provisions of this Section 7.33 must be included in any contract 
the Developer enters into with any and all of its subcontractors who provide services 
under this Agreement or any subcontract. 
 
7.34 Survival.  The indemnification provisions of this Agreement shall survive the 
execution and delivery of this Agreement, the closing of any transaction contemplated 
herein, and the rescission, cancellation, expiration or termination of this Agreement upon 
the terms and for the period set forth in each respective Article hereof. 
 
 

[BALANCE OF THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY; SIGNATURES AND 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS APPEAR ON PAGE FOLLOWING] 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 30 of 31 
 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed and caused to be 
signed by their duly authorized representatives, this Agreement to be effective on or as 
of the day and year first above written. 
 
ATTEST:      TOWN: 
 
 
       THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, an 
_____________________________   Arizona municipal corporation 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
       By _____________________________ 
            Tara Walter, Mayor 
______________________________ 
Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney 
 
 
        
 
 
ATTEST:      PINAL COUNTY: 
 
 
       PINAL COUNTY BOARD OF  
________________________   SUPERVISORS 
Sheri Cluff 
Clerk,  Board of Supervisors 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
       By _____________________________ 
            Chairman 
______________________________ 
County Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 31 of 31 
 

DEVELOPER: 
 
       ________________________, Inc.,  
       an Delaware C corporate 
 
 
       By: _____________________________ 
       Name: __________________________ 
       Title:____________________________ 
 
 
 
STATE OF __________________) 
               ) ss 
COUNTY OF________________ )  
  
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of __________, 
2017, by _________________________, the ___________________. 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Notary Public 
 
 
My Commission Expires: 
 
____________________ 

 























































TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM 
8b.  

MEETING DATE: October 2, 2017  

DEPARTMENT:  Development Services 

STAFF PRESENTER: Michelle Orton, Planning Manager    

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 1645-17:  Final Plat for Anthem at 
Merrill Ranch Unit 5 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading
 Other 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  
Subject:  Resolution No. 1645-17: Final Plat for AMR Unit 5  Meeting Date:  October 2, 2017 
Page 1 of 2 

 Community Vitality       Economic Property   Leadership and Governance     
 Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 
 Statutory      None 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 

Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1645-17:  A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY ARIZONA, APPROVING THE FINAL PLAT FOR 
ANTHEM AT MERRILL RANCH UNIT 5; AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION BY THE 
TOWN MANAGER OF SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 

Pulte Home Company, LLC requests approval of Final Plat of Anthem at Merrill Ranch 
(AMR) Unit 5 the proposed subdivision located within the AMR Planned Unit 
Development (PUD).  This area will be part of the Parkside of the AMR community. 

There are 57 single-family residential lots proposed for this 14.24 +/- acre subdivision. 
The resultant density for this particular unit will be 4.0 dwelling units per acre. The PUD 
zoning permitted an overall single-family residential density of 3.5 dwelling units per 
acre for AMR. 

Neighborhood streets in this unit are designed and constructed with a 42-foot-wide 
right-of-way (ROW). The 42-foot ROW will be utilized for this subdivision to ensure ADA 
compliance.  

The Preliminary Plat for AMR Unit 5 was approved by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission on April 20, 2017.  The Town of Florence Public Works and Fire 
Department staff have reviewed the proposed subdivision and support the approval of 
this Final Plat. Street names and addresses have been approved by the Town’s GIS 
Coordinator and water and sewer infrastructure will be provided by Johnson Utilities. 



Subject:  Resolution No. 1645-17: Final Plat for AMR Unit 5          Meeting Date:  October 2, 2017 
Page 2 of 2 

A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 

That Council has rejected the final plat for any reason whatsoever, the reasons 
therefore shall be recorded in the minutes pursuant to Section 150.233 (B).  The 
applicant would be required to return to the final plat process with the new revisions. 
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 

The Final Plat Anthem at Merrill Ranch, Unit 5 is approved and will be recorded with the 
office of the Pinal County Recorder. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Pulte Home Company, LLC. will construct the roadways within this subdivision to Town 
standards and will maintain the roadways until the end of the construction warranty 
period. 
 
Development of this subdivision allows for continued rooftop development and 
population growth within the Town of Florence, which subsequently will facilitate new 
employment and commercial opportunities. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. 1645-17 
Final Plat for Anthem at Merrill Ranch Unit 5 
 



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1645-17 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, APPROVING THE FINAL PLAT FOR ANTHEM AT MERRILL 
RANCH UNIT 5; AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION BY THE TOWN 
MANAGER OF SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS.   

 
 WHEREAS, the Final Plat Anthem at Merrill Ranch Unit 5 is consistent with the 
approved Anthem at Merrill Ranch Planned Unit Development; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Preliminary Plat for Anthem at Merrill Ranch Unit 5 was 
approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission on April 20, 2017.   

 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, Arizona, 

as follows: 
 

1.  Approve the Final Plat for Anthem at Merrill Ranch Unit 5 subject to 
Developer/Owner's compliance with all applicable laws and ordinances.  
  
 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 
Arizona, this 2nd day of October 2017. 
 

 
  ______________________________ 
  Tara Walter, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
___________________________  ______________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk    Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney  
 



BASIS OF BEARING

LOCATION MAP
1" = 500'SHEET INDEX

TRACT AREA TABLE

FINAL PLAT
ANTHEM AT MERRILL RANCH
UNIT 5 (TOWN OF FLORENCE, AZ)

TRACT         AREA (AC)    USAGE

POSTON BUTTE
GOLF CLUB

(2007-041667, PCR)

I
(2

0
0

7
-1

2
3

4
2

5
,P

C
R

)
F

E
D

L
X

R
O

A

MOSAIC
CHURCH

(2013-075667, PCR)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 50
(2016-008607, PCR)

MERRILL RANCH
UNIT 7

(PROPOSED)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 9
(2013-023840, PCR)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 11
(2006-082257, PCR)

MERRILL RANCH
UNIT 63

(PROPOSED)

MERRILL RANCH
UNIT 65

(PROPOSED)

19 20

MERRILL RANCH
UNIT 52

(PROPOSED)

H
U

N
T

H
IG

H
W

AY

VICINITY MAP
NOT TO SCALE

287 79

79

T4S
T5S

R
9E

R
8E

TOWN OF
FLORENCE

TOWN OF
FLORENCE

109

14151617181314

23
24 19 20 21 22 23

28302526 29 27 26

TOWN OF
FLORENCE

CENTRAL

MERRILL RANCH
UNIT 3

(PROPOSED)

MERRILL RANCH
PARKW

AY
(200

6-1
661

49,
PCR)

INDEPENDENCE WAY-1 (2011-051074,PCR)

SUBJECT PROPERTY
SUBJECT

PROPERTY

MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

GENERAL NOTES

WATER AND SEWER SERVICE CERTIFICATION

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

APPROVALS

PCR No.                            AREA (AC)       USAGE

UTILITIES AND SERVICES

SURVEYOR CERTIFICATION

SITUATED WITHIN THE SOUTH WEST 1/4 OF SECTION 20,
TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 9 EAST

OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER MERIDIAN,
TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZO NA

PULTE HOME COMPANY, LLC
DEVELOPER / OWNER

SURVEYOR
BAXTER DESIGN GROUP, LLC

I   hereby  certify   that   the   within   instrument   is
filed   in   the  official   records   of   this   County  as
Fee No.
Date:
Request of:
Witness my hand and official seal.
    Virgina Ross                      Pinal County Recorder
By:  Deputy

STATE OF ARIZONA
COUNTY OF PINAL }

RECORDER

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y



TRACT B

TRACT D

T
R

A
C

T
H

TRACT A

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9

10

11575655545352

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

28

29

30

31 23

24

25

26

27

454443424140

51 50 49 48 47 46

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22TRACT C

TRACT E

TRACT F

TRACT G

LC

21

3

SETBACKS (MIN.) 

KEY LOT DETAIL

LOT LAYOUT DETAIL

ROW

LCR
O

W

NE 1/4 SEC 19
SE 1/4 SEC 19

NW 1/4 SEC 20
SW 1/4 SEC 20

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

S
E

1/
4

S
E

C
19

S
W

1
/4

S
E

C
20

FLORENCE
MOSAIC CHURCH

(2013-075667, PCR)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 7
(PROPOSED)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 3
(PROPOSED)

W PATRIOT WAY

W SARATOGA WAY

N
  

A
S

T
O

R
IA

  
D

R
IV

E

N
B

A
R

R
IN

G
TO

N
D

R
IV

E

SITUATED WITHIN THE SOUTH WEST 1/4 OF SECTION 20,
TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 9 EAST

OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER MERIDIAN,
TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZO NA

F
E

L
IX

R
O

A
D

(F
E

E
N

o
.

2
0

0
7-123425, P

C
R

)

SYMBOL LEGEND

LINE LEGEND

ABBREVIATIONS

0

SCALE: 1"=

50 100 200 300

100'

I   hereby  certify   that   the   within   instrument   is
filed   in   the  official   records   of   this   County  as
Fee No.
Date:
Request of:
Witness my hand and official seal.
    Virgina Ross                      Pinal County Recorder
By:  Deputy

STATE OF ARIZONA
COUNTY OF PINAL }

RECORDER

SHEET 5

SHEET 3

SHEET 4

S
H

E
E

T
4

S
H

E
E

T
5

W TRENTON WAY

SHEET 3

LOCAL ROADWAY
(LOOKING NORTH AND EAST)

N.T.S.

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y



MATCH SHEET 4

W PATRIOT WAY

FLORENCE
MOSAIC CHURCH

(2013-075667, PCR)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 3
(PROPOSED)

SYMBOL LEGEND

LINE LEGEND

ABBREVIATIONS

0

SCALE: 1"=

20 40 80 120

40'

I   hereby  certify   that   the   within   instrument   is
filed   in   the  official   records   of   this   County  as
Fee No.
Date:
Request of:
Witness my hand and official seal.
    Virgina Ross                      Pinal County Recorder
By:  Deputy

STATE OF ARIZONA
COUNTY OF PINAL }

RECORDER

MATCH SHEET 5

S
E

1/
4

S
E

C
19

S
W

1
/4

S
E

C
20

N
A

S
T

O
R

IA
D

R
IV

E

F
E

L
IX

R
O

A
D

(F
E

E
N

o
. 2

0
07-123425, P

C
R

)

FELIX  ROAD
10' PUFE

(2009-064789, PCR)

NW 1/4 SEC 20
SW 1/4 SEC 20

SITUATED WITHIN THE SOUTH WEST 1/4 OF SECTION 20,
TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 9 EAST

OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER MERIDIAN,
TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZO NA

SEE SHEET 5
FOR UNIT 5 PROPERTY BOUNDARY

ALONG & ADJACENT TO UNIT 3

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y



MATCH SHEET 3

SYMBOL LEGEND

LINE LEGEND

ABBREVIATIONS

0

SCALE: 1"=

20 40 80 120

40'

I   hereby  certify   that   the   within   instrument   is
filed   in   the  official   records   of   this   County  as
Fee No.
Date:
Request of:
Witness my hand and official seal.
    Virgina Ross                      Pinal County Recorder
By:  Deputy

STATE OF ARIZONA
COUNTY OF PINAL }

RECORDER

M
A

T
C

H
S

H
E

E
T

5

SITUATED WITHIN THE SOUTH WEST 1/4 OF SECTION 20,
TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 9 EAST

OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER MERIDIAN,
TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZO NA

F
E

L
I X

R
O

A
D

(F
E

E
N

o
.

2
0

0
7 -1 2 34 2 5, P

C
R

)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 7
(PROPOSED)

FELIX  ROAD
10' PUFE

(2009-064789, PCR)

N
  

A
S

T
O

R
IA

 D
R

IV
E

W SARATOGA WAY

TRACT C
W  TRENTON  WAY

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y



M
A

T
C

H
S

H
E

E
T

4

SYMBOL LEGEND

LINE LEGEND

ABBREVIATIONS

0

SCALE: 1"=

20 40 80 120

40'

I   hereby  certify   that   the   within   instrument   is
filed   in   the  official   records   of   this   County  as
Fee No.
Date:
Request of:
Witness my hand and official seal.
    Virgina Ross                      Pinal County Recorder
By:  Deputy

STATE OF ARIZONA
COUNTY OF PINAL }

RECORDER

MATCH SHEET 3

SITUATED WITHIN THE SOUTH WEST 1/4 OF SECTION 20,
TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 9 EAST

OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER MERIDIAN,
TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZO NA

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 3
(PROPOSED)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 7
(PROPOSED)

N
B

A
R

R
IN

G
TO

N
D

R
IV

E

W SARATOGA WAY

W TRENTON WAY

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y



SITUATED WITHIN THE SOUTH WEST 1/4 OF SECTION 20,
TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 9 EAST

OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER MERIDIAN,
TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZO NA

SYMBOL LEGEND

LINE LEGEND

ABBREVIATIONS

I   hereby  certify   that   the   within   instrument   is
filed   in   the  official   records   of   this   County  as
Fee No.
Date:
Request of:
Witness my hand and official seal.
    Virgina Ross                      Pinal County Recorder
By:  Deputy

STATE OF ARIZONA
COUNTY OF PINAL }

RECORDER

DETAIL "A" DETAIL "B" DETAIL "C"

N  ASTORIA  DRIVE

W
  S

A
R

A
T

O
G

A
  

W
A

Y

46

TRACT F

W
  S

A
R

A
T

O
G

A
  

W
A

Y

N  ASTORIA  DRIVE

44

45

TRACT E

N  ASTORIA  DRIVE

23 24

T
R

A
C

T
 C

W
  

T
R

E
N

T
O

N
  

W
A

Y

DETAIL "D"

33

32

TRACT B

N
B

A
R

R
IN

G
T

O
N

D
R

I V
E

W  TRENTON  WAY

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

AR
Y



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
8c. 

MEETING DATE:  October 2, 2017 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Community Services 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Bryan Hughes, Community Services 
Director 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   
Subject:  CBRY Agreement  Meeting Date:  October 2, 2017 
Page 1 of 2 

 
SUBJECT:  Non-Exclusive Revocable License Agreement with 
the Copper Basin Railway, Inc. for access to the Poston Butte 
Preserve 

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Approval of Non-Exclusive Revocable License Agreement with the Copper Basin 
Railway, Inc., for access to the Poston Butte Preserve. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Town Staff has been negotiating with the Copper Basin Railway, Inc. (CBRY) to gain 
access to the Poston Butte Preserve.  The 160-acre preserve is Town property through 
a Bureau of the Land Management (BLM) patent, or restricted deed, which limits the 
use of the land for recreation or historic monument purposes.  The preserve is 
essentially landlocked, with leased BLM land to the east and west and private land to 
the north, along with a small private parcel on the southwest side.  The southern border 
is the railroad, which is also private land.  The access point along Hunt Highway is the 
long-accepted point of entry, although the Town has never had an official agreement 
with CBRY.  The access agreement requires the Town to indemnify CBRY and accept 
liability associated with the public’s use of the access point. 
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 

CBRY could eliminate or restrict access through the railroad underpass, denying the 
public access to the hiking trails and Town amenity.  
 



Subject:  CBRY Agreement  Meeting Date:  October 2, 2017 
Page 2 of 2 

A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 

The Town would have a one-year agreement, with automatic one-year renewals, with 
CBRY for access, allowing the Town time to pursue other long-term options for access 
and future development. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
$1,800 annually for additional railroad protective liability; cost can be covered in existing 
risk management budget and included annually in the future. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Non-Exclusive Revocable License Agreement with the Copper Basin Railway, Inc. 



 

Page 1 of 10 
 

NON-EXCLUSIVE 
REVOCABLE LICENSE AGREEMENT 

 
1.  PARTIES: 

 
This Non-Exclusive Revocable License Agreement (the “Agreement” or “License”), is 
entered into the   3rd   day of   October  , 2017 (the “Effective Date”), between the TOWN 
OF FLORENCE, an Arizona municipal corporation (the “Licensee” or “Town”), and the 
COPPER BASIN RAILWAY, INC, a(n) Arizona corporation (the “Licensor” or “Railway”). 
The Town and Railway are sometimes referred to in this License collectively as the 
“Parties” and each individually as a “Party”. 
 

2.  RECITALS: 
 

2.1. Town and Railway have discussed the joint benefits to be derived by 
permitting the Town and members of the public to share in the use and maintenance of 
the railroad underpass path and its adjacent parking (the “Licensed Area” or “Property”), 
and the Parties agree that it is in their mutual best interest to enter into this Agreement 
outlining the terms and expectations for the use and maintenance of the Property by the 
Town and members of the public;  

 
2.2. Licensor, as owner and operator of the Property, including the 

railroad underpass structure, has control of Licensor’s area located on Hunt Highway at 
approximately milepost 957.20, Florence, Arizona 85132 (the “Property”). Licensee 
desires to license from Licensor, on a revocable, non-exclusive basis, the Property 
depicted in Exhibit “A” for the purposes of allowing and inviting the general public to 
traverse under the railway underpass in order to gain pedestrian and bicycle access to 
trails, to allow vehicle parking adjacent to the path, and to allow appropriate signage 
related to such use; 

 
2.3. Licensee acknowledges and agrees to provide maintenance and 

general upkeep for the path and adjacent parking area located on the Licensed Area, 
including appropriate signage; 

 
2.4. Further, Railway understands and agrees that the Licensee may 

utilize Department of Corrections inmate labor for such maintenance tasks described 
herein.  Licensee understands and agrees that the Railway will maintain management 
oversight over the Property, and Licensee agrees to cooperate with the Railway to 
achieve such goals.  Licensee understands and agrees that the Railway will visit, inspect, 
and monitor all or any portions of the Property to ensure its rail operations continue 
unobstructed by the Use; 

 
2.5. Licensor is willing to grant Licensee and Licensee is willing to accept 

a revocable, non-exclusive, License to use the Licensed Area on the terms and subject 
to the conditions set forth below.  

 



 

Page 2 of 10 
 

 
3. AGREEMENTS: 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and representations, covenants 
and mutual promises herein and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt 
and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 
 

3.1. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS.  The foregoing Recitals are 
incorporated as agreements of the Parties. 

 
3.2.  GRANT OF NON-EXCLUSIVE LICENSE. Licensor hereby grants 

Licensee a non-exclusive license to use the Licensed Area for the purposes of allowing 
and inviting the Town and the general public to traverse under the railway underpass in 
order to gain pedestrian and bicycle access to trails, to allow vehicle parking adjacent to 
the path, and to allow appropriate signage related to such use subject to the terms and 
conditions of this License.   

 
3.3.  USE OF LICENSED AREA AND LICENSEE RESPONSIBILITIES. 

 
3.3.1. Use. Licensee shall use the Licensed Area only for the 

purposes of allowing and inviting the Town and the general public to traverse under the 
railway underpass in order to gain pedestrian and bicycle access to trails, to allow vehicle 
parking adjacent to the path, and to allow appropriate signage related to such use subject 
to the terms and conditions of this License (the “Use”). 

 
3.3.2. Compliance with Laws. Licensee, at Licensee’s sole cost, 

shall comply with all laws, ordinances, orders and regulations of any governmental 
authority, including those adopted by the Licensor, whether now or hereafter in effect, 
with respect to the use of the Licensed Area for the Use. 

 
3.3.3. Licensor’s responsibilities shall include:  
 

1. Maintain and operate the Property. 
2. Permit the Licensee to erect signage explaining to the 

public the rules for use of the Licensed Area.  
 

3.3.4. Town’s responsibilities at the Property shall include: 
 

1. The Town shall maintain the path and adjacent parking 
area and keep the Licensed Area free of garbage and 
debris.  

2. The Town will provide the signage it deems necessary to 
give the public notice of the applicable rules for the Use. 

3. The Town shall have the right to enter the Licensed Area 
at any time to maintain the path and parking area, erect 



 

Page 3 of 10 
 

signage and make repairs or improvements consistent 
with this License. 

4. Licensee will reimburse the Railroad for any taxes levied 
upon Licensees’ improvements and/or all other expenses 
arising from this License. 

 
3.4. TERM/USE PERIOD. 

 
3.4.1. Term. Except as provided in this License, the term of this 

License shall commence on the Effective Date and shall run through October 2, 2018, 
unless earlier terminated (the “Initial Term”).  This License shall be automatically renewed 
for a term of one (1) year at the end of the then current term unless any Party provides 
written notice to the other Parties of its intent not to renew the License at least sixty (60) 
days prior to the end of the then current term (the “Renewal Terms”).  

 
3.4.2. Early Termination by Licensee or Licensor. Any provision of 

Subparagraph 3.4.1. to the contrary notwithstanding, Licensor or Licensee has the right 
to terminate, suspend or abandon this Agreement for cause or convenience.  Licensor or 
Licensee may terminate this Agreement, or any part thereof for its sole convenience, at 
any time without penalty or recourse.   

 
3.4.3. Days/Hours of Use. Licensee shall use and occupy the 

Licensed Area for the Use as a trailhead and parking area as posted. (the “Use Period”). 
 

3.5 FEE. In consideration for this License, the Licensee provides a 
beneficial service to the Railway and the community and therefore, Licensee is required 
to pay $10.00 to Licensor as a one-time fee for use of the Licensed Area. 
 

3.6. RULES AND REGULATIONS. Licensee shall use and maintain the 
Licensed Area in accordance with Licensor’s rules and regulations. 

 
3.7. RESERVED.  
 
3.8.  INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE.  

 
3.8.1. Licensee, recognizing that Railroad’s operation and any use 

of Railroad property, tracks and Right of Way (ROW) involves increased risks, expressly 
assumes and agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Railroad from all risk, loss, costs, 
damages, claims, actions, cause and causes of action, suits, demands or expense 
(including a reasonable attorney’s fee) (“Damages”) to, and waives any right to ask or 
demand Damages for, Property of Licensee or any part thereof, at Location of 
Underpass/Pathway including loss of or interference with service thereof, including; (a) 
any fault, failure or negligence of Railroad construction, operation or maintenance of the 
Underpass or in rail operations through the Underpass/Pathway or otherwise; and/or (b) 
any fire, regardless of source or origin thereof.  For this Section, the term “Property of 



 

Page 4 of 10 
 

Licensee” shall include property of third parties situated or placed upon Railroad’s ROW 
by Licensee or by such third parties with the consent of or acknowledgement of Licensee.  
 

3.8.2. Licensee will protect, indemnify and hold harmless the 
Railroad its servants, agents, employees, lessees, successors and assigns against and 
from any and all loss, damages, suits, judgments, claims and expenses of every kind, 
arising from or growing out of, directly or indirectly, (a) the construction, existence, use, 
condition, maintenance or repair of said Underpass/Pathway; (b) injury to or death of any 
person whomsoever may enter upon or use said Underpass/Pathway; (c) loss of or 
damage to property in the possession of any such person while on or about said 
Underpass/Pathway; (d) any accident or collision at the point of ingress/egress; or (e) the 
violation by Licensee, or by any of its invitees, of any of the terms or provisions of this 
License/Agreement. 

 
3.8.3. Licensee and those providing service to the Licensee shall 

procure and maintain during the life of this Agreement General Liability Insurance which 
will insure the indemnity undertakings herein set forth.  Such insurance shall provide 
coverage of at least $500,000.00 dollars for bodily injury per person and $1,000,000.00 
aggregate bodily injury per accident, and $500,000.00 for property damage.  Licensee 
shall furnish the Railroad with a certificate evidencing that such insurance is in full force 
and effect and that the same will not be canceled without at least thirty (30) days advance 
written notice by the insurance carrier to the Railroad.  Licensee will provide certificate of 
insurance and an endorsement showing Railroad as additional insured with waiver of 
subrogation. 

 
3.9.  REPAIRS TO LICENSED AREA. 

 
3.9.1. Licensee’s Repairs. Licensee, at Licensee’s sole cost, shall 

promptly repair any damage to the Property resulting from the Use. 
 
3.9.2. The Walk Through. At least 48 hours prior to the end of the 

Term, Licensor and Licensee shall conduct a joint “walk through” of the Property with the 
object of preparing a jointly prepared “punch list” of those items, if any, which are to be 
repaired by Licensee, at Licensee’s sole cost, resulting from the Use (the “Repair Items”). 

 
3.9.3. Survival. Licensee’s obligations under this Paragraph 3.9 shall 

survive the expiration or earlier termination of this License and, in this regard at a mutually 
agreed upon time not to exceed 5 days after the termination or expiration of the Term, 
Licensee shall cause the Repair Items to be completed to Licensor’s reasonable 
satisfaction by a contractor licensed in Arizona and acceptable to Licensor in Licensor’s 
reasonable discretion. 
 

3.10. RESERVED. 
 
3.11. Acceptance of Licensed Area. Licensee has examined the Licensed Area, and 
Licensee hereby accepts the Licensed Area “as is” and “where is”. 



 

Page 5 of 10 
 

 
3.12.  DEFAULTS/REMEDIES.   

 
3.12.1. Events of Default. An Event of Default by Licensee shall exist 

upon the occurrence of any of the following: (i) the nonpayment of any sums on its stated 
date due; or, (ii) the nonperformance by Licensee of any other covenant or condition set 
forth herein, which shall not be fully cured, within 14 days after Licensee’s receipt of 
written notice from Licensor of Licensee’s nonperformance. 

 
3.12.2. Remedies. Upon Licensee’s default, Licensor may, at 

Licensor’s option: 
 

3.12.2.1. immediately terminate this License; 
 
3.12.2.2. re-enter and take exclusive possession of Licensed 

Area by legal proceeding or otherwise; 
 
3.12.2.3. in the event of any re-entry, Licensor may remove 

all persons from Licensed Area and Licensor may remove all of Licensee’s property 
located on or about the Licensed Area; 

 
3.12.2.4. re-entry of the Licensed Area shall be construed as 

an election by Licensor to terminate this License; 
 

 
3.13. ENTRY RESERVED BY LICENSOR. Licensor and Licensor’s 

agents, at all reasonable times during the Term, may enter the Licensed Area. Licensor 
will attempt to minimize any interference with Licensee’s use of the Licensed Area. 
Licensee shall not interfere in any way with the Licensor’s entry on the Licensed Area. 
 

3.14. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS. 
 

3.14.1. RESERVED.  
 
3.14.2. Surrender of Licensed Area. Upon the expiration or early 

termination of this License, Licensee, at Licensee’s sole cost, shall surrender the 
Licensed Area to Licensor in good condition, free and clear of all garbage and debris. 

 
3.14.3. Assignment. 

 
3.14.3.1. This License may not be assigned or sublet by 

Licensee without prior written consent of the Licensor, to be given or withheld in Licensor’s 
sole discretion. 

 
3.14.3.2. Licensor may assign any or all of Licensor’s rights or 

obligations under this License without seeking or obtaining Licensee’s consent hereto. 



 

Page 6 of 10 
 

 
3.14.4. Reserved. 
3.14.5. Notices. Except as otherwise required by law, all notices to 

be given or required under this License shall be in writing and shall be given by personal 
delivery, or e-mail or by deposit in the United States mail, certified or registered, return 
receipt requested, postage prepaid, or any express or overnight delivery service e.g., 
Federal Express service the locality to which addressed, delivery charges prepaid 
addressed to the Parties at the addresses set forth below, or at such other address as a 
Party may designate in writing pursuant hereto. Notice shall be deemed to have been 
given on the date on which notice is delivered, if notice is given by personal delivery or e-
mail, and on the date of deposit in the mail, if mailed or deposited with the overnight 
carrier, if used. Notice shall be deemed to have been received on the date on which the 
notice is received, if notice is given by personal delivery or e-mail or overnight courier, 
and on the 2nd day following deposit in the mail, if notice is mailed: 
 
If to Licensee:    Town of Florence 
      Attn: Town Manager 
      P. O. Box 2670 
      775 N. Main Street 
      Florence, AZ 85132 
 
If to Licensor:    Copper Basin Railway, Inc. 
      Attn: Bobby Blake, General Superintendent 
      P.O. Drawer 
      Hayden, AZ 85135 
 

3.14.6. Additional Acts. The Parties agree to execute promptly such 
other documents and to perform such other acts as may be reasonably necessary to carry 
out the purpose and intent of this License. 

 
3.14.7. Governing Law/Jurisdiction/Venue. This License shall be 

governed by and construed in accordance with the substantive laws of the State of 
Arizona, without reference to conflict of laws and principles. Any action brought to 
interpret, enforce, or construe any provision of this License shall be commenced and 
maintained in the Superior Court of the State of Arizona in and for County of Pinal (or, as 
may be appropriate, in the Justice Courts of Pinal County, Arizona or in the United States 
District Court for the District of Arizona, if but only if, the Superior Court lacks or declines 
jurisdiction over such action). The Parties irrevocably consent to jurisdiction and venue in 
such courts for such purposes and agree not to seek transfer or removal of any action 
commenced in accordance with the terms of this paragraph. Should any dispute, 
misunderstanding, or conflict arise as to the terms or provisions contained in this 
Agreement, the matter shall first be referred to the Town, and Town shall determine the 
term or provision’s true intent and meaning. 

 
3.14.8. No Liens. Licensee shall not create or permit any liens to be 

placed of record against the Property. 



 

Page 7 of 10 
 

 
3.14.9. Time of Essence. Time is of the essence of this License. The 

time within which an act must be accomplished, shall be calculated by excluding the first 
day and including the last day. However, if this License requires any act to be done or 
action to be taken on a date which is a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday, such act or 
action shall be deemed to have been validly done or taken if done or taken on the next 
succeeding day which is not a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday. 

 
3.14.10. Incorporation by Reference. All Exhibits to this License are 

fully incorporated herein as though set forth at length herein. 
 
3.14.11. Severability. If any provision of this License is determined 

to be unenforceable based on a final, non-appealable order of the Court, the remaining 
provisions shall nevertheless be kept in effect.  

 
3.14.12. No Conflicts of Interest. Licensor understands and agrees 

that pursuant to the provisions of A.R.S. 38-511, Licensee may terminate this License 
within 3 years after execution of the License without penalty or further obligation if any 
person significantly involved in initiating, negotiating, securing, draft or creating the 
License on behalf of the Licensee is or becomes, at any time while the License or an 
extension of the License is in effect, an employee of or a consultant to any other party to 
this License with respect to the subject matter of the License. 

 
3.14.13. Construction. The terms and provisions of this License 

represent the results of negotiations between the Parties, each of which has been, or has 
had the opportunity to be, represented by counsel of its own choosing, and neither of 
which has acted under any duress or compulsion, whether legal, economic, or otherwise. 
Consequently, the terms and provisions of this License shall be incorporated and 
construed in accordance with their usual and customary meanings. The Parties each 
hereby waive the application of any rule of law which would otherwise be applicable in 
connection with the interpretation and construction of this License and that ambiguities or 
conflicting terms or provisions contained in this License shall be interpreted or construed 
against the Party whose attorney prepared or drafted the executed License or any earlier 
draft of the same or any of its exhibits. 

 
3.14.14. Waiver. None of the provisions of this Agreement shall be 

deemed to have been waived by any act or knowledge of any party or its agents or 
employees, but only by a specific written waiver signed by an authorized officer of such 
Party and delivered to the other Party. 

 
3.14.15. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or 

more counterparts, and each originally executed duplicate counterpart of this Agreement 
shall be deemed to possess the full force and effect of the original, but all of which 
together shall constitute one and the same instrument, binding on the Parties.  The Parties 
agree that this Agreement may be transmitted between them via facsimile or so called 
“PDF” signature.  The Parties intend that faxed or “PDF” signatures constitute original 



 

Page 8 of 10 
 

signatures and that a fully collated agreement containing the signatures (original, faxed 
or PDF) of the Parties is binding upon the Parties.   

 
3.14.16. Licenses.  Licensee shall maintain in current status all 

Federal, State and local licenses and permits required for the Use during the Term. 
 
3.14.17. Non-exclusive Remedies.  The rights and remedies of 

Licensor and Licensee under this Agreement are not exclusive. 
 
3.14.18. Boycott of Israel.  Pursuant to A.R.S. 35-393.01, the 

Licensor, by execution of this Agreement, certifies that it is not currently engaged in, and 
agrees for the duration of this Agreement to not engage in, a boycott of Israel. 

 
 

[BALANCE OF THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY; SIGNATURES AND 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

  





 

Page 10 of 10 
 

Exhibit “A”  
to Revocable Non-Exclusive License Agreement 

 



W Hunt Hwy

Town Limits
Streets

County Highway

/
0 50 10025

Feet
Date Created: 8/22/2017 Date Modified: 8/22/2017

Exhibit A
Poston Bu tte Preserve Access
Copper Basin Railway, Inc.

This map is created for reference purposes only and is to
be used at your own risk.  The Town of Florence makes
no warranty as to the accuracy or completeness of the
information contained in this map and assumes no
liability for any errors or omissions contained therein, nor
for any direct, indirect, or consequential damag es Which
may be caused by its use.  It is the user’s responsibility to
verify all information contained herein.     2017-23 Town of Florence



TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
8d. 

MEETING DATE:  October 2, 2017 

DEPARTMENT:  Development Services 

STAFF PRESENTER:  Christopher A. Salas, P.E. 
Director / Town Engineer 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   
Subject: RCA Authorization to Contract with Holbrook Asphalt                     Meeting Date: October 2, 2017 
Page 1 of 2 

SUBJECT:  Authorization to contract with Holbrook Asphalt, 
LLC, to provide HA5 high density mineral bond pavement 
preservation treatment in various location. 

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading
 Other 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  Community Vitality  Economic Prosperity    

 Leadership and Governance     Partnership and Relationships    Transportation and Infrastructure     

Statutory      None

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 

Authorization to enter into a contract with Holbrook Asphalt LLC, to provide HA5 high 
density mineral bond pavement preservation treatment in various location as part of the 
Town of Florence CIP T-69 Pavement Preservation Program in an amount of 
$295,034.27. 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 

The surface of the various locations throughout Florence are worn and in need of 
asphalt preservation.  The HA5 product is a surface treatment designed to extend 
pavement life and protect the surface from moisture and UV rays.  HA5 installations are 
backed by a five-year warranty and the life of the treatment is expected to last seven to 
ten years. 

The City of Goodyear has an existing contract with Holbrook Asphalt, LLC, and the 
Town of Florence has the opportunity to piggyback on the City of Goodyear’s publicly 
bid with Holbrook Asphalt, LLC.  On November 15, 2015, the City of Goodyear entered 
into a contract with Holbrook Asphalt, LLC, to provide HA5 high density mineral bond 
pavement preservation treatment.  This contract was extended to November 15, 2017 
and has three extensions remaining on the contract.   

Per section 4.12 of the Town’s Purchasing Policy, Department Heads must approve all 
purchases regardless of dollar value.  This does not preclude the Department Head 
from obtaining the necessary approval from the Town Manager and/or Town Council, 



Subject: RCA Authorization to Contract with Holbrook Asphalt                     Meeting Date: October 2, 2017 
Page 2 of 2 
 

nor does this allow them to have signature authority on contracts.  The Town Manager 
has signature authority on purchases up to $24,999.  Town Council approval is required 
on any purchases of $25,000 or more. 
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 
 
Preventative maintenance would be delayed until the following fiscal year.  The asphalt 
pavement would continue to incrementally deteriorate.  As preventative maintenance is 
delayed the cost to maintain the streets is increased. 
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 
 
Preventative maintenance would occur as scheduled and the future costs would 
continue as projected. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The financial impact cost to apply the HA5 high density mineral bond pavement 
preservation on various roads is $256,551.27, plus a 15% contingency ($38,483.00), for 
a total of $295,034.27, as part of the Town of Florence CIP T-69 Pavement 
Preservation Program. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

Goodyear Contract 
Goodyear Extension 
TOF Cooperative Cover Contract 
Exhibit 1 - Merrill Ranch Parkway & Sun City Blvd Proposal 
 
 











































































































































1 
 

TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA 
CONTRACT FOR COOPERATIVE USE OF CITY OF GOODYEAR 

SOLICITATION/CONTRACT NUMBER CON-16-3332 AND CON-16-3332-A1 FOR 
HIGH DENSITY MINERAL BOND APPLICATION / SLURRY SEAL ON TOWN 

STREETS 
 
 

THIS CONTRACT (the “Contract”) is made and entered into effective as of the 2nd day 
of October, 2017 (“Effective Date”), by and between the Town of Florence, Arizona (the 
“Town”), and Holbrook Asphalt, LLC (the “Contractor”) and together with the Contract 
Documents referred to and incorporated herein, is the “resultant contract” contemplated 
in the City of Goodyear Solicitation No. 16-3332, Contract Number: CON-16-3332 and 
Contract Amendment No.1 Contract Number CON-16-3332-A1 for High Density Mineral 
Bond / Slurry Seal services.   The Town and the Contractor are sometimes referred to in 
this Contract collectively as the “Parties” and each individually as a “Party”.  
 

1. SCOPE OF WORK: The Contractor shall provide the Town all necessary labor, 
material, transportation services and equipment to perform High Density Mineral 
Bond Application / Slurry Seal on Town streets per contract specifications 
described in the attached scope of materials and services set forth in Exhibit “1” 
(the “Services”). The Contractor shall provide the Services in accordance with the 
schedule attached in Exhibit “1”, and the Contract Documents, including all 
exhibits to the Master Contract including but not limited to any Standard Terms 
and Conditions, Special Terms and Conditions and Detailed Specifications.  
Contractor agrees, at its own cost and expense, to do all of the work and furnish 
all of the equipment, personnel and materials necessary to provide in a good and 
substantial manner, and to the satisfaction of the Town, the Services. 

2. PRIORITY OF DOCUMENTS. It is further expressly agreed by and between the 
Parties that should there be any conflict between the terms of this Contract, the 
Master Contract, or the Contractor’s Proposal, then this Contract and the 
provisions of the Contract Documents shall control and nothing herein shall be 
considered as an acceptance of the terms of the said Proposal conflicting 
herewith or with the Master Contract, unless expressly stated herein. 

3. INCORPORATION: For and in consideration of this Contract and other good and 
valuable consideration, the Contractor agrees that the master cooperative 
solicitation/contract (the City of Goodyear Solicitation No. 16-3332, Contract 
Number: CON-16-3332, Contract Amendment No.1 Contract Number CON-16-
3332-A1 for High Density Mineral Bond Application / Slurry Seal services) is in 
full force and effect, and all terms and conditions of the Master Contract are 
incorporated by reference into this Contract, creating an agreement identical in 
terms between the Town and Contractor.  In the Master Contract, the terms: 
“City”, “City of Goodyear”, shall be deemed to be and refer to the Town of 
Florence; the terms: “Maricopa County”, shall be deemed to be and refer to Pinal 
County; the terms: “Pavement Manager”, shall be deemed to be and refer to the 
Florence Town Engineer, Town of Florence, 425 E. Ruggles Street, Florence, AZ 



2 
 

85132; and the terms: “Bidder”, “Contractor,” and “Offeror”, shall be deemed to 
be and refer to the Contractor under this Contract.  

4. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: This Contract consists of the following  contract 
documents, which by reference are incorporated herein: 
A. This signed Contract. 
B. The solicitation Documents for the City of Goodyear Solicitation No. 16-3332 

for High Density Mineral Bond / Slurry Seal, issued September 3, 2015 and 
Contract Number: CON-16-3332 effective November 16, 2015 and Contract 
Amendment No.1 Contract Number: CON-16-3332-A1 between the City of 
Goodyear and Holbrook Asphalt, LLC, including, but not limited to: Invitation 
for Bid, Instructions to Bidders, Fee Schedules; Notices; Checklists; 
Requirements for Proposers; Standard Terms and Conditions; Special Terms 
and Conditions; Scope of Work; Work Schedule; Certificates of Compliance; 
Warranties for Work; Work Forms; Attachments; Price Sheets; 
Questionnaires; Response Forms; Special Provisions and Specifications; 
Technical Provisions and Specifications; Schedules; Cooperative 
Authorizations; Exhibits; Solicitation Amendment No. 1 and No.2 (the 
“Contract Documents” or “Master Contract”). 

5. CONTRACT PRICING: Contract pricing shall be consistent with the Contract 
Documents and Contractor’s Proposal and is listed in Exhibit “1” (Price Sheet), 
and shall not exceed $ 295,034.27. 

6. TERM OF CONTRACT: The term of this Contract shall be from the Effective 
Date through satisfactory completion of the Services or delivery of Goods and 
acceptance of the Services and/or Goods by the Town. Time is of the essence to 
the terms of this Contract. 

7. COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL AND STATE LAWS. 
A. The Contractor understands and acknowledges the applicability to it of the 

American with Disabilities Act, the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 
1986 and the Drug Free Workplace Act of 1989.  

 
B. Under the provisions of A. R. S. § 41-4401, Contractor hereby warrants to the 

Town  that the Contractor and each of its subcontractors will comply with, and 
are contractually obligated to comply with, all Federal Immigration laws and 
regulations that relate to their employees and A. R. S. § 23-214 (A) 
(hereinafter “Contractor Immigration Warranty”). 

 
C. A breach of the Contractor Immigration Warranty shall constitute a material 

breach of this Contract and shall subject the Contractor to penalties up to and 
including termination of this Contract at the sole discretion of the Town. 

 
D. The Town retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any Contractor or 

Subcontractor’s employee who works on this Contract to ensure that the 
Contractor or Subcontractor is complying with the Contractor Immigration 
Warranty.  Contractor agrees to assist the Town in regard to any such 
inspections. 

 



3 
 

E. The Town may, at is sole discretion, conduct random verification of the 
employment records of the Contractor and any subcontractors to ensure 
compliance with Contractor’s Immigration Warranty.  Contractor agrees to 
assist the Town in regard to any random verification performed. 

 
F. Neither the Contractor nor any subcontractor shall be deemed to have 

materially breached the Contractor Immigration Warranty if the Contractor or 
subcontractor establishes that it has complied with the employment 
verification provisions prescribed by section 274A and 274B of the Federal 
Immigration and Nationality Act and the E-Verify requirements prescribed by 
A. R. S. § 23-214, Subsection A. 

 
G. The provisions of this Section must be included in any contract the Contractor 

enters into with any and all of its subcontractors who provide Services under 
this Contract or any subcontract.  “Services” are defined as furnishing labor, 
time or effort in the State of Arizona by a contractor or subcontractor.  
Services include construction or maintenance of any structure, building or 
transportation facility or improvement to real property. 

 
 

8. METHOD OF PAYMENT.  Method of payment shall be set forth in Exhibit “1”.  
If payment is to be made monthly, Contractor shall prepare monthly invoices and 
progress reports which clearly indicate the progress to date and the amount of 
compensation due by virtue of that progress.  All invoices shall be for Services 
completed or Goods accepted by the Town. 

9. TERMINATION.  Town, at any time and for any reason and without cause, may 
terminate, suspend or abandon any portion, or all, of this Contract at Town’s 
convenience without penalty or recourse.  Contractor shall receive payment for 
Services or Goods satisfactorily completed and accepted by Town, as 
determined by Town in its reasonable discretion, based on the Goods and/or 
Services requirements and schedule for payment. 

10. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.  It is understood that Contractor shall be an 
independent contractor with respect to Services and/or Goods provided under 
this Contract, and shall not be deemed to be a partner, employee, joint venture, 
agent, or to have any other legal relationship with Town. 

11. Notices.  Any notice to be given under this Contract shall be in writing, shall be 
deemed to have been given when personally served or when mailed by certified 
or registered mail, addressed as follows:  Town: Town of Florence, Town Clerk, 
775 N. Main Street, PO Box 2670, Florence, AZ 85132; and Contractor: Holbrook 
Asphalt, LLC Attn: Tregg Holbrook, Registered Agents Inc, 1846 E. Innovation 
Park Dr. Suite 100, Oro Valley, AZ 85755.. 

12.  INDEMNIFICATION.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor, its 
successors, assigns and guarantors, shall pay, defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless the Town of Florence, its Mayor and Council members, its agents, 
officers, officials, representatives and employees, from and against all demands, 
claims proceedings, suits, damages, losses and expenses (including but not 



4 
 

limited to attorneys’ fees, court costs, and the costs of appellate proceedings), 
and all claim adjustment and handling expenses, relating to, arising out of, or 
alleged to have resulted from the acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, Goods or 
Services of the Contractor, its agents, employees or any tier of Contractor’s 
subcontractors related to the Goods or Services in the performance of this 
Contract.  Contractor’s duty to defend, hold harmless and indemnify Town of 
Florence, its Mayor and  Council members, its agents, officers, officials, 
representatives and employees shall arise in connection with any claim, damage, 
loss or expense that is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease, death, or 
injury to, impairment, or destruction of property including loss of use of resulting 
therefrom, caused by Contractor’s acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, Goods, 
Services in the performance of this Contract including any employee of the 
Contractor, any tier of Contractor’s subcontractors or any other person for whose 
acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, Goods, Services the Contractor may be legally 
liable. 

13. WARRANTY.  Contractor warrants that the Goods and Services will conform to 
the requirements of this Contract.  Additionally, Contractor warrants that all 
Services will be performed in a good, workman-like and professional manner.  
The Town’s acceptance of Goods or Services provided by Contractor shall not 
relieve Contractor from its obligations under this warranty.  If any Goods or 
Services are of a substandard or unsatisfactory manner as determined by the 
Town, Contractor, at no additional charge to the Town, will provide Goods or 
redo such Services until they are in accordance with this Contract and to the 
Town’s reasonable satisfaction.  Unless otherwise agreed, Contractor, warrants 
that Goods will be new, unused, of most current manufacture and not 
discontinued, will be free of defects in materials and workmanship, will be 
provided in accordance with manufacturer’s standard warranty for at least one (1) 
year, unless otherwise specified, and will perform in accordance with 
manufacturer’s published specifications. 

14. PURCHASING POLICY.  The Town of Florence Town Code and Purchasing 
Policy govern this procurement and are incorporated as part of this Contract by 
this reference.  

15. GOVERNING LAW.  This Contract shall be deemed to be made under, shall be 
construed in accordance with, and shall be governed by the laws of the State of 
Arizona, without reference to choice of law or conflicts of laws principles thereof. 
The exclusive forum selected for any proceeding or suit in law or equity arising 
from or incident to this Contract shall be Pinal County, Arizona. 

16. PROHIBITED BOYCOTT.  Pursuant to A.R.S. 35-393.01, the Contractor, by 
execution of this Contract, certifies that it is not currently engaged in, and agrees 
for the duration of this Contract to not engage in, a boycott of Israel. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Contract effective as of the 
Effective Date set forth above. 
 
 
 



5 
 

TOWN OF FLORENCE, A municipal corporation 
 

       Date:_________________________ 
 

By: __________________________  
       Tara Walter, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk  
 
Approved as to Form 
 
______________________________ 
Cliff Mattice, Town Attorney 
 
 
CONTRACTOR 
 
By: ___________________________ 
 Date:__________________________ 
         
 
Its: __________________________  
         
 
           



PROPOSAL
Date

9/7/2017

Estimate

17-34836

Client
Florence City
PO Box 2670
425 E. Ruggles
Florence, AZ 85132

Project Location
CROSS STREETS:
Merrill Ranch Parkway
and Sun City Boulevard
(see maps)

P.O. Number Terms
Due upon completion

Advisor
Aaron

Project Description

2017-Anthem Units

State License #
AZ-ROC261715

Region
AZ, Southern

www.HolbrookAsphalt.com

Arizona Office
3806 S 16th Street
Phoenix, AZ 85040

P: 602.307.0425
F: 435.656.3943

Nevada Office
2900 Meade Ave, Ste 7
Las Vegas, NV 89118

P: 702.823.3902
F: 702.777.7575

Utah Office
1545 E Commerce Dr.
St. George, UT 84790

P: 435.652.4427
F: 435.656.3943

Description Quantity U/M Rate Total
Anthem Units
HA5 HIGH DENSITY MINERAL BOND:  (51,941 SQ. YD.)
-- Clean & prepare surface using high pressure air & wire bristle brooms.
-- Install "HA5" High Density Mineral Bond advanced performance pavement preservation treatment.
-- No guarantee surface treatments will adhere to areas saturated with motor oil.
-- HA5 meets demands of APWA (American Public Works Association) specification 
   (Section 32 01 13.68 High Density Mineral Bond).
-- HA5 pricing as per the Mesa City Cooperative Use Contract
AREAS INCLUDE: 
*Unit # 8 = 14,210 SY,            *Unit # 10= 4,345 SY            *Unit # 12= 13,529 SY
*Unit # 27 = 14,625 SY          *Unit # 39 = 5,232 SY

51,941 1.52 78,950.32

Florence Gardens: Phase 1
HA5 HIGH DENSITY MINERAL BOND: (45,315 SQ. YD.)
-- Clean & prepare surface using high pressure air & wire bristle brooms.
-- Install "HA5" High Density Mineral Bond advanced performance pavement preservation treatment.
-- No guarantee surface treatments will adhere to areas saturated with motor oil.
-- HA5 meets demands of APWA (American Public Works Association) specification 
   (Section 32 01 13.68 High Density Mineral Bond).
-- HA5 pricing as per the Mesa City Cooperative Use Contract

68,878.801.5245,315 SqYd

Collector Roadways
HA5 HIGH DENSITY MINERAL BOND:  (41,390 SQ. YD.)
-- Clean & prepare surface using high pressure air & wire bristle brooms.
-- Install "HA5" High Density Mineral Bond advanced performance pavement preservation treatment.
-- No guarantee surface treatments will adhere to areas saturated with motor oil.
-- HA5 meets demands of APWA (American Public Works Association) specification 
   (Section 32 01 13.68 High Density Mineral Bond).
-- HA5 pricing as per the Mesa City Cooperative Use Contract
AREAS INCLUDE
*Sun City B. = 25,596 SY            *Spirit Way = 15,794 SY

41,390 1.52 62,912.80

Page 1



PROPOSAL
Date

9/7/2017

Estimate

17-34836

Client
Florence City
PO Box 2670
425 E. Ruggles
Florence, AZ 85132

Project Location
CROSS STREETS:
Merrill Ranch Parkway
and Sun City Boulevard
(see maps)

P.O. Number Terms
Due upon completion

Advisor
Aaron

Project Description

2017-Anthem Units

State License #
AZ-ROC261715

Region
AZ, Southern

www.HolbrookAsphalt.com

Arizona Office
3806 S 16th Street
Phoenix, AZ 85040

P: 602.307.0425
F: 435.656.3943

Nevada Office
2900 Meade Ave, Ste 7
Las Vegas, NV 89118

P: 702.823.3902
F: 702.777.7575

Utah Office
1545 E Commerce Dr.
St. George, UT 84790

P: 435.652.4427
F: 435.656.3943

Description Quantity U/M Rate Total
STRIPING, SYMBOLS and PAINTING (Optional pre-paint to be applied before Thermoplastic)
-- All Stripes, Symbols and Painting to follow existing pattern.
********************
SUN CITY BLVD
- 4" EQUIV. WHITE TEMPORARY PAINT (19413)
- 4" EQUIV. YELLOW TEMPORARY PAINT (11020)
- TEMPORARY PAINT SYMBOL, ARROW (6)
********************
SPIRIT LOOP
- 4" EQUIV. WHITE TEMPORARY PAINT (11678)
- 4" EQUIV. YELLOW TEMPORARY PAINT (6500)
********************
DESERT BLOSSOM WAY
- 4" EQUIV. WHITE TEMPORARY PAINT (600)
********************
UNITS 10 & 12
- 4" EQUIV. WHITE TEMPORARY PAINT (2100)
********************
UNIT 8
- 4" EQUIV. WHITE TEMPORARY PAINT (120)
********************
MOBILIZATION (2)

1 9,446.10 9,446.10

Page 2



PROPOSAL
Date

9/7/2017

Estimate

17-34836

Client
Florence City
PO Box 2670
425 E. Ruggles
Florence, AZ 85132

Project Location
CROSS STREETS:
Merrill Ranch Parkway
and Sun City Boulevard
(see maps)

P.O. Number Terms
Due upon completion

Advisor
Aaron

Project Description

2017-Anthem Units

State License #
AZ-ROC261715

Region
AZ, Southern

www.HolbrookAsphalt.com

Arizona Office
3806 S 16th Street
Phoenix, AZ 85040

P: 602.307.0425
F: 435.656.3943

Nevada Office
2900 Meade Ave, Ste 7
Las Vegas, NV 89118

P: 702.823.3902
F: 702.777.7575

Utah Office
1545 E Commerce Dr.
St. George, UT 84790

P: 435.652.4427
F: 435.656.3943

Description Quantity U/M Rate Total
THERMOPLASTIC STRIPING:
SUN CITY BLVD
- 4" EQUIV. WHITE SPRAYED THERMOPLASTIC 60MIL (13083)
- 4" EQUIV. YELLOW SPRAYED THERMOPLASTIC 60MIL (11020)
- 4" EQUIV. WHITE TRANSVERSE THERMOPLASTIC 90MIL (6060)
- THERMOPLASTIC EXTRUDED SYMBOL, ARROW 90MIL (6)
- PREFORMED TAPE SYMBOL, BIKE GUY/ARROW (3M 270) (13)
- TYPE D RPM (2-WAY YELLOW) (610)
- TYPE G RPM (1-WAY WHITE) (18)
********************
SPIRIT LOOP
- 4" EQUIV. WHITE SPRAYED THERMOPLASTIC 60MIL (10238)
- 4" EQUIV. YELLOW SPRAYED THERMOPLASTIC 60MIL (6500)
- 4" EQUIV. WHITE TRANSVERSE THERMOPLASTIC 90MIL (1320)
- PREFORMED TAPE SYMBOL, BIKE GUY/ARROW (8)
- (3M 270) TYPE D RPM (2-WAY YELLOW) (340)
********************
DESERT BLOSSOM WAY
--4" EQUIV. WHITE TRANSVERSE THERMOPLASTIC 90MIL: (600)
********************
UNITS 10 & 12
--4" EQUIV. WHITE TRANSVERSE THERMOPLASTIC 90MIL: (2100)
********************
UNIT 8
--4" EQUIV. WHITE TRANSVERSE THERMOPLASTIC 90MIL: (120 )
********************
MOBILIZATION (1)

30,261.25 30,261.25

Page 3



PROPOSAL
Date

9/7/2017

Estimate

17-34836

Client
Florence City
PO Box 2670
425 E. Ruggles
Florence, AZ 85132

Project Location
CROSS STREETS:
Merrill Ranch Parkway
and Sun City Boulevard
(see maps)

P.O. Number Terms
Due upon completion

Advisor
Aaron

Project Description

2017-Anthem Units

State License #
AZ-ROC261715

Region
AZ, Southern

www.HolbrookAsphalt.com

Arizona Office
3806 S 16th Street
Phoenix, AZ 85040

P: 602.307.0425
F: 435.656.3943

Nevada Office
2900 Meade Ave, Ste 7
Las Vegas, NV 89118

P: 702.823.3902
F: 702.777.7575

Utah Office
1545 E Commerce Dr.
St. George, UT 84790

P: 435.652.4427
F: 435.656.3943

Description Quantity U/M Rate Total
TRAFFIC CONTROL: (3 DAY SPLIT)
SPIRIT WAY OR SUN CITY BOULEVARD:
--2 Men 2 Trucks & Trailer (24 Hour Closure). Equipment with lights.
SALES ITEMS:
--Sandbags, Flags & Traffic Plans (one time fee)

6,102.006,102.001 Each

NOTES:
(1) This estimate includes three days of mobilization for all pavement markings.  Additional
mobilizations will be invoiced at $840/piece.
(2) Additional Items to Include Applicable Taxes & Bonds.

Page 4

Total $256,551.27





Memorandum 

To:  Brent Billingsley, Town Manager 

From:  Bryan C. Hughes, Community Services Director 

Date:  September 18, 2017 

Re:  September 2017 Department Report 
Page 1 
Community Services 

September 2017 Monthly Report 

Laura Carter and I met with managers and some seniors from Sun City and Florence 
Gardens on August 29th to discuss creating a “give-a-lift” program.  Seth Coleman, the 
driving force behind the Durable Medical Equipment Loan Program, presented the idea 
to the group.  The concept, which is done in other places, is to compile a pool of 
volunteer drivers to transport seniors who cannot drive themselves, particularly to 
medical appointments.  It would be a combination of folks using their personal vehicles 
and our accessible vans.  Seth would like to have this as a Town program with 
volunteers applying and having background checks.  A volunteer would also coordinate 
the drivers and riders.  Staff is researching other programs and potential grant programs 
to see if this is a viable program for the Town to pursue. 
 
Members of the Florence Veteran’s Memorial Committee met with Brett Anderson, 
ASLA and Principal with the firm AndersonBaron, on September 1st to explore the idea 
of modifying the planter in the outdoor plaza at the Library and Community Center for 
the memorial.  Brett and his team of landscape architects are going to present some 
conceptual designs to the committee at the September 25th meeting.  Mr. Anderson is 
doing the work pro bono. 
 
The Arts and Culture Commission met on September 14th after a summer hiatus.  The 
group is eager to begin fall programming and participating in some of the upcoming 
special events. 
 
The Library and Community Center repairs are progressing after the water damage 
from the storms on August 13th.  Repairs to the wood and drywall were expected to be 
completed in 6-8 weeks, but appear to be ahead of schedule.  The facility remains open 
during repairs. 
 
Make a Difference Day event is scheduled for Saturday, October 28th.  Alison Feliz and 
the committee have continued to identify projects for volunteers to perform that day. 
Participants will receive their assignment and assist with items such as cleaning, 
painting, picking up trash, digging, planting, and more. 
 
The Aquatic Center wrapped up the regular season on Labor Day, September 4th.  
Nearly 20,000 people attended Open Swim and other events this season. 
 



Page 2 
Community Services 

September 2017 Monthly Report 

The Florence Teen Council (FTC) has been busy with a number of meetings held at 
Florence H.S., Florence K-8 and Anthem K-8.  The FTC is also doing a highway 
cleanup along a 1-mile stretch on Hunt Highway on Saturday, September 23rd. 
 
Staff is also working with teens to host a karaoke event, a food eating contest and a lip 
sync battle on upcoming early release days.  
 
Erasmo “Beebo” Mendivil and David Lewis assisted with announcing parade floats and 
played music at the Florence H.S. Homecoming Parade on Friday, September 15th. 
 
The Florence H.S. Swim team has five home swim meets at the Aquatic Center during 
the month of September. 
 
Staff assisted Congressman Gosar’s office with the Adolfo “Harpo” Celaya Post Office 
Dedication on Saturday, September 16th.  An estimated 200 people attended the event. 
 
 

Parks and Recreation Department 
Divisions Report 

August 2017 
 

Recreation/Aquatics/Special Events Programs 
Recreation Programs  Participants Revenue Notes 
Before and After - 
Anthem 

1 $ Revenue posted in July 

Before and After - 
Florence 

3 $ Revenue posted in July 

Iddie Biddie Kiddies 8 $280
Open Swim Child 903 $903
Open Swim Adult 482 $1,446
Adult Lap Swim 16 $48
Lap Swim – Fitness 
Members 

25 $ Free Admission with Fitness 
membership 

Aqua Aerobics 7 $145
Aqua Zumba 12 $255
Teen Night 66 $ Free Admission 
 
 
 
 

 
Facility Use Permits 

Number of Facility 
Use Permits 

Number of Bookings 
Estimated Number 

of Participants 
Revenue 

Generated 

47 147 3,142 $800 
 

  



Page 3 
Community Services 

September 2017 Monthly Report 

Fitness Center – Membership Package 
Fitness Package      Sales Renewals Total Revenue
Adult Annual   $
Adult 6 Month 2 2 $180
Adult Monthly 28 54 82 $1,476
Sr. Annual   $
Sr. 6 Month 3 3 6 $360
Sr. Monthly 3 15 18 $204
Employee Pass 6 7 13 Free
Green Tree Inn 5 5 Billed thru A/R
Youth Monthly 10 5 15 $180
Drop-In Fitness  20 20 $100
Total Memberships 77 84 161 $2,500

 
Fitness Center Classes 

 
 

 Estimated member sign-ins throughout the month: 1,471 
 Total membership packages sold: 161 
 Fitness Center revenue for membership package sales: $ 2,500 
 Fitness Classes revenue: $ 
 Total Revenue: $ 2,500 

 
Miscellaneous Revenue 

Program Resident Non-Resident Revenue Notes
Silver Sneakers Classic $0 
Silver Sneakers Classes $0 
Zumba Class $0  
Circuit Training $0  
Stretch it Out $0  
Exercise Class $0  

Product Total Revenue Notes
Paper & Markers 1 $25
Special Event Vendor 1 $50



Page 4 
Community Services 

September 2017 Monthly Report 

Dorothy Nolan Senior Center 
Activity Monthly Total 

Anthem Pharmacy/Shopping 1
Arts- Jewelry 7
Angel Care Discussion 12
Back Space 3, Yahtzee, Skip Bo, Dominoes, Cards, Cribbage, Phase 10, Wii 
Bowling, Pool Tournament  

176

Bingo  89
Birthday Cards 16
Bible Study 42
Breakfast 97
Blood Pressures-Centrix with Diane  12
Blood Pressures – Florence Fire 
Bunko 12
Building Use 963
CAHRA 4
Coolidge Shopping 4
County Food Boxes 4
Diabetic Presentation by: Diabetic Academy 18
Dinner Club – BoBo Queen Creek  11
Dollar Store 9
Dental Clinic 32
Exercise Block Walk 2
Extension Food Program – Isabelle Cancelled
Fitness Center 0
Grief Support 7
Guardian Angel Installation 3
Hair Cuts By Tamara 0
Healthy Eating by Lou 8
Home Delivered meals –  participants 2-on Weekend meals 16 Participants 305
Knit/Crochet Club 18
Lost Meals 22
Medicare Advocate Benefits 4
Movie & Popcorn 13
Music by Rudy 48
Senior Donation Account Meal Participants- Safeway Deli 20
Senior Hot Topics 14
Support Group – Hospice 0
Staff Cooked meals & senior meal  74/20-94
Tech Savvy 0
TRIAD Meeting 0
Volunteer Hours 21 @ 225.75
Wii bowling /Volleyball  19

 
Accomplishments:  The Center served 386 meals to 50 participants.  We had two new 
senior participants this month. Rides were provided for riders, 434 trips to the Center 
and 25 errands and 0 special events.  We traveled 2,017 miles. 
 



Page 5 
Community Services 

September 2017 Monthly Report 

Special Programming/Events:   
Payson Day trip- 21 
Peppersauce trip- 17 
Libations/Creations- 8 
Rhoda Exercise- 52 
Music with Hermalene, Carmen and Sue- 8 
  



Page 6 
Community Services 

September 2017 Monthly Report 

Florence Community Library 
August 2017 

 
August Statistics  
 
 11,321 total items were circulated in August 
 97 library cards were issued 
 728 patrons signed up for use of the computer lab computers 
 1,652 wireless sessions were held  
 121 person(s) attended 4 program(s) presented by the library   
 
August Activities 
 
8/09/17 Early Release Craft 
8/12/17 August Library Movie 
8/14 – 8/16 Library Closed Due to Flooding 
8/17/17 Library Closed for Computer System Updates 
8/21/17 Solar Eclipse Viewing Program 
8/22 – 8/24 Librarian Gloria Moreno attended Arizona Get Involved Training Institute 
8/23/17 Family Movie 
 
Library Repairs Ongoing 
 
The Florence Community Library resumed normal operations as of August 18, after a 
brief closure due to flooding.  The main damage was confined to the library’s circulation 
desk, and the library collection survived fully intact.  The library is open, and patrons are 
encouraged to take advantage of all library services. 
 
Repairs are now in progress on the circulation desk area, and will be ongoing for an 
indefinite period.  Patrons are asked to have patience with the noise and adhesive 
smells during repair times, with our apologies for any inconvenience. 
 
Veteran’s Day Showing of USS Indianapolis: The Legacy  
 
The Florence Community Library is excited to announce an encore showing of the 
documentary, USS Indianapolis: The Legacy.  This screening will occur at the library 
and community center on Veteran’s Day - November 11, 2017, at 1:00 pm.  It will be 
followed by a Q & A featuring Florence resident and Indianapolis survivor Adolfo 
“Harpo” Celaya.   
 
Seating will begin at 12:30 for those who signed up in advance, but will only open up to 
walk-ins at 12:55.  117 people came to our July screening and Q & A, so advance 
registration is strongly recommended.  Seating is not guaranteed for those who do 
not sign up in advance, or for those who arrive late! 
 
To sign up, or for any questions about this or any other library program, please contact 
the library at (520) 868 – 8311. 
 



 

   

For the most part all number were pretty 

consistent with last year. There was a 15% 

increase in revenue.    
 
 

COURT 

FINANCIAL 

REPORT 
August 2017 

IRENE ENRIQUEZ – Court Administrator 



 

COUNTY REVENUE                  58.68                      52.76  

STATE REVENUE                                12,118.02                9,949.72 

TOWN REVENUE                         17,274.73                          14,371.07 

RESTITUTION AND BONDS                           110.00                                 569.00 

TOTAL MONTHLY REVENUE:                           $29,561.43         $ 24,942.55 

 
DISTRIBUTION TYPE 

AUGUST 2017 
 (CURRENT) 

AUGUST 2016 
(LAST YEAR) 

 
FINE, FEES, & TRAFFIC  $14,790.66 13,138.72
 
STATE SURCHARGES  8,192.71

                  
7,760.62

 
STATE JCEF  391.29 494.65
 
LOCAL JCEF  210.68

 
266.35

 
STATE FINES  2,228.15 413.78
 
FLORENCE POLICE FUND  691.09 320.90
 
RESTITUTION  110.00 125.00
 
BONDS  0.00 444.00
 
PUBLIC DEFENDER FEE  220.99 194.19
 
JAIL HOUSING FEES  1,361.31 418.91
 
JUSTICE COURT FEES  58.68 52.76
 
GENERAL FUND  0.00 32.00
 
FARE SPECIAL COLLECTION FEE  791.58 919.45
 
FARE DELINQUENCY FEE  400.95 259.62
 
VICTIMS RIGHTS ENFORC.  113.34 101.60
 
PCSO FUND  0.00 0.00
 
DOMESTIC VIOLENCE ASSESS  0.00 0.00
 
OVERPAYMENT REFUND  0.00 0.00



 

$20,000.00

$25,000.00

$30,000.00

JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE

FY 16/17

FY 17/18

 

15.6% Increase from 2016 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

COMPLAINTS AND CITATION FILED  

 

 

       JUL   AUG   SEPT   OCT    NOV   DEC    JAN    FEB    MAR   APR    MAY   JUN 

2016/17 – 126    161    

2017/18 – 155    151 

 

 

 

 

 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

2016‐17 2017‐18



 

CITATION BREAKDOWN 

 

Below are the types of cases filed for the month of AUGUST 2017 

 

CIVIL TRAFFIC VIOLATIONS  ‐  121         

CRIMINAL TRAFFIC             ‐    12 

CRIMINAL       ‐  11 

DUI        ‐  4   

DOMESTIC VIOLENCE    ‐  3 

 

 

 



TOWN OF FLORENCE  
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES  

224 W. 20th Street 
Florence, AZ 85132 

Office:  520-868-7542 
FAX:  520-868-7546 

MEMO 
 

MEETING DATE:  October 2, 2017 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Christopher A. Salas, Development Services Director/Town Engineer 
 
SUBJECT:   Development Services Staffing Report 
Development Services Monthly Staff Report – October 2, 2017                                           Page 1 of 7 

 
Development Services Projects: 
 

Banner Health – Merrill Ranch Health Clinic 
 Plans have been submitted and are under review 

 
Horizon Health Care (Adamsville Hospital) 

 Tenant Improvement (TI) permit issued, but hasn’t been picked up by developer or 
pulled permit 

 Engineering has reviewed water basis of design report & provided comments – waiting 
on water line plan set submittal 

 Waterline needs to be completed before the building can be occupied 
 

Anthem at Merrill Ranch 
 Unit 3 – Final plat, Town Council 9-18-2017, Preliminary Plat approved by P&Z 4-20-

2017, At Risk Grading complete, currently installing electric 
 Unit 5 – Final Plat being reviewed, Preliminary Plat approved by P&Z 4-20-2017 – At Risk 

Grading 
 Unit 7 – Final Plat Town Council 9-18-2017, Preliminary Plat approved by P&Z 4-20-2017 

– At Risk Grading, utilities being installed 
 Unit 24 – Preliminary Plat to P & Z 10-5-2017 
 Unit 32 – Preliminary Plat to P & Z 10-5-2017 
 Unit 34 – Preliminary Plat to P & Z 10-5-2017 
 Unit 37 – Final Plat to Town Council 9-18-2017, Preliminary Plat approved by P&Z 
 Unit 38 – Final Plat - approved by Town Council on 7-17-2017, construction started 
 Unit 52 – Final Plat - approved by Town Council on 8-21-2017 
 Unit 55 – Preliminary Plat being reviewed 
 Unit 56A – Final Plat - approved by Town Council on 8-21-2017, permits have been pulled 
 Unit 60 – Preliminary Plat being reviewed 

 
AZ Rentals and More LLC - ATV Rental 

 Is not permitted, running as a rental and retail store for parts 
 Discussions are taking place on future steps – recommend removing building 



Development Services Monthly Staff Report – October 2, 2017                                           Page 2 of 7 

Depew Property 
 Burnt building area needs to be secure 
 Note – Owner does NOT have legal access t the south side of the property 
 Demolition permit is required no more than 30 days after the Fire Investigation is 

complete 
 Future plans will require new permits 

 
Bonnybrooke – Solar 

 C of O has been issued 
 
Circle K 

 Development Agreement being reviewed by staff before being sent to applicant 
 Extension of Design Review to P & Z 10-5-2017 

 
Monarch/Aspen Farms   

 Applicant must submit revised narrative for review before moving forward  
 Applicant has not responded  

 
Small Wireless Facilities  

 New antenna laws, code needs to be written 
 Planning has coordinated cooperative effort between Florence and four additional 

communities 
 Development Code Amendment – Pursuant to HB 2365, it allows wireless providers to 

install and operate small cells and related equipment on Town ROW, staff is currently 
creating a draft amendment.  Town is required to establish and make available rates, fees 
and terms that are consistent with HB2365 by February 9, 2018. 

 
Building Code 

 Update on the Development Code Amendment, Technical Codes will be presented to the 
P&Z 10-5-17 

 Approval will be requested 11/2/17 
 

Code Enforcement Manual 
 Update on the Code Enforcement Manual will be presented to the P & Z 10-5-2017 

 
Desert Palms (Central & 9th Street) 

 Need C of O, nothing has been requested 
 

McDonald's 
 Plan review complete 
 Fire needs to inspect the existing fire protection features 

 
McDonald's Parking Lot 

 DS expecting a plan set on the parking lot expansion eminently  
 Applicant has not submitted 
 Held Pre-app meeting 

 



Development Services Monthly Staff Report – October 2, 2017                                           Page 3 of 7 

Medical Office Building (aka MOB) 
 Certificate of Occupancy approved 

 
Mosaic (Nazarene) Church – 2700 N Anthem Way 

 All permits have expired 
 Plans and supporting documentation are out of date and need to be resubmitted 
 Staff is working to re-instate the current plans,  
 Applicant has supplied the Geotechnical Report  
 Engineering is working on obtaining the drainage report from the original engineering 

firm.   
 Traffic impact Report I being deferred until Phase 2 of the project. 
 Narrative submitted 
 Applicant needs to submit application and pay fees 

 
Pinal County Court House 

 Temporary Certificate of Occupancy issued 7/19 
 Temp C of O expires 11/19, need update from developer 
 Building Safety contact contractor to check on project status 
 3rd C of O inspection taking place 9/18  

 
Rail 3 aka Cody Building 

 New permit has not been issued, but no inspections yet General contractor has 
removed themselves from the project 

 Will then needs a permanent C of O – Factory – on building but not as a business 
 Applicant now focusing on minimal improvements in order to operate the business 
 Project will be phased and exterior improvement expected to be started at the beginning 

of the new year 
 

Smith Building 
 Electrical Permit issued on 8/1/17 
 Fist inspection performed on 8/17/17 – utility clearance was sent for Temporary Power 
 Owner needs additional permits 
 Second electrical inspection scheduled around 1st week in October 
 Contractor to make all panels, all wire ruins and everything electrical related to be open 

and available for Town Inspection 
 Architect & Structural Engineer scheduled on-site inspection 9/19 to evaluate past 

structural concerns 
 No date scheduled for 1st Architectural submittal 

 
Widowfield & Florence Sunrise Apartments 

 C of O Approved 
 

Florence Artisan Acres (Windmill Winery)  
 DA has expired 
 Additional information needed from Applicant  
 Map of Dedication – On Hold 

 
 



Development Services Monthly Staff Report – October 2, 2017                                           Page 4 of 7 

Attaway Crossing Annexation 
 Additional information needed from Applicant 
 Applicant working with private company - cost benefit analysis  

 
Engineering Division: 
 

MAG Federal Fund Grants Projects 
 Surface Trans. Block Grant (STBG) application due 9/25 

 
Facilities Maintenance: 
 

Town Building Signage 
 IT, Town Hall & Fire Station #1 complete 
 HDAC approval to begin to hand in the district 

 
Fire Alarm / Suppression Inspections 

 Inspection completed by American Fire 
 Minor repairs are necessary 

 

Fleet Services: 
 Preventative Maintenance (PM’s) – 8 
 Other Services – 43 
 Total vehicles serviced – 51 
 All town generators had annual PM’s & load bank tests completed 
 Approval has been granted to  

 
Training 

 Mechanics completed Wheelchair Lift Training 
 Held training with Senior Center van drivers – Proper Lift Operation & Daily Inspection 

Reports 
 
Streets (HURF) Division: 

 
Pavement Preservation – non CIP 

 Cactus Asphalt to start work 9/22/17 
 
Water Division: 
 

Brunenkant Building - Fire Suppression System 
 Sprinkler work completed by Mull Fire 
 Ceiling & insulation replaced 
 Monitor panel, dialer line & 120v lines are needed 
 Water supply line connection needs to be made 
 Arizona 811 (Former Blue Stake) has been notified of project 
 Public Works to install underground supply lines, work started 
 Work to be completed by October 1st 

 
 
 



Development Services Monthly Staff Report – October 2, 2017                                           Page 5 of 7 

Standpipe 
 New stand has been fabricated 
 Fence has been removed from the front of the building 
 Building has been painted 
 Check valve to be installed 
 Work to be completed by October 1st 

 
Well #2b 

 Solicitation documents are being prepared for competitive bids – fitting of well 
 

Well #4 
 Solicitation documents are being prepared for competitive bids - camera, brush and re-

fitting of the well 
 
Permits Issued: 
 

 BLD-COMM - 5 
 BLD-RES – 11 
 BLD-RES-SFR-NEW – 15 
 ELE-COMM - 2 
 ELE-RES-SFR – 29 
 FIRE-OPERATIONAL – 1 
 INSP-ELECTRIC - 1 
 PLM-RES-SFR – 9 
 PW-FLOW TEST - 1 
 PW-GRADING – 2 
 PW-UTILITY – 13 
 TOTAL PERMITS – 89 

 
Wastewater Division: 
 

North WWRF 
 Electrical Upgrade to 480/3 phase for new equipment – evaluating contractor options 
 Screen and Headworks rehab and replacement- In Process 
 Blower Replacement/Repair – In Process 
 Aeration Piping and Diffuser Installation – In Process 
 Belt Filter Press (BFP) Relocation and Installation - In Process 
 Design Phase, Water Works - Belt Press - Sludge Tanks - In Process 
 Basin Concrete Repair- Will assess when pump tanks down for visual inspection  
 Safety railing, walkway and access rehab- Waterworks working on design 

 
South WWRF 

 Felix JOC FY16-17(FY17-18) Replace 2 decant butterfly valves. Reroute Filter 
backwash line to BFP filtrate line, Re-pipe clean water source to Filter Backwash Pump 
Completed 

 Headworks Screen Rehab and Odor Control Hazen & Sawyer- Preliminary Design 
 Sam Unit Rebuild - in process 
 SBR Decanter Rebuild- In Process of obtaining parts 

 



Development Services Monthly Staff Report – October 2, 2017                                           Page 6 of 7 

Capital Improvement Projects: 
 

CIP GG-25 - Silver King Balcony Repairs 
 Scope of Work reviewed, preparing Bid Document 

 
CIP GG-26 - Signal Light @ SR79 & Hunt Highway 

 ADOT Traffic study is complete 
 Meeting to occur with ADOT to discuss project options 

 
CIP PSP-18 - HVAC @ Police Department 

 Three units replaced after failures in FY16/17, remaining two are newer and are not 
scheduled for replacement in 17/18 

 
CIP PWM-01 - Street Sweeper (CMAQ Grant) 

 Updated bid obtained, application completed & presented at council 9/18 
 

CIP SANM-01 - 1/2 Ton Double Cab Pickup (Enterprise) 
 Obtaining bids - On Hold 

 
CIP PSPM-01 – Patrol Car 

 Bids complete, purchase has been approved 
 
CIP PSPM-02 – Patrol Car 
Bids complete, purchase has been approved 
 
CIP SU-85 - Recharge Permitting & Design 

 Design underway, permit application close to complete 
 

CIP SU-87 - South Waste Water Treatment Plant - Improvement Modifications 
 See the above Wastewater Division 

 
CIP SU-89 - System Wide Capacity / Condition Analysis 

 Submitted application for WIFA Technical Assistance Grant 
 

CIP SU-90 - Annual Sewer Line Maintenance Program 
 Cooperative contract identified with Pro Tec, planning to take item to council on 10/2/17 

 
CIP T-08 - Street Improvement Phase IV - Florence Gardens (HURF Bond) 

 Public Meeting held 
 Design documents complete, working on bid documents for solicitation 

 
CIP T-09 - Street Improvement Phase V - Florence Gardens (HURF Bond) 

 Public Meeting held 
 Design documents complete, working on bid documents for solicitation 

 
CIP T-17 - Diversion Dam Improvements 

 Signal poles & all electric is in place 
 Initial striping completed 9/10, final striping done 9/19 
 Commissioned & active 9/20/17 
 Project complete, improvements under 1-yr warranty 



Development Services Monthly Staff Report – October 2, 2017                                           Page 7 of 7 

 
CIP T-60 - E. 1st Street Pavement (HURF Bond) 

 100% plans have been completed. 
 Bid documents have been prepared by staff 
 Bid documents have been submitted to Legal for Review 
 Advertisement tentatively schedule from September25 

 
CIP T-62 - Attaway / Hunt Highway Intersection Improvements 

 Traffic signal installed, turn lanes tentatively scheduled for 18/19 
 

CIP T-69 - Pavement Preservation 
 Work started Cactus Asphalt to complete various projects 
 HA5 projects identified, planning to take to council on 10/2/17 

 
CIP T-70 - PARA Grant - Transportation Study 

 Awarded, ADOT has appointed a Project Manager 
 

CIP WU-23 - Water Well #1 Chlorine Building 
 Desert Boring completed demolition work  
 Guether Electric completed electrical work  

 
CIP WU-26 - Water Storage Tank N. Florence 

 Re-coating interior of tank 
 Moving overflow pipe to over 30' 
 Installing safety ladder 
 Installing vent on top of tank 

 
CIP WU-38 - Water Line Replacements 

 Job Order Contract identified, working with contractor to obtain pricing 
 

CIP WU-80 - Well #3 Noise 
 Ongoing, PW has met with customer in person 

 
CIP WU-83 - Downtown 12" Loop (CDBG) 

 Install steel sleeve underneath SR79B (Main St) 
 30% Plan submittal has been Submitted and Approved by Engineering & Fire 
 ADOT & Desert Boring to determine methods and permitting 

 
CIP WU-85 - Well Refitting 

 Working on bid documents for solicitation 
 

CIP WU-87 - WIFA Water Projects 
 Working with Piper Jaffrey to ensure projects are located on the priority projects list 



Finance Department Memorandum 

 

To:    Brent Billingsley, Town Manager 

From:  Joe Jarvis, Finance Director 

Date:  September 18, 2017 

Re:  Finance Department Report for August 2017 
   1 
 

 
17% of the Fiscal Year has elapsed.  
 
The following charts are for preliminary financial activity (cash basis) for August, 2017 
(unaudited). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   2 
 

 

 

GENERAL FUND Budget Actual
Budget to 

Actual
Revenue by Category
Taxes 3,992,439$        373,357$          9%
Licenses and Permits 529,500            186,368            35%
Franchise Fees and Taxes 589,000            1,281                0%
Intergovernmental 7,051,095         851,858            12%
CE Inspection Fees 79,100              16,322              21%
Civil Engineering Fees 55,000              24,830              45%
Community Development Fees 174,060            38,902              22%
Charges-General Government 209,330            11,167              5%
Cemetery Fees 13,600              3,270                24%
Public Safety-Police 25,950              6,339                24%
Parks and Recreation 128,400            24,512              19%
Fines and Forfeitures 166,100            29,570              18%
Interest Earnings 100,000            3,097                3%
Public Safety-Fire 45,800              4,412                10%
Library 6,000                838                  14%
Miscellaneous 39,623              20,098              51%
Economic Development -                   -                   0%
Downtown Redevelopment 1,500                240                  16%
Government Access Channel 7,000                -                   0%
Seniors Fees 20,650              1,547                7%
Operating Transfer 1,384,009         211,614            15%
Total Revenue 14,618,156$      1,809,622$        12%

  

Expenditures by Department
Town Council 95,747$            6,382$              7%
Administration 637,481            99,130              16%
Courts 198,606            28,796              14%
Legal 473,844            92,676              20%
Finance & Grants 676,281            105,456            16%
Human Resources 246,472            32,212              13%
Community Development 597,380            51,759              9%
Police Services 3,990,406         489,039            12%
Fire Services 3,042,730         415,729            14%
Information Technology 391,974            43,869              11%
Parks & Recreation Services 2,014,789         309,647            15%
Library 274,768            36,492              13%
Facility Maintenance 517,507            53,759              10%
General Government 1,139,582         62,190              5%
Cemetery 9,400                868                  9%
Town Engineer 140,930            11,818              8%
Economic Development 134,595            22,396              17%
Total Expenditures 14,582,492$      1,862,217$        13%

 - Taxes, franchise fees and intergovernmental revenues reflect a one- to two- month lag in collections

General Fund Report
Fiscal Year 2016/2017

As of August 2017



   3 
 

 
Comparison of General Fund Revenue and Expenditures Actual to Budget  

Comparison of Revenue and Expenditures to Budget for the Town’s Major Funds 
 
Development Impact Fee Collections and Expenditures 

 

Fund Budget Actual % Collected Budget Actual % Expended

General 14,618,156$  1,809,622$    12% 14,582,492$  1,862,217$    13%

Capital Improvement 1,835,591     962              0% 417,278        -               0%

Highway User Revenue 3,130,006     238,733        8% 7,605,949     650,790        9%

Construction Tax - 4% 166,457        745              0% -               -               0%

Food Tax - 2% 1,700            140              8% 609,150        -               0%

Town Water 2,814,664     512,752        18% 5,123,036     339,587        7%

Town Sewer 4,044,834     617,203        15% 4,659,499     798,031        17%

Sanitation 774,278        123,041        16% 925,727        85,683          9%

Total 27,385,686$  3,303,198$    12% 33,923,131$  3,736,307$    11%

Revenue Expenditures

Fee Fund
Beg. Fund 

Balance Fee Collected Interest
Ending Fund 

Balance

501  Sanitation   47,449$           11$               47,460$           

505  Transportation  668,912           25,322              160               694,395           

506  General Government -                  -                  

508  Police  542,973           22,459              130               565,562           

509  Fire/EMS  118,166           22,770              28                140,964           

510  Parks  5,138               1,417               1                  6,556              

511  Library  36,961             7,511               9                  44,481            

596  Florence Water  10,118             2                  10,120            

597  Florence Sewer 195,433           2                      18                195,454           

598  North Florence Water 10,228             1                  10,229            

599  North Florence Sewer 12,744             3                  12,747            

Total 1,648,122$       79,481$            365$             -$                

Development Impact Fees

Collections for Fiscal Year 2016/2017

As of August 2017



   4 
 

Cash and Investments – Bank Balances and Monthly Yield 

  

Account - cash balance Jul-17 Aug-17 Sep-17 Oct-17 Nov-17 Dec-17
NB/AZ - General Checking 12,326,753.06      12,276,568$         
LGIP - 7256 8,959$                 8,966$                 
LGIP - 5953 234,961$             235,179$             
Stifel Nicolaus - Investments 38,678,944$         38,733,647$         
NB/AZ - PD Evidence 6,185$                 6,185$                 

Total cash  51,255,803$         51,260,545$         -$                    -$                   -$                  -$                   

Account - monthly yield Jul-17 Aug-17 Sep-17 Oct-17 Nov-17 Dec-17
National Bank Arizona 0.05% 0.05%
LGIP - 7256 0.89% 0.89%
LGIP - 5953 1.01% 1.10%
Stifel Nicolaus - Investments 1.44% 1.43%

Investment Report



Fire Department 
 

 

M E M O R A N D U M   

  
 
DATE:      September 7, 2017 
 
TO:  Brent Billingsley, Town Manager 
  
FROM: David Strayer, Fire Chief 

 
SUBJ: Summary of August 2017 and Plans for September 2017 
 
The fire responses for 2017-2015 are as follows: 

August 2017  Location of Calls  

Type of Calls 
                            

Florence 
Proper 

Florence 
Gardens 

Anthem Prisons Mutual 
Aid 

Totals 

Brush Fires 0 0 1 0 0 1
Structure Fires 1 0 0 0 1 2 
Vehicle Fires 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Trash Fires 0 0 0 0 0 0 
EMS 62 12 32 52 0 158 
HazMat 2 1 3 0 1 7 
Electrical Arching 1 0 0 0 0 1 
Police Asst./Public Asst. 15 6 4 0 0 25 
Unauthorized Burning 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Good Intent 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Controlled Burning 1 0 0 0 0 1 
False Alarm/System Malfunction 2 0 6 0 0 8 
Emergency Stand by (move up) 2 0 13 0 1 16 
Other Calls 9 2 3 0 0 14 

TOTALS 95 21 62 52 3 233 
       

Three Year View 2017  2016           2015 
 Aug YTD Aug YTD Aug YTD 
EMS 158 1307 162 1421 145 1225 
Fire Calls 3 30 0 44 6 51 
All other Calls 72 706 74 549 48 527 
TOTALS 233 2043 236 2011 199 1803 



Summary of August 
 

Fire Chief Report 
 
 

 Attended Town Council meetings August 7 and 21, 2017. 

 Attended Management Team meetings (every Tuesday). 

 Held Fire Staff meetings managing & coordinating department activities. 

 2012 Fire Code adoption meeting August 9, 2017. 

 Pulte meeting on emergency access August 9, 2012. 

 Fire Department Supervisors’ meeting August 10, 2017. 

 Florence Public Safety Planning Group meeting August 16, 2017. 

 Annual awards dinner preparation, event to be held  October 11, 2017. 

 Pinal County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation plan review and adoption. 

 Automatic Aid Agreement with Coolidge Fire submitted for approval.  

 Arranged Multi-Agency, multi-company training sessions at CAC to be held in October. 

The following agencies will be participating: Florence FD, Eloy FD, Coolidge FD, Rural 

Metro, Gila River FD, Maricopa FD, Casa Grande FD, Arizona City FD.  

 Pre- Application Meeting August 16 and 23, 2017. 

 2012 Fire Code Amendment meeting August 22, 2017. 

 Florence Anthem Hospital Open House August 25, 2017. 

 North South Corridor Meeting August 31, 2017 

Division Report – Administration 
 
Inspections 
 

 Anthem Banner Medical-Annual Life Safety 
 GEO West - Fire Alarm Panel 
 Block Grant inspection-Jennifer Evans 
 Follow Up Inspection 150 s Main  
 Medical Office Fire Spk Hydro  
 Medical Office Pre- TCO  
 Medical Office Fire Alarm Test 
 Medical Office Final Fire 



 Circle K complaint follow up inspection 
 River Bottom Site Inspection 
 Pinal County Pre Fire Final Inspection 
 Bonny Brooke Project Fire Final  

 
 
Plan Reviews 
 

 Pulti Unit 3 
 Pulti Unit 7 
 Pulti Unit 5 utility 
 Pulti Unit 24 
 Pulti Unit 32 
 Pulti Unit 34 

 
 
Permit Reviews 
 

 Multiple Event Permits Review meeting 
 
Meetings 
 

 Anthem Mosaic Church Project  
 Development Services project Meetings x3 
 Fire Dept supervisor Meeting 
 Medical Office C/O  
 ATV Site Review 
 Rail 3 Project 
 Belva’s Property meeting 
 River Bottom Project  
 Benson Alarm Meeting 

 
 

Division Report – Operations 
 

Uniforms/Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) 

 Uniform accounts updated with United Fire 
Communications Equipment 

 ECM2 Command officer notification app set up on FD staff phones 
Emergency Medical Services (EMS) 

 Physio LifePak 15 heart monitors service contract update 



 Conducted EMT and Paramedic refreshers to comply with AZ State law for EMS 
certifications 

 Opioid reporting continuing through Governor’s office  
 

Training 

 Working Florence Anthem Hospital for EMS training 

 Preparing to send two Firefighters to State Fire Training in September 
 

Special Projects 

 Working with Finance on paperless review and time keeping committee 

 Career Development manual review for future assessments of promotions and hiring 
practices 

 Familiarization with Pinal County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan 
 

Town Committees 

 Health and Safety 

 Grants 

 Time keeping and paperless review 

 Initiatives, rewards and incentives for employees 
 Public Safety Communications  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Incidents, Public Relations, Employee Recognition 

Fire	destroys	garage,	
vehicles	in	Florence	

By MARK COWLING Staff Writer 

 Aug 30, 2017  
  

 

 

6 - 8 cars or trucks lost 

Florence firefighters battle a blaze Tuesday afternoon in an RV storage yard on State Route 79 south of 

the U.S. immigration detention center. 
Mark Cowling/PinalCentral 



FLORENCE — A fire in an RV storage yard on State Route 79 north of downtown 

Florence Tuesday afternoon appears to be accidental, although the exact cause had not 

been determined as of Wednesday morning. 

There were no injuries. A 4,000-square-foot four-door garage was destroyed, along with 

six to eight vehicles parked nearby. Firefighters saved a home south of the blaze. 

Fire Chief David Strayer said fighting the fire was complicated at first by nearby power 

lines arcing and sparking. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



10 Year Recognition 

 

Figure 1 Firefighter Paramedic Donaven Adamczyk 

 

Figure 2 Engineer Paramedic Robert Anderson 

 

Figure 3 Captain Randy Jabara 



 

Figure 4 Engineer Paramedic Brad Kells 

 

Figure 5 Engineer Sean Mahoney 

 

 

Figure 6 Firefighter Paramedic Chris Robison 



 



Plans for September 
 

 Obtain Council approval for the Pinal County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation 
Plan, September 4th. 

 Obtain Council approval for an Automatic Aid Agreement with the City of Coolidge for 
the intersection of Attaway Road and Hwy 287, September 4th.  

 Interview with Mark Cowling on Fire Truck Restoration Project September 5th. 
 Attending a “One Stop Shop” meeting with Admin. September 5th.  
 Provide a “September 11, 2001, the Impact on the Fire Service” Presentation to a 

Veterans group at the Arizona State Prison September 12th.  
 Fire Crew recognition at FHS Homecoming assembly September 15th. 
 Attend Southwest Gas Safety Training September 13th. 
 Attend the Pinal County Fire Chiefs Association meeting September 19th. 
 Host an Employee Assistance Plan Mental Health training session September 21st. 
 Attend the quarterly GEO community outreach meeting September 21st.  

   
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FLORENCE POLICE 
Monthly Report – August 2017 

 Daniel R. Hughes, Chief of Police 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MISSION STATEMENT 

“The men and women of the Florence Police Department stand firm in our pursuit for justice 
and public trust. We will stay true to our mission of providing service and safety to our 

community with honor, respect, and integrity. We are committed to providing fair and equal 
treatment to those we encounter.” 

425 N. Pinal St. ▫  P.O. Box 988 

Florence, AZ 85132 

Phone: 520-868-7681 ▫  Fax: 520-868-0158 



 

 

The information contained in this report outlines significant information and activity within the 
Florence Police Department (FPD) during the month of August 2017. The monthly report is 
prepared for the Town Council’s review and furthermore for the use by FPD to examine the 
current activity within the department and community to identify short-term and long-term 

needs, and develop plans for improvement to provide the highest level of service.  

 
 

 Personnel  

 

Employee Position Effective 

New Hire   

Joseph Sutton Evidence Technician 8/28/17 

Resignations/Terminations 

None   

Vacancies   

3 2- Officer 1- Supervisor  

2 full-time Dispatcher Open continuous 

 
 Dispatcher applications being accepted. 
 Backgrounds completed for 1 recruit and 1 lateral police officer applicant. Testing 

completed for both applicants. 
 Two recruits David Sanger and Dylan Kennard continued through Police Academy 

(ALEA). Their projected graduation date is 10/20/17. 
 
 
 

 Chief of Police  

 
Chief of Police, Daniel R. Hughes attended the following meetings during the month of August: 

 Town Council Meetings 
 Management Team Meetings 
 Weekly FPD Administrative Meetings 
 Purchasing Committee Meeting 
 Fire and Police Communication Meeting 
 Alliance to Combat Transnational Threat – Field Area 2 (ACTT FA-2) Planning Meeting 
 Pinal County Law Enforcement Association (PCLEA) Meeting 

 
 



 

 

 Administrative/Support Services  

 
The Support Services area includes the following: Communications Division, Evidence and 
Property, Crime Scene Investigator, Records Division, and Departmental Budget/Finances. 
 
The Support Services Manager (Deanna Husk) had the following monthly activities: 

 On-going review of Policy/Procedures for Evidence/Property 
 On-going update of Policy/Procedures for Volunteers 
 Review of Communications Policy –Committee with Patrol Division 
 Oral boards for officer candidates 
 Continued testing for dispatchers 
 Review of Superior FD-Intergovernmental agreement 
 Joseph Sutton hired for Property/Evidence Technician; in training. 
 Continued oversight of Laserfiche project with Records Division 

 
 
Communications 
 

 One new Dispatcher in training, one Dispatcher starting 1st week of September, two full-
time positions remain vacant. 

 Two dispatchers completed the Public Safety Telecommunications Certification Course. 
 Continuing recruiting and testing of applicants. 
 Reviewing and updating policies 

 
 
 

Calls for Service 
 

Below is a table that depicts the total calls for service handled by FPD dispatchers during the 
month of August. The numbers are shown by the incident locations and how the incident was 
reported. 
 

How Calls Are Received, Totals by How Received 
  Beat 1 Beat 2 Beat 3 TOTAL 
911 Line 37 19 29 85 
Crime Stop Line 0 0 0 0 
Officer Report 204 99 240 543 
In Person 100 2 1 103 
Radio Transmission 4 1 4 9 
State TT/NLETS 0 0 0 0 
Telephone 210 53 101 364 
TOTAL 555 174 375 1104 

 
 



 

 

Average Response Time to Calls for Service 

 6 Month Reporting Period: March 2017 to August 2017 

  Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug
Priority 1 3:40 4:14 4:03 4:56 3:18 5:08
Priority 2 5:21 5:11 5:56 5:34 6:40 5:50
Priority 3 16:30 27:48 24:06 19:04 19:47 21:23
Priority 4 15:25 15:44 50:36 37:36 25:22 35:50
Definitions:  

Priority 1 These priorities are those in which there is an imminent danger to life or 
major damage/loss to property or an in progress or just occurred major 
felony. 

Priority 2 These priorities are those in which a crime in progress might result in a 
threat of injury to a person, or major loss of property or immediate 
apprehension of a suspect.

Priority 3 These priorities are those in which there is no threat of personal injury or 
major loss of property. 

Priority 4 These priorities are those of a report nature only.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

Classification of Offense Offenses Unfounded Actual Offenses Juvenile 
CRIMINAL HOMICIDE 0 0 0 0 0 

a. Murder/Nonneg Manslaughter 0 0 0 0 0 

b. Manslaughter by Negligence 0 0 0 0 0 

      

FORCIBLE RAPE 0 0 0 0 0 

a. Rape by Force 0 0 0 0 0 

b. Attempt Forcible Rape 0 0 0 0 0 

      

ROBBERY 0 0 0 0 0 

a. Firearm 0 0 0 0 0 

b. Knife or Cutting Instrument 0 0 0 0 0 

c. Other Dangerous Weapon 0 0 0 0 0 

d. Hands, Fist, Feet, etc. 0 0 0 0 0 

      

ASSAULT 16 0 16 11 1 

a. Firearm 1 0 1 1 0 

b. Knife or Cutting Instrument 1 0 1 1 0 

c. Other Dangerous Weapon 1 0 1 0 0 

d. Hands, Fist, Feet, etc. 0 0 0 0 0 

e. Other Assaults – Simple 13 0 13 9 1 

      

BURGLARY 1 0 1 0 0 

a. Forcible Entry 0 0 0 0 0 

b. Unlawful Entry/No Force 1 0 1 0 0 

c. Attempt Forcible Entry 0 0 0 0 0 

      

LARCENY – THEFT 14 0 14 7 0 

      

MOTOR VEHICLE THEFT 2 0 2 2 0 

a. Autos 2 0 2 2 0 

b. Trucks 0 0 0 0 0 

c. Other Vehicles 0 0 0 0 0 

GRAND TOTAL 33 0 33 20 1 

      

Clearance(s) by Adult Arrest 11     

Clearance(s) by Juvenile Arrest 1     

 
**All data presented in this report is tentative until monthly audit is complete 
 
 

AUGUST 2017 – Offense Count Index 



 

 

Property & Evidence 
 

During the month of August 2017, there were 157 envelopes/packages involved in 71 incident 
cases submitted for processing by the Property and Evidence Section. Of the total, 157 
envelopes/packages: 

 120 were evidence items of which 6 were sent to the lab, 5 await lab delivery and 
109 were stored.  

 23 were for Safekeeping of which 14 were released and 9 were stored. 
 6 were Found Property of which 0 were disposed in the DBIN, 4 were released and 

2 were stored.   
 

The items of evidence involved in the following crimes are:  

 53  -  Drug Incidents 
 10  -  DUI 
 1  -  Theft  
 5  -  Aggravated Assault 
 0  -  Fraud 
 0  -  Misconduct with Weapon 
 0 – Child Abuse 

 

 

       
Other Considerations 

 The status of the Police Evidence Trust Fund bank account has 12 pending items 
involving $4,213.00. Three are for safekeeping and seven items are pending RICO 
forfeiture. 



 

 

 0 traffic incidents involved the seizure of Arizona license plates.  
 0 items involved in 0 incident cases were purged from the August 2007 inventory 

according to the ten-year evidence schedule protocol.  
 Fingerprints were taken for 82 citizens by volunteers and the Property and Evidence 

Section. These included volunteers, employee applicants and private citizens. 
 Citizens turned in 45 pounds and 0 ounces of prescription drugs for destruction during the 

month. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 



 

 

 

Operations/Patrol 

 
The Operations/Patrol Division is under the direction of Lt. Terry Tryon, and he has attended the 
following meetings during the month of August: 

 Town Council Meetings 
 FPD Management Team Meetings 
 Weekly FPD Administrative Meetings 
 Workflow Committee Meeting 
 Alliance to Combat Transnational Threat – Field Area 2 (ACTT FA-2) Planning Meeting 

 
The Department of Homeland Security conducted a Financial and Property Audit of funds 
provided for Stone Garden. The audit was completed by William Seltzer, the DHS Strategic 
Planner. All documents completed by Florence P.D. were complete with no deficiencies. We are 
encouraged to apply for further equipment and overtime funds for the budget year 2017-2018. 
 
 
 

Professional Standards 

There were two use of force reports for August.  

One use of force was a result of a domestic assault in which the suspect barricaded himself inside 
of his home, then escaped out of the back door. The suspect was ordered out of his hiding spot as 
officers on the scene had displayed their weapons.  

The second use of force involved a physical fight at a residence in Anthem. The resident had 
charged at the officers and deputies on scene and engaged in a physical fight with a PCSO 
deputy. Taser was utilized to gain compliance. The first deployment was unsuccessful, so a drive 
stun technique was used with the Taser. Compliance was gained after the drive stun. 

One citizen complaint was received in August. The complaint was in reference to how officers 
investigated an incident occurring in Anthem. The complaint is currently being investigated. 

No internal administrative investigations were initiated in August. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Criminal Investigations Unit 
 

Number of new cases assigned in August: 12 

Observed 
Offense 

Assigned 
Detective 

Case 
Status Notes: 

Information  L. Gaston  Open  Confidential Investigation with DPS 
Sex offense with juvenile  L. Gaston  Closed  No criminal disclosure noted 
Sex offense with minor  L. Gaston  Closed  No Disclosure during Forensic Interview 
Warrant arrest  D. Helsdingen  Closed  1 Adult Arrested 2 misdemeanor warrants 
Information report  D. Helsdingen  Closed  Weapons turned in after DV 

Aggravated assault with 
deadly weapon  D. Helsdingen  OPEN 

2 Inmates injured after being stabbed with a 
homemade weapon (Shank) 2 victim found with 
homemade weapon 

Criminal damage x3  D. Helsdingen  Closed  1 Adult Arrested 

Civil matter/child custody  D. Helsdingen  Closed 
Work with Officer Banks to get child back from 
relatives in another state‐child returned 

Leaving scene of accident 
& criminal damage  D. Helsdingen  Open  Suspect ID charges pending this week 
Aggravated assault & 
kidnapping  D. Helsdingen  Open  1 Adult arrested strangulation packet completed 

Death investigation  D. Helsdingen  Open 
Ruled a Suicide by PCME waiting on autopsy (lab) 
report 

Vehicle theft  D. Helsdingen  Open 

Suspect ID, charges filed. Vehicle recovered, 
suspect currently in custody Apache County Jail 
false name 

Number of cases carried over into August: 12 

Observed 
Offense 

Assigned 
Detective 

Case 
Status Notes: 

Child Molestation & Child 
Pornography x2 victims  L. Gaston  Closed 

1 Adult arrested 14 felony charges‐No Bond 
Pretrial conference 9/11/17 

Vehicle Theft  D. Helsdingen  Closed  Vehicle Recovered No suspects 
Death Investigation  D. Helsdingen  Closed  Autopsy Returned‐Accidental Fentanyl Involved  
Vehicle Theft  D. Helsdingen  Open  Felony Warrant on Suspect 
Fatal Motor Vehicle 
Accident  D. Helsdingen  Open 

Expect final Report from Pinal County VCU this 
week  

Sex Offense & Assault x2 
cases  J. Ballard  Closed 

PREA case closed unfounded/ Misdemeanor 
charges filed on two assault cases CADC cases 

Child Abuse/Neglect  L. Gaston  Open   Suspect identified charges pending 

Stolen Vehicle  D. Helsdingen  Open 
Vehicle recovered Video received investigation 
ongoing 

Promote Prison 
Contraband  D. Helsdingen  Closed  

2 subjects in custody one subject with felony 
warrant in CADC 

Stolen Vehicle & Arson  D. Helsdingen  Open  
Vehicle recovered further investigation requested 
PCA 

Voyeurism  D. Helsdingen  Open  Charges Pending 

Hit & Run  D. Helsdingen  Open   Waiting on DPS lab report 



 

 

Number of joint cases worked in August: 1 

Observed 
Offense 

Assigned Detective 
Primary/Secondary 

Case 
Status Notes: 

Child Abuse/Sex offense  L. Gaston/D. Helsdingen  Closed 
Child disclosed to mother inappropriate behavior 
from mom ex‐boyfriend 

Other Activity: 

D. Helsdingen   Seizure Awarded $1,343.00 from drug case 

D. Helsdingen  Grand Jury *9 

D. Helsdingen  FA2 meeting 

L. Gaston/D. Helsdingen  Simpson Hearing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Beat 1 

 
 
Beat Statistics: 
Beat 1 Supervisor – Sgt. D. Peterson 
There are 6 officers assigned to Beat 1 
Total number of calls for service (including traffic): 532 
Total number of traffic stops: 129 
Total number of accident reports taken: 6 total accidents, 3 of which were private property 
Total number of citations issued: 36 for 43 violations 
Total number of DUI: 0 
 
Crimes against Persons 
Assault: 7 
Aggravated assault: 1 
 
Property Crimes 
Burglary: 1 
Criminal damage: 6 
Shoplifting: 2 
Theft: 3 
Vehicle theft: 2 
 
Monthly Activities 
Total calls for service were up from last month (452).  Person crimes were up by 1 from last 
month. Of the 8 reported assaults, 5 happened in a correctional facility and 2 were domestic 



 

 

violence related. Property crimes were the same as last month. Officers in Beat 1 conducted 
directed patrols in the areas of previously reported crimes. Officers also conducted field 
interviews of persons throughout Beat 1 and inquired if there was any knowledge of any crimes 
being committed. The Directed Patrols and Field Interviews were utilized to gather 
information/suspects and to provide a presence in the community to help deter additional crimes. 
There were 32 warrant arrests in Beat 1 during the month. 

Community Involvement and Education 
Officers continued to perform directed patrols daily at the school buildings and grounds to 
prevent and/or detect criminal activity at these locations. Officers have been monitoring the 
school grounds and vehicle traffic in the surrounding areas. 
 
Special Events 
None 
       
Upcoming Special Events 
None 
 
Significant Calls for Service 
Assault on N. Pinal Parkway – An inmate struck another inmate with a cup causing a laceration 
on his head. Charges have been forwarded to the Court. 

Assault on N. Pinal Parkway – Four inmates were in a fight because one called another a 
derogatory name. Minor injuries reported. Charges were forwarded to the Court. 

Assault on S. San Carlos Street – During a Domestic Dispute, a female hit her significant other 
and threw his necessary walker into a dumpster. The female was arrested and booked into jail. 

Assault on E. 3rd Street – While transporting a juvenile from school, the Transportation Aide 
requested a student to put on his seatbelt, per their regulations. The juvenile refused and punched 
the Transportation Aide, no injury. The student exited the bus and walked home. The victim 
refused to press charges, he only wanted the incident documented. 

Assault on N. Pinal Parkway – While placing an inmate into a cell the inmate kicked the cell 
door into the employee causing a minor injury. Case is pending - awaiting further information 
from the facility. 

Assault on N. Pinal Parkway – An employee at the Correctional facility reported that an inmate 
spit on him. Reporter only wanted the incident documented. 

Assault on N. Jason Lopez Circle – While in court a respondent pushed his attorney, no injury 
reported. Charges were forwarded to the Court. 

Burglary on E. Florence Heights Drive – A female reported that an unknown person entered her 
home and stole a Nintendo DS, Toshiba Tablet, $6.00 in quarters and 3 prescription pills. There 
were no signs of forced entry to the apartment. Investigation ongoing.  

Vehicle theft on E. Stewart Street – A male reported that he started his pick-up truck to warm it 
up and returned to his apartment. When he returned, someone entered his vehicle and drove out 



 

 

of the apartment complex. The vehicle was located abandoned in Clifton, Arizona. The suspect 
has been identified and charges have been filed with the Court. 

Vehicle theft on E. Florence Heights Drive – A female reported that her boyfriend’s mother took 
her vehicle without permission. The vehicle was located and stopped in Coolidge. The suspect 
was arrested by Coolidge Police. 

Vehicle theft on N. Warner Street – Incident occurred in Chandler, AZ. 

Theft on E. Aguilar Street – A Florence High School computer that was supposed to be delivered 
to a student was delivered to the wrong address. The resident at the wrong address had opened 
and decided to keep the computer for herself. The computer was recovered and the female was 
arrested and booked into jail. 

Theft on N. Kansas Avenue – A woman reported that her former roommate took a $5000.00 
bracelet without permission. The suspect is in contact with the case officer and is trying to 
recover the item. 

Theft on N. Pinal Parkway – A female hired a taxi to bring her to Florence for $75.00. Her credit 
card was approved for $50.00. She advised the driver that her boyfriend would pay the difference 
upon arrival. When they arrived, no boyfriend was in the area. The female then decided to just 
not pay and walk away. She was located and arrested a short time later. 

Shoplifting on N. Pinal parkway – A recently released (from jail) male took 2 beers from a 
convenience store and walked out without paying for the merchandise. The male was located and 
arrested for shoplifting.  

Shoplifting on N. Pinal Parkway – A recently released (from jail) female took some ice cream 
and lip gloss from the store and left without paying for the items. The female was located and 
arrested for shoplifting. 

Criminal damage on S. San Carlos Street – During a domestic dispute, a male punched and broke 
a window (valued at $100.00). The male was arrested and booked into jail.  

Criminal damage on N. Pinal Street – Someone spray painted graffiti on a picnic table. The 
owner repaired the table. No evidence and no suspects. 

Criminal damage on E. Stewart Street – A female reported that someone slashed her car tire 
(valued at $100.00). There are no suspects and no evidence. 

Criminal damage on E. Stewart Street – A male reported that someone broke his car window 
(valued at $100.00). There are no suspects or evidence. 

Criminal damage on N. Church Street – A male reported that his son spray painted yellow lines 
onto the front of his home and a spare stove. The male was arrested and booked into jail. 

Criminal damage on N. Florence Street – A male reported that someone broke his vehicle’s 
passenger side window. There were no items stolen and no items (ex. A rock) which caused the 
damage in the area. No evidence and no suspects. 



 

 

Accident on N. Pinal Parkway – A vehicle travelling southbound on Pinal Parkway turned left at 
Diversion Dam Road striking a northbound vehicle. No injuries were reported.  The at-fault 
driver was cited. 

Accident on S. Main Street – A vehicle travelling eastbound on Hwy 287 failed to stop at the 
stop sign and struck a southbound vehicle. No injuries reported. The at-fault driver was cited. 

Accident on E. Butte Avenue – Two vehicles were eastbound on Butte Avenue in a single file. 
The first vehicle came to a stop at the red light and the second vehicle drove into the back of the 
first vehicle. The first driver had a complaint of pain in the neck/back area. He was not 
transported. The at-fault driver was cited.  

Accident private property - A parked vehicle was struck by another vehicle in a prison parking 
lot. The vehicle sustained damage to its rear bumper. The second vehicle left the area. Awaiting 
possible video surveillance. 

Accident private Property on N. Pinal Parkway – A National Guard vehicle was struck by 
another while parked in their parking lot.   

Training 
Officers were updated on Court decisions during the month. Officer’s uniforms and vehicles 
were inspected during the month, with no deficiencies noted. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Beat 2 

 
 
Beat Statistics 
Beat 2 Supervisor – Sgt. D. Campbell 
There are 6 officers assigned to Beat 2 
Total number of calls for service (including traffic): 157 
Total number of traffic stops: 35 
Total number of accident reports taken: 2 
Total number of citations issued: 18 for 29 violations 
Total number of DUI: 1 
 
Crimes against Persons: 
Assault: 2 
Aggravated Assault: 1 
 
Property Crimes: 
Criminal Damage: 2 
Theft: 5 
 



 

 

Monthly Activities 
Officer Nixon completed his Field Training and is now assigned to dayshift operations as a 
Patrol Officer. All patrol officers working dayshift assigned to Sgt. Campbell’s Squad were 
inspected for uniform appearance and vehicle condition.  All officers passed without incident.   

Community Involvement and Education 
Officers conducted 34 directed patrols of the local business and issuing warning citations for 
parking violations to include Field Interviews. 

Special Events 
None 

Upcoming Special Events 
Florence Police Department will be hosting another Citizens Academy starting September 05, 
2017.  During the month of August, applications were verified.  Currently, there are 11 cadets 
scheduled to start in September. 
 
Significant Calls for Service 
Accident with injuries reported on State Route 287 milepost 142. Officers observed a three-car 
accident. During the investigation, driver #1 was traveling eastbound when he failed to maintain 
his lane of travel and collided with two additional vehicles that were driving westbound. Driver 
#1 had indications of impairment. Officers conducted a standard Field Sobriety Test. Driver #1 
was found to be under the influence of Oxycotin and two different types of anxiety medication. 
Driver #1 was arrested and processed without incident. All other parties involved reported no 
injuries.  

Criminal Damage reported on North Main Street. Officers arrived on scene and observed a large 
hole on the northwest portion of the structure. FLPD is currently investigating this incident and 
awaiting a monetary value to fix the building.  

Stabbing on the 300 Block of West 11th Street in Florence. Officers arrived on scene and 
provided first aid for a female victim until Florence Fire Department arrived on scene.  During 
the investigation, the victim’s son became upset and stabbed her in the back with a kitchen knife 
and fled the scene.  The victim was transported to a valley hospital due to a punctured lung.  
Officers canvassed the area and notified surrounding law enforcement agencies.  The following 
morning, FLPD received a call for service matching the description of the subject.  Officers 
arrived on scene and arrested the subject without incident.  The subject was processed and 
booked into Pinal County Sheriff’s Office Adult Detention Center without incident.  

Training 
None 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Beat 3 

 
 
Beat Statistics: 
Beat 3 Supervisor – Sgt. S. Morris 
There are 7 officers assigned to Beat 3 
Total number of calls for service (including traffic):  348 
Total number of traffic stops: 211 
Total number of accident reports taken: 6 
Total number of citations issued: 86 for 105 violations 
Total number of DUI: 1 
 
Crimes against Persons: 
Assault: 1 
Sexual assault: 1 
Other: 2 
 
Property Crimes: 
Criminal damage: 2 
Theft: 1 
 



 

 

Monthly Activities 
For the month of August, the total calls for service was 348, compared to 275 in July. A 26.55% 
increase. This increase is due to traffic task force being worked in Beat 3. No influx of major 
crime. A total of 65 directed patrols were conducted.  

The Juvenile Detention Log was completed as required by state law. The Florence Police 
Department arrested five juveniles for the month of August.  

The speed signs logged the following data: 
 Main Street, east bound. –95,644 vehicles. 85% were doing 33 mph. Speed limit is 35 

mph. 
 Anthem/ Hunt Highway, west bound. –129,407 vehicles. 85% were doing 53 mph. Speed 

limit is 45mph. 
 
For the month of August, traffic enforcement in beat three consisted of 159 traffic offenses, with 
86 citations, and 105 violations. A total of 5 accidents took place.  

Contact is made with the head of the HOA via email, or in person, with Officer Palmer. We work 
together to address all issues that the community may have. Two parking issues were handled for 
month of August.  

Officer’s uniforms were inspected this month, with no discrepancies noted.  

Community Involvement and Education 
The beat three officers continue to look for code enforcement violations and have been enforcing 
parking violations. No parking violation warnings were given out in August. 

Special Events 
None 

Upcoming Special Events 
None 

Significant Calls for Service 
Congressional Way – Officers responded to a report of 4 people fighting in the street. Upon 
arrival, they observed an individual who had another individual in a headlock. Verbal commands 
were given to stop fighting, which were ignored. One individual became aggressive with a 
deputy, began to fight, and was tazed. Another individual, was tazed after he began to charge at 
deputies and officers. Subjects were charged with aggravated assault, DV assault, and criminal 
damage. No officers were injured.  

W. Montebello Way – A female left a note at Safeway stating she needed help at her house. 
Officers contacted the female outside the residence. Officers arrived, and had to force entry into 
the home as the suspect was apparently barricaded inside. The residence was cleared, and the 
suspect was found in a neighbor’s yard. Investigation revealed the suspect physically assaulted 
the female, along with choking her. The suspect was arrested and charged with aggravated 
assault DV.  



 

 

Admiral Way – A 16-year-old female made allegations of sexual conduct against a male, who 
runs a group home. This case was unfounded, as no sex offense occurred.  

Congressional Way – This case is connected to the assault case listed above. Suspect punched 
holes in victim’s residence bedroom wall.  

Anthem Way – A bicycle was stolen from the community center. The suspect was located, and 
admitted to exchanging the bike with another bike he stole. No victims could be located. Suspect 
turned over to PCSO on an unrelated case.  

Desert Sky/Arizona Farms Rd. – A 2012 Nissan Altima was traveling at a high rate of speed east 
bound on Arizona Farms road when it collided head on with a 1996 Chevy Silverado. The 
collision occurred in the west bound lane. The driver of the Altima sustained fatal injuries, and 
the driver of the Silverado had minor injuries. This accident is still under investigation. 
 
Hunt/Attaway – A three vehicle accident occurred on Attaway. One vehicle rear ended another, 
and pushed the second vehicle into the third vehicle. Minor injuries.  

Hunt/Attaway – A motorcycle failed to negotiate the turn, and slid off the shoulder of the road 
into some gravel. Rider sustained minor injuries.  

Three other minor accidents occurred at Hunt and Attaway, with no injuries.  

Training 
None 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

K-9 Unit 

Number of officers assigned to K-9 unit: 1, K9 Murphy   
Total number of vehicle stops: 134 
Total number of K-9 Utilizations: 9 
Total number of vehicle hand searches: 12 
Total amount of narcotic seizures (weight): 34.7 grams 
 

Type of Drug Amount in Weight 

Narcotics 34.7 

Prescription Drugs N/A 

Paraphernalia 15 individual items 

 
K-9 Activity 
K9 Murphy attended weekly K9 detection along with the Pinal County Sheriff’s Office K9 Unit.  
During the four-hour block of detection, K9 Murphy’s service dog detected marijuana, cocaine, 
methamphetamine and heroin without incident.  K9 Murphy is certified through the (NCAT) 
National Canine Audit Tracking Systems.        

During the month of August 2017, K9 Murphy self-initiated (134) cases which included vehicle 
stops, field interviews and on-view criminal activity.  K9 Murphy was responsible for (38) calls 
of service dispatched by Florence Police Department.  Listed below is a synopsis of what 
transpired. 

K9 Murphy responded to a call of service in the 400 Block of East Duron Street.  K9 Murphy 
arrived on scene with additional patrol units.  Two subjects were squatting within a residence and 
were arrested. At the request of the homeowner, K9 Murphy deployed K9 Russ location 0.4 
grams of methamphetamine and drug paraphernalia. 

K9 Murphy conducted a traffic stop at Giant Gas Station located on Pinal Parkway.  The traffic 
stop was conducted as the vehicle had no insurance.  Officer Murphy approached the vehicle and 
smelled a strong order of raw marijuana.  The driver denied having marijuana and was not in 
possession of a marijuana access card.  The vehicle was searched and three individual bags of 
marijuana were located in the driver’s side door.   The male subject was arrested and processed. 

While on patrol, Pinal County Narcotics Task Force requested the assistance from K9 Murphy 
due to a search warrant in the 100 block of North Willow Street.  During the service and search 
of the residence, three bags of methamphetamine and drug paraphernalia was located by K9 
Russ.  This case was turned over to Pinal County Narcotics Task Force (PCNTF) for processing. 

During the month of August, K9 Murphy participated in Government of Highway Safety 
(GOHS).  During this time, multiple traffic stops, citations and DUI enforcement took place with 
the Town of Florence.  

 



 

 

 
Volunteers 

 
The Florence Volunteers put in a total of 169.75 hours for the month of August. There was a 
total of 11 volunteers that donated their time this month. The Victim Services Unit was utilized 
four times this month. The volunteers continue to assist the police department with 
fingerprinting, funeral escorts, and any special events hosted by the Town of Florence. The 
volunteer program is actively involved in house watches, school zones and business checks. 
There were eight 3511 hearings this month, conducted by a volunteer. The vehicles were 
released to their respective owners, and a total of $600 was collected for fees.  

 
Grants 

Officers completed over 100 hours of GOHS funded overtime in August. The overtime hours 
were utilized for selective enforcement activities concentrating on Speed, DUI and Occupant 
Protection (seatbelt and safety seats).  
 
The following are statistics reported to GOHS for both special events and sustained (regular) 
activity: 

Total citations for the month of August 2017- 147 
Total traffic contacts for the month of August 2017- 399 

Type of Citation Total Number 

Civil Speed 64
Criminal Speed 0
DUI 1
DUI Drugs 1
Other (CT, CR,CV) 81

 
 

Training  

Efforts are continually made by the training staff to incorporate and provide quality training to 
all FPD (Florence Police Department) officers. FPD staff has worked diligently to reduce 
training costs by providing required internal training.  

 
Traffic 

Total number of Citations issued for the department: 140 for 177 violations 

Directed Patrols 
The Police Department conducted 279 Directed Patrols during August. Directed Patrols are a 
proactive, police-initiated, approach which focuses patrol resources on the places with highest 
risks of serious crime to increase crime prevention. Statistics have proven that an increased pro-
active patrol in high crime areas has decreased crimes. 


	October 2, 2017 Agenda
	Page 2
	Page 3

	6. PRESENTATIONS
	6a. Fire Preventon Week Proclamation
	6b. Historic District Fire Alarm System Presentation

	7. CONSENT
	7a. FY2017-2018 Facade Program
	7b. IDA Contract for Facade Program
	7c.  Jennings Strouss Chris Kramer
	7d. Gust Rosenfeld Barbara Rodriquez Pashkowski
	7e. Warrant Register

	8. NEW BUSINESS
	8a. holding section
	8b. Resolution No. 1645-17  AMR Unit 5 Final Plat
	8c. Copper Basin Railway Inc. Access for Pot Butte Preserve
	8d. Holbrook Asphalt LLC Contract

	10. DEPARTMENT REPORTS
	10a. Community Services Report
	10b. Courts Report
	10c. Development Services Report
	10d. Finance Report
	10e. Fire Report
	10f. Police Report




